
Those persons wishing to speak on any item, whether or not it is included on the agenda, are requested to fill out and
submit to the Clerk of the Board a "Request to Speak" form.  Thank you.

It is the intention of the Chino Valley Independent Fire District to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA) in all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond what is
normally provided, the Chino Valley Independent Fire District will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable
manner.  Please contact the Administration Office (909) 902-5260 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting
to inform us of your particular needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if
you will need accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis.

Any public record, relating to an open session agenda item, that is distributed within 72 hours prior to the meeting is
available for public inspection at the District's Administrative Headquarters, 14011 City Center Drive, Chino Hills, CA
91709.

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT
Board of Directors Regular Board Meeting

Administrative Headquarters 
14011 City Center Drive 
Chino Hills, CA 91709

Wednesday, February 8, 2023

4:30 p.m. - Closed Session 
6:00 p.m. - Open Session

AGENDA

ROLL CALL

CLOSED SESSION

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957. 
1. Title: Fire Chief
2. Title: Legal Counsel

OPEN SESSION

FLAG SALUTE

INVOCATION

Chaplain Adam Houde

PRESENTATIONS/ANNOUNCEMENTS

Proclamation – American Heart Month

Employee Recognition - Fire Inspector Tori Jung 

Retirement Recognition - Firefighter/Paramedic Jeff Heringer

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 1 of 167



Employee of the Year - Natalie Ceballos

Firefighter of the Year - Ryan Pourhassanian 

Employee Service Awards for 15 Years of Service - 
 Fire Chief Dave Williams 
 Captain Casey May 
 Engineer Russell Tao

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS

This is the time and place for the general Public to address the Board of Directors about
subjects that do not appear elsewhere on the agenda. The Public may address items on the
agenda at the time addressed by the Board.

Due to Board policy and Brown Act requirements, action may not be taken on any issue not
on the agenda. When you address the Board, please state your name and address (optional)
prior to making your remarks. Please limit your comments to 5 minutes.

LIAISON REPORTS TO FIRE DISTRICT (County 4th District, City of Chino, City of
Chino Hills, Fire Foundation, Fire Safe Council, School District, Inland Empire Utilities
Agency)

Suzette Dang, San Bernardino County 4th District
Mayor Pro Tem Karen Comstock, City of Chino
Council Member Art Bennett, City of Chino Hills
President Mark Bozek, Chino Valley Fire Foundation
Chair Charlie Blank, Fire Safe Council
Vice President Jonathan E. Monroe, Chino Valley Unified School District
Director Steven Elie, Inland Empire Utilities Agency

CONSENT CALENDAR

1. MINUTES

Minutes - January 11, 2023 - Regular Meeting

2. MONTHLY DISTRICT REPORT

Month of December 2022

3. MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT

Monthly Financial Report - January 2023

4. MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT

Monthly Treasurer's Report - December 2022

5. WARRANTS

Warrants for January 2023 #56748 through #56911
Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 2 of 167



OLD BUSINESS - None

NEW BUSINESS

8. 2022-23 MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW AND ANALYSIS
Purpose is to conduct a mid-year budget review for discussion purposes.

A

Report By: Finance Director Mark Shaker
A

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board discuss the mid-year
budget review and provide direction to staff.

a

a

9. AGREEMENT NO. 2023 - 01 WITH SHUSTER ADVISORY GROUP FOR
FIDUCIARY SERVICES AND RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 APPOINTING THE
HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR AS PLAN ADMINISTRATOR
Purpose is for the Board of Directors to review, approve and authorize the Fire Chief to
execute Agreement No. 2023-01 with Shuster Advisory Group to provide investment
advisory and fiduciary services for the Chino Valley Fire District’s Deferred
Compensation Plans.  Additionally, approve Resolution No. 2023-01 appointing the
Human Resources Director as Plan Administrator.  The resolution is at the Board’s
discretion and does not affect the agreement with Shuster Advisory Group.

A

Report By: Human Resources Director Anthony Arroyo
A

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended the Board of Directors approve and

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 3 of 167

6. BOARD MEETINGS/TRAVEL - AUTHORIZATION TO ATTEND 
CONFERENCE, MEETING OR TRAINING.
None.

7. FINDINGS TO CONDUCT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
VIRTUALLY UNDER ASSEMBLY BILL 361
Purpose is for the Board of Directors to state its finding considering the circumstances 
of the current proclaimed state of emergency; and state finding that state or local 
officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; and as a 
result, the Fire District may hold regular and special board meetings and regular and 
special committee meetings virtually by videoconference, in accordance with AB 361.
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Consent Calendar Items 1 through 7 as presented. 
PC______________M______________S______________RC______________



authorize the Fire Chief to execute Agreement No. 2023-01
with Shuster Advisory Group to provide investment advisory
and fiduciary services for the Chino Valley Fire District’s
Deferred Compensation Plans. Additionally, approve
Resolution No. 2023-01 appointing the Human Resources
Director as Plan Administrator. 

a

a

10. FIRE DISTRICT POLICY AND PROCEDURES FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Purpose is for the Board of Directors to review recommended changes to the Fire
District Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors and provide direction to staff.

A

Report By: Clerk of the Board Angela Robles
A

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Directors review the
proposed changes to the Policy and Procedures for Board of
Directors as presented in redlined format and provide
direction to staff.  

a

PC______________M______________S______________RC_____________
a

11. UPDATE REGARDING TELECONFERENCING UNDER AB 361 AND AB
2449
Purpose is for the Board of Directors to receive an update regarding teleconferencing
options under the recent amendments to the Ralph M. Brown Act, and provide direction
as to whether and how the Board wishes those teleconferencing options to be used.

A

Report By: Legal Counsel Jeff Ballinger
A

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive an
update regarding teleconferencing options under the recent
amendments to the Ralph M. Brown Act, and provide
direction as to whether and how the Board wishes those
teleconferencing options to be used.

a

a

FIRE CHIEF'S COMMENTS

BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/BOARD COMMENTS

President DeMonaco:
1. Establish and Appoint Board Members to Ad Hoc Committee for the purpose of

selecting a law firm to assist Chino Valley Fire District with labor negotiations.
2. Establish and Appoint Board Members to Ad Hoc Committee for the purpose of

meeting with state and federal legislators.

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 4 of 167



ADJOURNMENT

The meeting will be adjourned to a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Chino
Valley Independent Fire District to be held on Wednesday, March 8, 2023, at Fire District
Administrative Headquarters Office located at 14011 City Center Drive, Chino Hills, CA,
91709.

I, Angela Robles, Clerk of the Board, on behalf of the Board of Directors, do hereby certify
that a copy of this agenda has been posted by 6:00 p.m., on Friday, February 3, 2023.

Angela Robles, Clerk of the Board

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 5 of 167



   PRESENTATIONS/ANNOUCEMENTS    

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT

NO STAFF REPORT

Proclamation – American Heart Month

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Proclamation – American Heart Month

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 6 of 167



 
CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 

PROCLAMATION 
 

THE CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT PROCLAIMS 
The Month of February 2023 as 

AMERICAN HEART MONTH 
 

WHEREAS, heart disease is responsible for one out of every three deaths in the United States, and while 
progress has been significant in reducing deaths, it is still the No. 1 killer of both women and men in the nation 
with direct and indirect costs in the U.S. estimated to be $316.6 million; and 
 

WHEREAS, about 659,000 people in the U.S. died from heart disease, stroke, and other cardiovascular 
diseases in 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, about 80% of cardiovascular disease may be prevented through everyday healthy living steps, 
including physical activity, good nutrition, not smoking, maintaining a healthy weight, and controlling blood pressure, 
cholesterol, and blood glucose levels; and 

 
WHEREAS, the American Heart Association encourages citizens to help save lives by calling 9-1-1 if 

symptoms occur, become trained in CPR, and promote comprehensive Automated External Defibrillator (AED) 
programs in their communities: and 
 

WHEREAS, February is nationally proclaimed as American Heart Month, and the American Heart Association 
is celebrating American Heart Month by promoting education and awareness by encouraging citizens to learn the 
warning signs of heart attack and stroke; and 
 

WHEREAS, every second counts when someone suffers from out-of-hospital sudden cardiac arrest; and 
 
WHEREAS, sudden cardiac arrest is a condition in which the heart suddenly and unexpectedly stops beating.  

Sudden cardiac arrest usually causes death if it is not treated within minutes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Chino Valley Fire District has developed a Cardiac Care Program and has partnered with the 

Chino Valley Fire Foundation in an effort to increase survivability from sudden cardiac arrest by making AEDs readily 
accessible in public places; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Heart Safe Community and Cardiac Care Program are designed to increase survivability from 

sudden out-of-hospital cardiac arrest.  The intent is to strengthen the “chain of survival” as described by the American 
Heart Association, by recognizing and stimulating efforts by individual communities to improve their system to 
prevent sudden cardiac arrest from becoming irreversible death; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Chino Valley Fire District, along with local government agencies, are partnering and prepared 

to assist our communities in reaching Heart Safe status; and 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the Chino Valley Fire District Board of Directors proclaims 
February 2023 as: 

 
“AMERICAN HEART MONTH” 

PRESENTED at a Fire District Board Meeting held on the 8th day of February, 2023. 

 
 
    _______________________________________ 

John DeMonaco, President 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 7 of 167



   MINUTES  1.  

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT

NO STAFF REPORT

Minutes - January 11, 2023 - Regular Meeting

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Minutes - January 11, 2023 - Regular Meeting

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 8 of 167



 
CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
Wednesday, January 11, 2023 

5:00 p.m. Closed Session  
6:00 p.m. Open Session  

 
Fire District Administrative Headquarters 

14011 City Center Drive 
Chino Hills, CA 91709 

 
MINUTES 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The regular meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by President DeMonaco. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present: President John DeMonaco; Vice President Harvey Luth; Director Sarah Ramos-Evinger; 

Director Mike Kreeger; and Director Tom Haughey. 
 

Also present: Fire Chief Dave Williams; Deputy Chief Jeremy Ault; Deputy Chief Carlos Skibar; Acting 
Deputy  Chief Dean Smith; Legal Counsel Jeff Ballinger; Clerk of the Board Angela Robles; 
Finance Director Mark Shaker; and Human Resources Director Anthony Arroyo. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 
President DeMonaco announced and read the Closed Session item.  
 
PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION -Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957. 
Title: Fire Chief 
 
There were no requests from the public to speak on this item. 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
President DeMonaco adjourned the Open Session to Closed Session at 5:01 p.m. 
 
REOPEN TO OPEN SESSION 
 
President DeMonaco reopened to Open Session at 6:00 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present: President John DeMonaco; Vice President Harvey Luth; Director Sarah Ramos-Evinger; 

Director Mike Kreeger; and Director Tom Haughey. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 9 of 167



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
January 11, 2023 
Page 2 of 8 

 
Also present: Fire Chief Dave Williams; Deputy Chief Jeremy Ault; Deputy Chief Carlos Skibar; Acting 

Deputy Chief Dean Smith; Legal Counsel Jeff Ballinger; Clerk of the Board Angela Robles; 
Finance Director Mark Shaker; and Human Resources Director Anthony Arroyo. 

 
REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
District Legal Counsel Jeff Ballinger reported that there was no reportable action taken on the Closed 
Session item.  
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
President DeMonaco led the assembly in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Adam Houde, Fire District Chaplain led the invocation. 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
Clerk of the Board Robles reported no changes to the agenda. 
 
PRESENTATIONS / ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
New Employee Introductions 
 
President DeMonaco accompanied by Fire Chief Williams welcomed and introduced Clerk of the Board 
Angela Robles.  
 
President DeMonaco accompanied by Fire Chief Williams welcomed and introduced Assistant to the Fire 
Chief Rita Pro.  
 
Employee Recognitions 
 
President DeMonaco accompanied by Fire Chief Williams and Deputy Chief Ault recognized Acting 
Battalion Chief Jon Cripe for his service as the Fire Districts Training Captain for the 2021-2022 rotation 
and presented him with a plaque.  
 
President DeMonaco accompanied by Fire Chief Williams recognized Captain Pete Roebuck for his 
service as the Fire District EMS Training Captain for the 2021-2022 rotation and presented him with a 
plaque.  

 
The Board of Directors recessed at 6:19 p.m. and reconvened the meeting at 6:28 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 10 of 167



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
January 11, 2023 
Page 3 of 8 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 

Resident Winn Williams spoke about being invited to a labor union event and being uninvited later as 
not being a dues paying member. Resident Winn Williams expressed how this disappointed him and 
provided information as to why he does not pay dues. 

Resident Winn Williams requested the last four years of board invoices for all Board Members while 
he was in office as a Board Member.  

Chino Valley Professional Firefighters Local 3522 President Pete Roebuck addressed resident Winn 
Williams during the public comment. He explained how the invites were sent out and after verification, 
only dues paying members were allowed to attend. 

LIAISON REPORTS TO FIRE DISTRICT (County 4th District, City of Chino, City of Chino 
Hills, Fire Foundation, Fire Safe Council, School District, Inland Empire Utilities Agency) 

Representative Suzette Dang from San Bernardino County 4th District congratulated re-elected Board 
Member Mike Kreeger and newly elected Board Member Tom Haughey. Representative Suzette Dang 
gave a summary of the events taking place around San Bernardino County. 

President Pete Roebuck from Chino Valley Professional Firefighters thanked the Board, Management 
and staff for all their support in the holiday community events. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. MINUTES

Minutes – December 14, 2022 – Regular Board Meeting

2. MONTHLY DISTRICT REPORT

Month of November 2022

3. MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT

Monthly Financial Report – December 2022

4. MONTHLY TREASURER’S REPORT

Monthly Treasurer’s Report – November 2022

5. WARRANTS

Warrants for December 2022 #56635 through #56747

6. BOARD MEETINGS/TRAVEL – AUTHORIZATION TO ATTEND CONFERENCE, MEETING OR
TRAINING

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 11 of 167



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
January 11, 2023 
Page 4 of 8 

 
None. 
 

7. FINDINGS TO CONDUCT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS VIRTUALLY UNDER 
ASSEMBLY BILL 361 
 
Purpose is for the Board of Directors to state its finding considering the circumstances of the current 
proclaimed state of emergency; and state finding that state or local officials have imposed or recommended 
measures to promote social distancing; and as a result, the Fire District may hold regular and special board 
meetings and regular and special committee meetings virtually by videoconference, in accordance with 
AB 361. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Consent Calendar Item Numbers 1 through 7 as presented. 
 
There were no requests to pull an item from the Consent Calendar for discussion. 
 
Moved by Director Ramos-Evinger seconded by Director Haughey carried by a 5-0 voice vote for 
the Board of Directors to approve the Consent Calendar items #1-7, as presented. 
 
AYES:        BOARD MEMBERS:   DeMonaco, Luth, Haughey, Kreeger and Ramos-Evinger. 
NOES:        BOARD MEMBERS:   None. 
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS:   None. 
ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS:   None. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

8. BOARD OF DIRECTORS ANNUAL INDIVIDUAL MEMBERSHIP REVIEW 
 

Purpose is for the Board of Directors to review and approve individual annual memberships for Board 
Members in accordance with Board Policy 1090. 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Directors review and approve memberships 
in associations for Board Members presented in per Board Policy 1090. 
 
Staff report by Clerk of the Board Angela Robles.  
 
Clerk of the Board Robles reported that per Board Policy 1090.0 encourages participating in associations, 
service clubs and fraternal organizations for Board Members in good standing and provides for 
reimbursement of the direct and reasonable cost of said membership upon annual Board of Directors 
review and approval. 
 
She also reported the below submittals from Board Members for individual memberships for approval 
consideration. 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 12 of 167



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
January 11, 2023 
Page 5 of 8 

 
President John DeMonaco 
Chino Rotary 
American Legion 
 
Vice President Harvey Luth 
Kiwanis Club of Chino 
 
Director Tom Haughey 
Rancho Del Chino Rotary Club 
 
Clerk of the Board Robles reported that Board Members are limited to reimbursement for two such 
memberships. She also reported that it should be noted that individual memberships may occur throughout 
the year. 
 
There were no requests from the public to speak on this item. 

 
Moved by Director Kreeger seconded by Director Ramos-Evinger, carried by a 5-0 voice vote for 
the Board of Directors review and approve memberships in associations for Board Members 
presented in accordance with Board Policy 1090. 
 
AYES:        BOARD MEMBERS:   DeMonaco, Luth, Haughey, Kreeger and Ramos-Evinger. 
NOES:        BOARD MEMBERS:   None.  
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS:   None.  
ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS:   None. 
 

9.  FEMA ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT 
 
Purpose is for the Board of Directors to review, approve and authorize the Fire Chief to accept the 
FEMA Grant (AFG) in the amount of $301,483.41 with a required District match of $30,148.35 for a 
total project of $331,631.76. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is It is recommended that the Board of Directors review, approve and 
authorize the Fire Chief to accept the FEMA Grant (AFG) in the amount of $301,483.41 with a required 
District match of $30,148.35 for a total project of $331,631.76. 
 
Staff report by Finance Director Mark Shaker.  

 
Finance Director Mark Shaker reported that the District has been awarded the Assistance to Firefighters 
Grant (AFG) in the amount of $301,483.41 with a required District match of $30,148.35 for a total 
project of $331,631.76. He also reported that Since 2001, the AFG has helped firefighters and other 
first responders obtain critically needed equipment, protective gear, emergency vehicles, training and 
other resources necessary for protecting the public and emergency personnel from fire and related 
hazards. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 13 of 167



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
January 11, 2023 
Page 6 of 8 

 
Finance Director Mark Shaker further reported that the District applied for the Assistance to 
Firefighters Grant through FEMA for Source Capture Exhaust Systems for the District Fire Stations. 
Source Capture Exhaust Systems allow apparatus to safely vent diesel smoke which is a carcinogen. 
Modern systems are highly effective at removing harmful exhaust when apparatus are running in the 
bays. The District's fire stations are each equipped with Source Capture Exhaust Systems that are all in 
excess of 12 years of age and are failing. He reported that this grant will fund the replacement of the 
aged systems with new, up to date and NFPA 1500 compliant systems. 
 
Finance Director Mark Shaker reported that the District is required match of $30,148.35 as well as the 
total project costs and grant reward will be included in the fiscal year 2022-23 budget through the mid-
year amendment process. 

 
There were no requests from the public to speak on this item. 
 
Discussion was held among the Board regarding the FEMA Grant (AFG) and how the funds will be 
used.  
 
Moved by Director Kreeger seconded by Director Ramos-Evinger carried by a 5-0 voice vote for 
the Board of Directors to review, approve and authorize the Fire Chief to accept the FEMA Grant 
(AFG) in the amount of $301,483.41 with a required District match of $30,148.35 for a total 
project of $331,631.76. 

 
AYES:        BOARD MEMBERS:   DeMonaco, Luth, Haughey, Kreeger and Ramos-Evinger. 
NOES:        BOARD MEMBERS:   None.  
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS:   None.  
ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS:   None. 
 
 
FIRE CHIEF’S COMMENTS 
 
Fire Chief Williams reported on Board Activities and Public Relations as follows: 

• December 16th, Board Members and Chief attended the Black Hawk Fire and Rescue 
Helicopter VIP Demo at Prado Helitack Base in Chino. 

• December 16th, Board Members, staff and Chief participated in the Chino Hills Boat Parade. 
• December 19th, Board Members and Chief attended the Chino Hills Quarterly Meeting with 

the Mayor Rogers and City Manager Montgomery. 
 
Fire Chief Williams reported on CONFIRE Items of Interest as follows: 

• December 27th, Chief attended a CONFIRE Administrative Committee Meeting in Loma 
Linda. 

• January 9th, President DeMonaco and Chief attended a CONFIRE Board of Directors Meeting 
in Loma Linda. 
o 4 new hires and they anticipate being fully staffed in the next several months 

o Cad-to-Cad is live with Riverside County 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 14 of 167



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
January 11, 2023 
Page 7 of 8 

 
o Under the newly established EMS Division, the cities of Ontario, Yucaipa, and Montclair 

are now part of the Confire EMS Division 

o New Business: 
 Financial Audit Report: Third party consultant of Rogers, Anderson, Malody and 

Scott LLP conducted the financial audit and provided a Confire reported a clean and 
unmodified opinion with no management disagreements for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 

 Confire Board took action to approve a new Assistant Director position for future 
consideration as Confire develops and grows 

 EMS Enterprise Fund was established for the purpose of conducting financial 
transactions independent of Confire Funds 

 Confire Board elected officers and Ms. Lynn Kennedy, Mayor Pro Tem for the City 
of Rancho Cucamonga was elected as Chairperson and Mr. Phill Dupper, Mayor for 
the City of Loma Linda was elected Vice Chair 

 A subcommittee was created for the County Clarification Project for the purpose of 
clarifying future HR and financial services. The subcommittee consists of 3 
Administrative Members and 2 designated Board Members. I am pleased to report 
that our very own President DeMonaco will serve on the subcommittee. 

Fire Chief Williams reported on CONFIRE Items of Interest as follows: 

• Administration Office will be closed on Monday, January 16th in observance of Martin Luther 
King Day. 

• A Finance Committee Meeting is scheduled for January 23rd at 8:00 a.m. 

• The ASBCSD Monthly Meeting is scheduled for January 23rd at 6:00 p.m. in Rancho 
Cucamonga. 

 
BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/BOARD COMMENTS 

Director Haughey 

Director Haughey welcomed Clerk of the Board Angela Robles and Assistant to the Fire Chief Rita 
Pro. Director Haughey reported that he attended the Black Hawk Demo and attended the City of Chino 
Hills Council Meetings. 

Director Kreeger 

Director Kreeger welcomed Clerk of the Board Angela Robles and Assistant to the Fire Chief Rita Pro. 
He reported on meetings and events attended since the last meeting that included the Holiday events; 
Meeting with the Fire Chief; CVUSD Meetings; and the Black Hawk Demo.  

Director Ramos-Evinger 

Director Ramos-Evinger reported on meetings and events attended since the last meeting that included 
the Black Hawk Demo; the Fire Safe Council meeting; City of Chino Council meeting; the Fred L. 
Burns Committee Meeting; Monthly Meeting with the Fire Chief and the CVUSD Organizational 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 15 of 167



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
January 11, 2023 
Page 8 of 8 

Meeting. Director Ramos-Evinger welcomed Clerk of the Board Angela Robles and Assistant to the 
Fire Chief Rita Pro.    

Vice President Luth 

Vice President Luth reported on meetings and events attended since the last meeting that include City 
of Chino Hills Council meetings; Monthly Meeting with the Fire Chief and agenda review meeting. 
Vice President Luth welcomed and congratulated Clerk of the Board Angela Robles and Assistant to the 
Fire Chief Rita Pro.    

President DeMonaco 

President DeMonaco reported on meetings and events attended since the last meeting that included a 
Monthly Meeting with the Fire Chief; IEUA; San Bernardino County Board of Directors meeting and 
the City of Chino Hills Quarterly Meeting. President DeMonaco welcomed and congratulated Clerk of 
the Board Angela Robles and Assistant to the Fire Chief Rita Pro. President DeMonaco also thanked 
CVPF Local 3522 President Pete Roebuck for all the work and support the union has provided at 
community events.  

The entire Fire Board of Directors sent thoughts and prayers out to the Colonna Family for Milan 
Colonna’s speedy recovery. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:52 p.m. to a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Chino 
Valley Independent Fire District to be held on Wednesday, February 8, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at District 
Headquarters located at 14011 City Center Drive, Chino Hills, CA 91709. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 8TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2023. 

___________________________________ ___________________________ 
Angela Robles, Clerk of the Board   John DeMonaco, President 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 16 of 167



   MONTHLY DISTRICT REPORT  2.  

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT

NO STAFF REPORT

Month of December 2022

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Monthly District Report December 2022

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 17 of 167



 

 

 

 

CHINO VALLEY 

 FIRE DISTRICT 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DECEMBER 2022 
 

 

 

 

MONTHLY REPORT 
 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 18 of 167



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 
 

I. Operations 

• Incident Response Data  

 

II. Community Risk Reduction 

• Permit Revenue Summary Report 

• License Revenue Summary Report 

• New Construction 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 19 of 167



 

 

 

DECEMBER 2022 
 

I. Operations: 
 

• Incident Response Data  

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 20 of 167



 

 

 

DECEMBER 2022 
 

II  Community Risk Reduction: 
 

•  Permit Revenue Summary Report 

•  License Revenue Summary Report 

•  New Construction 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 21 of 167



 
    
 

 

CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 
 

INCIDENT BASED  

RESPONSE TIME DATA 

DECEMBER 2022 

 

Response times are calculated as an average from the time the call taker picked 

up the phone to the time of first unit arrival.   

 

 

 
 

Total number of incident responses for December 2022:                  1,121  

    

  FIRE:  22 

 EMS: 1004 

 OTHER: 95 

       

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 22 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 23 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 24 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 25 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 26 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 27 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 28 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 29 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 30 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 31 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 32 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 33 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 34 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 35 of 167



  MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT  3.  

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2023

TO: JOHN DEMONACO, BOARD PRESIDENT
ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

FROM: DAVE WILLIAMS, FIRE CHIEF

SUBJECT: MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT - JANUARY 2023

PURPOSE:

Purpose is to present the Chino Valley Fire District’s financial activity for the month ended January 31,
2023, and for the fiscal year-to-date in comparison to the Amended budget.

DISCUSSION:

This report provides revenue and expenditure information for the month of January 2023, and for the
fiscal year in comparison to the 2022-23 amended budget and the prior year-to-date actual amounts. 

Cyclical Nature of District Revenues and Year-End Adjustments  
As District revenues are largely cyclical, the majority of District property tax revenues are received
during the November/December and April/May timeframes. Readers of the District’s monthly financial
reports should be cautioned when drawing conclusions regarding total revenues minus total expenses in
any given month. Generally, over time, a more meaningful comparison may be drawn between the
current and prior year-to-date totals, as well as the year-to-date variances between budgeted and actual
financial performance. Additionally, there are a number of required adjustments to the District’s
financial statements after each fiscal year-end which can have a significant impact on the final numbers
for the fiscal year. Over the course of the fiscal year, the attached two-year revenue and expenditure
comparison graphs are intended to provide a summary comparison of the District’s total revenues and
expenditures between the current and prior fiscal year-to-date. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board of Directors of the Chino Valley Fire District receive and file this
financial report.

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 36 of 167



 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Financial Report January 2023

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 37 of 167



 Monthly  Annual  Variance % Variance 
 Actual  Budget  From   of From 

 Amount  Amount  Budget Budget Prior Year 
Funds   100/500

REVENUE
 $       911,186 $  21,588,215 $  38,242,619 $ (16,654,404) 56%  $  20,076,757 $   1,511,458 
       1,142,262       7,400,484     11,788,511     (4,388,027) 63%        6,404,454        996,030 
         493,370       2,502,067       3,142,180        (640,113) 80%        7,151,233    (4,649,166)
 $    2,546,818 $  31,490,766 $  53,173,310 $ (21,682,544) 59%  $  33,632,444 $  (2,141,678)

EXPENSE
 $    2,921,773 $  25,596,931 $  44,332,516 $  18,735,585 58%  $  25,567,729 $       29,202 
         598,070       3,237,015       7,622,839       4,385,824 42%        3,077,879        159,136 
           25,093         639,580       1,586,651         947,071 40%          726,708         (87,128)
 $    3,544,936 $  29,473,526 $  53,542,006 $  24,068,480 55%  $  29,372,316 $      101,210 

T
 $    2,546,818 $  31,490,766 $  53,173,310 $ (21,682,544) 59%  $  33,632,444 $  (2,141,678)
       3,544,936     29,473,526     53,542,006     24,068,480 55%      29,372,316        101,210 
 $     (998,118) $    2,017,240 $     (368,696) $    2,385,936 (547%)  $    4,260,128 $  (2,242,888)

Transfers In - Capital Replacement  $               -   $        63,722 $        63,722 $               -   100%

Fund   800 - Restricted Assets
REVENUE

Other revenue         (213,004)          (22,113)                  -            (22,113)         (276,987)        254,874 
REVENUE TOTALS  $     (213,004)  $       (22,113)  $               -    $       (22,113)  $     (276,987) $      254,874 

EXPENSE
Services and supplies                 756             4,506                  -               4,506              4,514                 (8)

EXPENSE TOTALS  $             756  $          4,506  $               -    $          4,506  $          4,514  $              (8)
Fund   800 - Restricted Assets Totals

 $     (213,004) $       (22,113) $               -   $       (22,113)  $     (276,987) $      254,874 
                756             4,506                  -               4,506              4,514                 (8)
 $     (213,760) $       (26,619) $               -   $       (26,619)  $     (281,501) $      254,882 

Grand Totals, All Funds
 $    2,333,814 $  31,532,375 $  53,237,032 $ (21,704,657)  $  33,355,457 $  (1,886,804)
       3,545,692     29,478,032     53,542,006     24,063,974      29,376,830        101,202 

 $   (1,211,878) $    2,054,343 $     (304,974) $    2,359,317  $    3,978,627 $  (1,988,006)

REVENUE TOTALS
EXPENSE TOTALS

Fund   800 - Restriced Assets Net Gain 

REVENUE TOTALS, INCL. 
EXPENSE TOTALS

Grand Total Net Gain (Loss)

EXPENSE TOTALS
Funds   100/500 - Net Gain (Loss)

Property tax revenue

Funds   100/500 - Totals
REVENUE TOTALS

Services and supplies

Other revenue
Contract revenue

Capital outlay

Chino Valley Fire District
Monthly Financial Report - Summary

As of January 31, 2023

Account Description

EXPENSE TOTALS

Year-to-date 
Actual Amount 

   Prior Year-to-
date Actual 

Amount 

REVENUE TOTALS

Salaries and benefits

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 38 of 167



 Monthly  Year-to-date  Annual  Variance %  Prior Year Variance 
 Actual  Actual  Budget  From   of  Year-to-date From 

 Amount  Amount  Amount  Budget Budget  Actual Amount Prior Year 

Funds   100/500
REVENUE

Property tax revenue
$       376,551 $   19,076,894 $   34,609,174  $ (15,532,280) 55% $    17,774,726 $     1,302,168 
         134,132       1,359,510       1,376,720           (17,210) 99%         1,290,378            69,132 
         101,998          101,998          681,836        (579,838) 15%             96,634              5,364 
         110,521          736,735          800,000           (63,265) 92%           649,901            86,834 
           79,115          113,021          314,505        (201,484) 36%           120,513            (7,492)
         108,130          196,560          415,384        (218,824) 47%           124,849            71,711 
               739             3,497            45,000           (41,503) 8%             19,756          (16,259)
         911,186      21,588,215      38,242,619     (16,654,404) 56%       20,076,757       1,511,458 

Contract revenue
      1,142,262       7,400,484      11,788,511       (4,388,027) 63%         6,404,454          996,030 
      1,142,262       7,400,484      11,788,511       (4,388,027) 63%         6,404,454          996,030 

Other revenue
         130,023          752,110       1,572,597        (820,487) 48%           854,266         (102,156)

                 -              34,956            30,000             4,956 117%               1,112            33,844 
               573             1,102             3,000             (1,898) 37%               2,011               (908)
            2,205            38,595            90,000           (51,405) 43%             28,435            10,160 
         288,108       1,535,241          500,000       1,035,241 307%         2,934,795      (1,399,554)

                 -                    -              30,000           (30,000) 0%         3,325,209      (3,325,209)
                 -                    -                    -                    -   +++                 300               (300)
                 -                    -               1,000             (1,000) 0%                   -                    - 
                 -                    -            790,583        (790,583) 0%                   -                    - 

           72,462          140,063          125,000            15,063 112%               5,106          134,957 
         493,370       2,502,067       3,142,180        (640,113) 80%         7,151,233      (4,649,166)
$     2,546,818 $   31,490,766 $   53,173,310  $ (21,682,544) 59% $    33,632,444 $   (2,141,678)

Property tax - current secured
Property tax - current unsecured
Property tax - current utility

Account Description

Chino Valley Fire District
Monthly Financial Report

As of January 31, 2023

Interest revenue

Weed abatement
Other sales
Other revenue
Mutual aid recoveries
Grants
Sale of fixed assets

Other revenue Totals
REVENUE TOTALS

Property tax - prior and penalty
Property tax - home owner's exemption
Property tax - supplemental
Property tax - weed abatement

Property tax revenue Totals

Current services
Contract revenue Totals

Permit and inspection fees

Capital acquisitions
Donations

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 39 of 167



 Monthly  Year-to-date  Annual  Variance %  Prior Year Variance 
 Actual  Actual  Budget  From   of  Year-to-date From 

 Amount  Amount  Amount  Budget Budget  Actual Amount Prior Year Account Description

Chino Valley Fire District
Monthly Financial Report

As of January 31, 2023

EXPENSE
Salaries and benefits

$     1,531,157 $   10,702,875 $   20,723,832 $   10,020,958 52% $      9,678,634 $     1,024,240 
            5,295            81,780            71,586           (10,194) 114%             50,673            31,106 
           46,450            49,914            48,850             (1,064) 102%             43,879              6,036 
           64,629          982,083       1,073,826            91,743 91%         1,709,485         (727,402)
         404,639       2,912,134       3,997,468       1,085,334 73%         3,204,094         (291,960)
           42,698          391,807       1,200,000          808,193 33%           760,129         (368,322)
               868             6,107            11,315             5,208 54%               6,014                  93 

                 -            120,537          404,000          283,463 30%           216,940          (96,403)
           60,958          425,281          806,791          381,510 53%           374,297            50,984 

                 -                    -            600,000          600,000 0%             70,641          (70,641)
         367,060       6,644,534       8,561,905       1,917,371 78%         6,027,549          616,984 
               268             1,890            12,398            10,508 15%               1,789                101 
               718            10,416            33,468            23,052 31%             11,662            (1,246)
           15,789            17,173            17,024                (149) 101%             14,183              2,989 
         232,910       1,709,578       3,625,760       1,916,182 47%         1,560,964          148,613 
           29,745          225,956          339,068          113,112 67%           232,181            (6,226)
            2,589            18,399            38,160            19,761 48%             16,992              1,407 
           30,306          701,364       1,550,000          848,636 45%         1,061,469         (360,105)
            6,756            46,911            91,141            44,230 51%             43,879              3,031 
           73,569          513,592          914,044          400,452 56%           448,973            64,619 
            5,369            34,602            64,380            29,778 54%             32,920              1,683 
                 -                    -            147,500          147,500 +++                 381               (381)

      2,921,773      25,596,931      44,332,516      18,735,585 58%       25,567,729            29,202 

Technology Allowance

Separation payments

Salaries regular
Salaries - part time
Uniform allowance
Coverage - training and support
Coverage - emergency response and leave

Call back or standby
Coverage - worker's compensation

Deferred comp benefit

Special compensation
Annual leave buyback
PERS retirement
Survivor's benefits
Long term disability
Unemployment insurance
Health and dental insurance
Social security medicare
State disability insurance
Worker's compensation expense
Life insurance

Tuition reimbursement
Salaries and benefits Totals

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 40 of 167



 Monthly  Year-to-date  Annual  Variance %  Prior Year Variance 
 Actual  Actual  Budget  From   of  Year-to-date From 

 Amount  Amount  Amount  Budget Budget  Actual Amount Prior Year Account Description

Chino Valley Fire District
Monthly Financial Report

As of January 31, 2023

Services and supplies
           46,137            65,531          303,287          237,756 22%             51,982            13,549 
           28,377          131,195          274,080          142,885 48%           122,619              8,577 
           13,421            41,739            74,160            32,421 56%             36,232              5,507 
           15,479          324,819          527,774          202,955 62%           245,937            78,883 
               174             1,151            13,750            12,599 8%               4,418            (3,267)
            1,255            17,843            40,697            22,854 44%             16,107              1,736 
            3,346             6,120            16,140            10,020 38%               3,019              3,101 
            1,566             4,410            11,800             7,390 37%               2,724              1,686 
            9,789            93,493          275,717          182,224 34%             46,701            46,792 
           19,587            97,002          190,050            93,048 51%             34,303            62,699 
           15,483            31,795          275,180          243,385 12%             54,964          (23,169)
            1,907            19,929            78,125            58,196 26%             23,007            (3,079)
           36,233          139,203          383,624          244,421 36%             69,001            70,203 
           23,670          175,062          305,664          130,602 57%           153,590            21,472 

                 -            502,392          500,000             (2,392) 100%           427,002            75,390 
            6,917            22,273            56,000            33,727 40%             21,691                582 
               568             8,591            20,000            11,409 43%               5,814              2,777 
               308             1,235            42,700            41,465 3%               3,250            (2,015)

                 -              20,500            21,000                500 98%             18,905              1,595 
                 -                    -            370,000          370,000 0%                   -                    - 
                 -              29,419          350,000          320,581 8%           141,750         (112,331)

         172,254          536,033          704,588          168,555 76%           474,504            61,529 
           68,845          340,981       1,193,378          852,397 29%           268,090            72,890 
            5,393            19,074            27,420             8,346 70%             13,451              5,623 
           11,523          118,263          259,827          141,564 46%           142,960          (24,697)
           48,187          151,126          355,400          204,274 43%           284,338         (133,212)
            5,811            25,749          127,403          101,654 20%             25,172                577 
           34,219          147,694          300,000          152,306 49%           119,275            28,418 
           27,621          164,419          525,075          360,656 31%           265,919         (101,500)

                 -                  (25)                  -                    25 +++               1,155            (1,180)
         598,070       3,237,015       7,622,839       4,385,824 42%         3,077,879          159,136 

Structure maintenance

Services - auditing
County services

Small tools and equipment

Clothing
Telephone
Cellular phones
Electronic equipment maintenance
Food
Memberships
Publications
Legal postings

Inventory equipment
Non-inventory equipment
Special department expenses
Training
Utilities
General liability insurance
Office supplies
Postage
Printing

Services - legal
Services - dispatch
Services - other
General household expense
Medical supplies
Vehicle maintenance
Equipment maintenance
Fuel

Structure rent/lease
Services and supplies Totals

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 41 of 167



 Monthly  Year-to-date  Annual  Variance %  Prior Year Variance 
 Actual  Actual  Budget  From   of  Year-to-date From 

 Amount  Amount  Amount  Budget Budget  Actual Amount Prior Year Account Description

Chino Valley Fire District
Monthly Financial Report

As of January 31, 2023

Capital outlay
                 -                    -                    -                    -   +++                   -                    - 

            9,470             9,470          810,583          801,113 1%             19,398            (9,928)
                 -            323,466          342,070            18,604 95%             79,760          243,706 

           15,623          306,644          433,998          127,354 71%           627,550         (320,906)
                 -                    -                    -                    -   +++                   -                    - 

           25,093          639,580       1,586,651          947,071 40%           726,708          (87,128)
$     3,544,936 $   29,473,526 $   53,542,006 $   24,068,480 55% $    29,372,316 $       101,210 

$     2,546,818 $   31,490,766 $   53,173,310  $ (21,682,544) 59% $    33,632,444 $   (2,141,678)
      3,544,936      29,473,526      53,542,006      24,068,480 55%       29,372,316          101,210 

$      (998,118) $     2,017,240 $      (368,696) $     2,385,936 (547%) $      4,260,128 $   (2,242,888)

Transfers In - Capital Replacement  $                   -    $           63,722  $           63,722  $                   -   100%

Fund   800 - Restricted Assets
REVENUE

Other revenue
       (213,004)          (22,113)          (276,987)          254,874 

REVENUE TOTALS  $      (213,004)  $       (22,113)  $       (276,987) $       254,874 

EXPENSE
Services and supplies

               756             4,506               4,514                  (8)
EXPENSE TOTALS  $             756  $           4,506  $            4,514  $                (8)

Fund   800 - Restricted Assets Totals
$      (213,004) $       (22,113) $       (276,987) $       254,874 
               756             4,506               4,514                  (8)

$      (213,760) $       (26,619) $       (281,501) $       254,882 

Grand Totals, All Funds
$     2,333,814 $   31,532,375 $   53,237,032  $ (21,704,657) $    33,355,457 $   (1,823,082)
      3,545,692      29,478,032      53,542,006      24,063,974       29,376,830         (101,202)

$   (1,211,878) $     2,054,343 $      (304,974) $     2,359,317 $      3,978,627 $   (1,924,284)
EXPENSE TOTALS

Grand Total Net Gain (Loss)

Restricted - Sec115 Trust Interest

Restricted - Sec115 Trust Admin Expense

REVENUE TOTALS
EXPENSE TOTALS

Fund   800 - Restriced Assets Net Gain (Loss)

REVENUE TOTALS, INCL. TRANSFERS IN

Funds   100/500 - Totals
REVENUE TOTALS
EXPENSE TOTALS

Fund   100/500 - Net Gain (Loss)

Capital - vehicles
Capital - lease purchase equipment

Capital outlay Totals
EXPENSE TOTALS

Capital - equipment
Capital - structure improvements
Capital - land

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 42 of 167



9-Aug-17

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT – JULY 2017 

*Excludes restricted 115 Trust activity

Chino Valley Fire District
Monthly Financial Report - Graphs

As of January 31, 2023

 $‐

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

 Year‐to‐date Actual Amount    Prior Year‐to‐date Actual Amount

Two‐Year Revenue Comparison*

Other revenue

Contract revenue

Property tax revenue

 $23,000,000

 $24,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $26,000,000

 $27,000,000

 $28,000,000

 $29,000,000

 $30,000,000

 Year‐to‐date Actual Amount    Prior Year‐to‐date Actual Amount

Two‐Year Expenditure Comparison*

Capital outlay

Services and supplies

Salaries and benefits

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 43 of 167



  MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT  4.  

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2023

TO: JOHN DEMONACO, BOARD PRESIDENT
ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

FROM: DAVE WILLIAMS, FIRE CHIEF

SUBJECT: MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT - DECEMBER 2022

PURPOSE:

Purpose of this report is to inform the Board of Directors of current investment activities of the Chino
Valley Fire District.

DISCUSSION:

Attached is a summary of the cash in bank and District investments. The information is displayed
graphically as follows: 

Chart 1: Presents a Two Year Overview of Cash Deposits and Unrestricted Investment Funds. 
Chart 1A: Presents a One Year Overview of Restricted Investment Funds. 
Chart 2: Presents an Overview of Total Cash and Unrestricted Investments beginning January 1996 to
date. 
Chart 3: Presents an Overview of the Rate of Return from the LAIF account beginning January 1996 to
date. 

As the District generally observes a "buy and hold" strategy, the District typically holds investments
until maturity, unless called by the issuing agency, if applicable. Accordingly, fluctuating market values
of the District's fixed instrument investments, while noted in this report, are only realized if these
investments are liquidated prior to maturity. Government accounting standards require that the District
account for market values below cost, if applicable. 

In FY17, the District deposited $5 million into a Section 115 Retirement Trust and another $1.4 million
after inception. Funds accumulated in the Trust are legally restricted for use in paying down pension
obligations. Accordingly, 115 Trust funds are reported in the Treasurer's Report as restricted
investments. Chart 1A also includes funds received in February 2022 from the City of Chino Hills
under an agreement for construction of Fire Station 68 in Chino Hills. By agreement, these funds are

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 44 of 167



restricted for construction of the new fire station. 

The Sweep earned a posted rate of return of 0.10% as of December 31. 
The monthly average rate of return on the LAIF account was 2.173% for December. The daily yield as
of January 25 was 2.46%. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this Treasurer's Report for the period.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Treasurer's Report December 2022

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 45 of 167



 Citizens Business 
Bank  US Bank  Overnight Sweep  Other Investments  LAIF 

Total Unrestricted 
Cash & Investments 

Principal 115 
Trust Investment* 

Return on 115 
Trust Investment 
(Cummulative)^  115 Trust Balance 

Construction Funds 
Account (Fire Stn 

68) 
45.8% 17.5% 36.7% 100%

 December 2022  $              1,839,548  $                   15,246  $            14,941,934  $              5,697,380  $            11,954,987  $            34,449,095  $         6,417,137  $         1,373,327  $                 7,790,464  $              3,957,129 
 November 2022  $              1,718,771  $                   14,371  $              2,187,912  $                           -    $            11,954,987  $            15,876,041  $         6,417,137  $         1,587,088  $                 8,004,225  $              3,956,804 
 October 2022  $              1,786,759  $                   13,067  $              1,828,877  $              5,650,255  $              8,954,986  $            18,233,944  $         6,417,137  $         1,172,538  $                 7,589,675  $              3,956,479 
 September 2022  $              1,748,565  $                   11,531  $                 718,330  $              5,665,974  $            12,393,298  $            20,537,698  $         6,417,137  $            915,438  $                 7,332,575  $              3,956,143 
 August 2022  $              1,559,973  $                     5,699  $                 894,990  $              3,236,491  $            16,393,298  $            22,090,451  $         6,417,137  $         1,488,946  $                 7,906,083  $              3,955,818 
 July 2022  $              1,614,948  $                     5,663  $                 746,126  $              3,253,474  $            18,893,298  $            24,513,509  $         6,417,137  $         1,762,683  $                 8,179,820  $              3,955,460 
 June 2022  $              1,593,232  $                     4,135  $                 637,584  $              3,243,223  $            26,842,137  $            32,320,311  $         6,417,137  $         1,399,947  $                 7,817,084  $              3,955,146 
 May 2022  $              1,775,043  $                     3,274  $                 271,834  $              3,267,588  $            29,592,137  $            34,909,876  $         6,417,137  $         1,989,739  $                 8,406,876  $              3,954,821 
 April 2022  $              1,885,033  $                     1,992  $              1,577,739  $              3,260,529  $            30,342,137  $            37,067,430  $         6,417,137  $         2,047,340  $                 8,464,477  $              3,954,474 
 March 2022  $              1,829,618  $                        572  $              2,494,572  $              3,287,639  $            20,323,821  $            27,936,222  $         6,103,369  $         2,343,114  $                 7,893,114  $              4,000,405 
 February 2022  $              1,723,025  $                     3,151  $              1,426,473  $              2,846,127  $            23,523,821  $            29,522,597  $         5,550,000  $         2,468,218  $                 8,018,218  $              4,000,066 
 January 2022  $              1,706,170  $                     3,106  $              1,312,415  $              2,899,825  $            24,523,821  $            30,445,337  $         5,550,000  $         2,296,178  $                 7,846,178 
 December 2021  $              1,689,845  $                     1,633  $              2,790,218  $              2,907,357  $            20,519,267  $            27,908,320  $         5,550,000  $         3,429,589  $                 8,979,589 
 November 2021  $              1,789,397  $                 252,759  $              4,904,304  $              2,411,321  $              7,019,267  $            16,377,048  $         5,550,000  $         2,811,804  $                 8,361,804 
 October 2021  $              1,613,466  $                 252,693  $              1,809,228  $              2,412,044  $              5,119,267  $            11,206,698  $         5,550,000  $         2,700,952  $                 8,250,952 
 September 2021  $              1,451,973  $                     2,166  $                 527,655  $              2,665,302  $              8,910,481  $            13,557,577  $         5,550,000  $         2,781,925  $                 8,331,925 
 August 2021  $              1,847,932  $                     2,236  $              2,058,391  $              2,169,155  $            11,410,481  $            17,488,195  $         5,550,000  $         2,678,587  $                 8,228,587 
 July 2021  $              1,749,009  $                     2,339  $                 516,157  $              2,168,852  $            15,160,481  $            19,596,838  $         5,550,000  $         2,577,679  $                 8,127,679 
 June 2021  $              1,581,439  $                     1,786  $              1,110,884  $              1,668,133  $            22,242,163  $            26,604,405  $         5,550,000  $         2,577,679  $                 8,127,679 
 May 2021  $              1,583,230  $                     1,854  $              2,306,466  $              1,669,791  $            24,242,163  $            29,803,504  $         5,550,000  $         2,411,841  $                 7,961,841 
 April 2021  $              1,586,526  $                     1,976  $                 495,208  $              1,169,434  $            25,742,163  $            28,995,307  $         5,380,000  $         2,189,419  $                 7,569,419 
 March 2021  $              1,627,467  $                 500,000  $                 449,093  $              1,169,046  $            15,224,309  $            18,969,915  $         5,380,000  $         2,101,482  $                 7,481,482 
 February 2021  $              1,550,087  $                           -    $                 596,570  $              1,169,635  $            16,724,309  $            20,040,601  $         5,380,000  $         2,207,989  $                 7,587,989 
 January 2021  $              1,647,639  $                           -    $              2,027,914  $              1,171,382  $            16,724,309  $            21,571,244  $         5,380,000  $         1,569,681  $                 6,949,681 

Chino Valley Independent Fire District
Cash & Investment Statement

TREASURER'S REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING:
December 2022

Percent of Portfolio

DISTRICT INVESMENT PORTFOLIO - UNRESTRICTEDCASH ACCOUNTS RESTRICTED

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 46 of 167



6/30/2012
Purchase Price/ Prior Month Current Month Current Coupon Sale/

Purchase Par Value/ Investment Initial Share Market Value/ Market Value/ Unrealized Gain/ Market Maturity Accrued Interest/ Date(s) Redemption
Date Shares Asset Description Type Price Share Price Share Price (Loss) Yield Date Est. Interest Next Year Date Proceeds Comments

12/31/2012 1,000,000$     CalTRUST Investment Trust of CA Pooled 1,000,000$         1,120,872$         1,124,274$        (45,108)$               0.30% n/a N/A N/A Funds available
Shares: 103,944.369   Medium Term Fund Local Agency Pool Investment 10.08$               9.70$                  9.71$                 for withdrawal only

Funds after providing
five days notice.

4/13/2021 249,000$       BMO Harris Bank Certificate 249,000$            218,875$            222,035$           (26,965)$               1.00% 4/13/2026 628                         1/10/2023 Callable quarterly
5 year Certificate of Deposit - 1.00% of Deposit 614                         4/10/2023
CUSIP #:  05600XCP3 621                         7/10/2023
FDIC Insured up to $250,000 628                         10/10/2023
Interest payable quarterly

7/12/2021 500,000$       Federal Home Loan Bank Fixed 499,255$            464,635$            466,719$           (32,536)$               0.40% 7/12/2024 875                         1/12/2023 Callable Quarterly
Bond - 0.35% Coupon, Purchased at 99.851 Income/ 875                         7/12/2023
Term:  3 Years Government
CUSIP #:  3130AMV82 Agency
Rating S&P AA+ Bond
Interest Payable Semi-Annually 

9/23/2021 249,000$       UBS Bank USA Certificate 249,000$            230,657$            232,564$           (16,436)$               0.65% 9/23/2024 135$                       Monthly
3 year Certificate of Deposit  - 0.65% of Deposit
CUSIP #:  90348JT42
FDIC Insured up to $250,000
Interest payable semi-annually

9/23/2021 248,000$       Sallie Mae Bank Certificate 248,000$            215,393$            218,410$           (29,590)$               1.05% 9/22/2026 1,291                      3/22/2023
5 year Certificate of Deposit  - 1.05% of Deposit 1,313                      9/22/2023
CUSIP #: 795451AV5
FDIC Insured up to $250,000
Interest payable monthly

12/8/2021 250,000$       Federal Home Loan Bank Fixed 247,978$            229,980$            231,126$           (16,852)$               1.00% 12/27/2024 913$                       4/27/2023 Callable quarterly
Bond - 1.0% Coupon, Purchased at 99.191 Income/ 913$                       10/27/2023
Term:  3 Years Government
CUSIP #:  3130APK46 Agency
Rating S&P AA+ Bond
Interest Payable Semi-Annually 

12/13/2021 250,000$       Federal Farm Credit Bureau Fixed 250,000$            239,015$            239,909$           (10,091)$               0.66% 12/13/2023 825$                       12/13/2022 Callable anytime
Bond - 0.66% Coupon, Purchased at par Income/ 825$                       6/13/2023
Term:  2 Years Government
CUSIP #:  3133ENGW4 Agency
Rating S&P AA+ Bond
Interest Payable Semi-Annually 

3/4/2022 250,000$       BMW Bank Certificate
3 year Certificate of Deposit  - 1.80% of Deposit 247,000$            230,633$            232,833$           (14,167)$               1.80% 3/4/2025 2,205                      3/4/2023
CUSIP #:  05580AK37 2,241                      9/4/2023
FDIC Insured up to $250,000
Interest payable semi-annually

3/9/2022 250,000$       American Express National Bank Certificate
3 year Certificate of Deposit  - 1.80% of Deposit 247,000$            230,517$            232,733$           (14,267)$               1.80% 3/10/2025 2,205                      3/10/2023
CUSIP #: 02589ABP6 2,241                      9/4/2023
FDIC Insured up to $250,000
Interest payable semi-annually

Chino Valley Independent Fire District
OTHER INVESTMENTS

TREASURER'S REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING:
December 2022

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 47 of 167



6/30/2012
Purchase Price/ Prior Month Current Month Current Coupon Sale/

Purchase Par Value/ Investment Initial Share Market Value/ Market Value/ Unrealized Gain/ Market Maturity Accrued Interest/ Date(s) Redemption
Date Shares Asset Description Type Price Share Price Share Price (Loss) Yield Date Est. Interest Next Year Date Proceeds Comments

Chino Valley Independent Fire District
OTHER INVESTMENTS

TREASURER'S REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING:
December 2022

3/23/2022 500,000$       United States Treasury Treasury 488,402$            479,297$            481,055$           (7,347)$                 2.00% 11/30/2023 1,250$                    11/30/2022 114 days of accrued interest - $782.97
2 year U.S. Treasury Note - 2% Note 1,250                      5/30/2023
CUSIP #:  91282CDM0
Interest payable semi-annually

9/12/2022 2,032,000      United States Treasury Treasury 1,999,336$         2,008,368$         2,015,722$        16,386$                3.35% 3/9/2023 32,664$                  3/9/2023
6 Month U.S. Treasury Note - 3.32% Note

Current Month Investment Trading Activity:

NONE
% of % Allowed Investments Prior Month Current Month

Portfolio2 per Policy At Cost1 Market Value Market Value
Pooled Investment Funds (JPA)1 3% No limit 1,124,274$         1,120,872$        1,124,274$           
Certificates of Deposit2 4% 30% 1,240,000           1,126,075          1,138,575             
Federal Agency Obligations 3% No limit 997,233              933,630             937,754                
Treasury Bills 6% No limit 1,999,336           2,008,368          2,015,722             
Treasury Notes 1% No limit 488,402              479,297             481,055                

5,849,245$         5,668,242$        5,697,380$           

1Investment at cost value, plus unrealized losses (if any), and accrued interest
2Of total investment portfolio, including Sweep & LAIF Investments

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 48 of 167



 $-

 $5

 $10

 $15

 $20

 $25

 $30

 $35

 $40

 D
ecem

ber 2022

 N
ovem

ber 2022

 O
ctober 2022

 Septem
ber 2022

 August 2022

 July 2022

 June 2022

 M
ay 2022

 April 2022

 M
arch 2022

 February 2022

 January 2022

 D
ecem

ber 2021

 N
ovem

ber 2021

 O
ctober 2021

 Septem
ber 2021

 August 2021

 July 2021

 June 2021

 M
ay 2021

 April 2021

 M
arch 2021

 February 2021

 January 2021

M
illi

on
s

Chart 1:  Cash & Unrestricted Investment Balances        
Two Year Perspective

 Citizens Business Bank Account  US Bank
 Overnight Sweep  Other Investments
LAIF

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 49 of 167



 $-

 $1

 $2

 $3

 $4

 $5

 $6

 $7

 $8

 $9

 D
ecem

ber 2022

 N
ovem

ber 2022

 O
ctober 2022

 Septem
ber 2022

 August 2022

 July 2022

 June 2022

 M
ay 2022

 April 2022

 M
arch 2022

 February 2022

 January 2022

 D
ecem

ber 2021

 N
ovem

ber 2021

 O
ctober 2021

 Septem
ber 2021

 August 2021

 July 2021

 June 2021

 M
ay 2021

 April 2021

 M
arch 2021

 February 2021

 January 2021

M
illi

on
s

Chart 1A:  Restricted Investment Balances                      
Two Year Perspective

 115 Trust Balance  Construction Funds Account (Fire Stn 68)

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 50 of 167



 $-

 $5

 $10

 $15

 $20

 $25

 $30

 $35

 $40

D
ecem

ber 2022
July 2022
February 2022
Septem

ber 2021
April 2021
N

ovem
ber 2020

June 2020
January 2020
August 2019
M

arch 2019
O

ctober 2018
M

ay 2018
D

ecem
ber 2017

July 2017
February 2017
Septem

ber 2016
April 2016
N

ovem
ber 2015

June 2015
January 2015
August 2014
M

arch 2014
O

ctober 2013
M

ay 2013
D

ecem
ber 2012

July 2012
February 2012
Septem

ber 2011
April 2011
N

ovem
ber 2010

June 2010
January 2010
August 2009
M

arch 2009
O

ctober 2008
M

ay 2008
D

ecem
ber 2007

July 2007
February 2007
Septem

ber 2006
April 2006
N

ovem
ber 2005

June 2005
January 2005
August 2004
M

arch 2004
O

ctober 2003
M

ay 2003
D

ecem
ber 2002

July 2002
February 2002
Septem

ber 2001
April 2001
N

ovem
ber 2000

June 2000
January 2000
August 1999
M

arch 1999
O

ctober 1998
M

ay 1998
D

ecem
ber 1997

July 1997
February 1997
Septem

ber 1996
April 1996

M
illi

on
s

Chart 2:  Total Cash & Unrestricted Investments                 
January 1996 to date*

*Note:  The District paid off pension side-fund obligations totaling approximately $4.75 million in July, 2011 & deposited $5 million 
into a IRS Section 115 Retirement Trust in April 2017. Funds in the 115 Trust are legally restricted to fund pension obligations.

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 51 of 167



0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

D
ecem

ber 2022
July 2022
February 2022
Septem

ber 2021
April 2021
N

ovem
ber 2020

June 2020
January 2020
August 2019
M

arch 2019
O

ctober 2018
M

ay 2018
D

ecem
ber 2017

July 2017
February 2017
Septem

ber 2016
April 2016
N

ovem
ber 2015

June 2015
January 2015
August 2014
M

arch 2014
O

ctober 2013
M

ay 2013
D

ecem
ber 2012

July 2012
February 2012
Septem

ber 2011
April 2011
N

ovem
ber 2010

June 2010
January 2010
August 2009
M

arch 2009
O

ctober 2008
M

ay 2008
D

ecem
ber 2007

July 2007
February 2007
Septem

ber 2006
April 2006
N

ovem
ber 2005

June 2005
January 2005
August 2004
M

arch 2004
O

ctober 2003
M

ay 2003
D

ecem
ber 2002

July 2002
February 2002
Septem

ber 2001
April 2001
N

ovem
ber 2000

June 2000
January 2000
August 1999
M

arch 1999
O

ctober 1998
M

ay 1998
D

ecem
ber 1997

July 1997
February 1997
Septem

ber 1996
April 1996

Chart 3:  LAIF Historical Rate of Return 
January 1996 to date

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 52 of 167



  WARRANTS  5.  

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2023

TO: JOHN DEMONACO, BOARD PRESIDENT
ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

FROM: DAVE WILLIAMS, FIRE CHIEF

SUBJECT: WARRANTS FOR JANUARY 2023 #56748 THROUGH #56911

PURPOSE:

I have reviewed the warrants below and recommend approval.
 
                                                                                               

NUMBER WARRANTS DATE AMOUNT
2023-387 56748 – 56781 01/04/2023 $35,469.81
2023-408 56782 – 56835 01/11/2023 146,289.34
2023-412 56836 – 56849 01/18/2023 204,345.53
2023-424 56850 – 56911 01/25/2023 166,261.85
VOIDS: TOTAL $552,366.53

RECOMMENDATION:

Expenses as audited are within budget for warrants 56748 through 56911 and are hereby
submitted for approval.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Warrants for January 2023

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 53 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 54 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 55 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 56 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 57 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 58 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 59 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 60 of 167



Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 61 of 167



   BOARD MEETINGS/TRAVEL  6.  

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT

NO STAFF REPORT

None.

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 62 of 167



  CONSENT CALENDAR    7.

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2023

TO: JOHN DEMONACO, BOARD PRESIDENT
ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

FROM: DAVE WILLIAMS, FIRE CHIEF

SUBJECT: FINDINGS TO CONDUCT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
VIRTUALLY UNDER ASSEMBLY BILL 361

PURPOSE:

Purpose is for the Board of Directors to state its finding considering the circumstances of the current
proclaimed state of emergency; and state finding that state or local officials have imposed or
recommended measures to promote social distancing; and as a result, the Fire District may hold regular
and special board meetings and regular and special committee meetings virtually by videoconference, in
accordance with AB 361

BACKGROUND:

Governor Newsom’s Executive Orders N-29-20 and N-35-20, which relaxed some of the 
Brown Act’s teleconferencing provisions during the COVID-19 pandemic, expired on September 30,
2021. On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed AB 361, which amends sections of the
Brown Act to allow legislative bodies to more easily hold teleconference meetings during a state of
emergency.
In order to utilize these provisions of the Brown Act, the Fire District must find that it has considered
the circumstances of the state of emergency, and either:
(1) state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing as a
result of the proclaimed state of emergency, or 
(2) the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in
person.
The Fire District must make these findings every 30 days for as long as the District is conducting
virtual meetings under AB 361.
Fire District Legal Counsel has confirmed these findings. Although the Governor’s Executive Orders
dealing with virtual meetings have expired, the original state of emergency for COVID-19 is still in
effect. In addition, the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) and the County of San
Bernardino continue to recommend social distancing as a result of the COVID-19 state of emergency.

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 63 of 167



As such, the Fire District Legal Counsel recommends that the Board of Directors make these findings
at every regular Board meeting to meet the “every 30 days” requirement of AB 361. These findings
will apply to all regular and special Board and committee meetings, to allow for virtual
videoconference meetings under AB 361.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board of Directors state its finding considering the circumstances of the
current proclaimed state of emergency; and state finding that state or local officials have imposed or
recommended measures to promote social distancing; and as a result, the Fire District may hold regular
and special board meetings and regular and special committee meetings remotely by videoconference,
in accordance with AB 361.
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 64 of 167



  NEW BUSINESS    8.

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2023

TO: JOHN DEMONACO, BOARD PRESIDENT
ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

FROM: DAVE WILLIAMS, FIRE CHIEF

SUBJECT: 2022-23 MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

PURPOSE:

Purpose is to conduct a mid-year budget review for discussion purposes.

DISCUSSION:

See attached
 

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board discuss the mid-year budget review and provide direction to staff.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Discussion Attachment
Monthly Financial Attachment

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 65 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District 
STAFF REPORT ATTACHMENT 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Staff has conducted a mid-year budget review and analysis, focusing on budget trends and 
projections of revenues and expenditures for the balance of the fiscal year.  As of December 31, 
2022, the District is half way through the fiscal year.  The associated analysis is summarized below. 
 
Revenues 
 
As graphically depicted below, through December 31, total revenues amounted to 54% of budget, 
compared to a range of 48% to 56% of actual revenues for the same time period year-to-date for 
the prior four fiscal years.  Property tax-related revenues, including current services, are at 54% of 
budget year-to-date this fiscal year, compared to 54% of actual revenues realized through the same 
time period last year. 
 
The main driver of the decrease in total year-to-date revenues over last fiscal year (as a percentage 
of budget) is a $953 thousand decrease in mutual aid recoveries over the prior year due to decreased 
mutual aid activity in the current year. Overall mutual aid recoveries are still a net positive over 
budget and currently include nearly $750 thousand in unbudgeted revenues.  The assistance by 
hire program, which was initiated to provide emergency transport services starting in August of 
2021 expired in October of 2022. Fiscal year to date revenues associated with the Assistance by 
Hire agreement are approximately $880 thousand. As this program was initiated on an urgent basis 
to fill a critical need in for emergency patient transport in our community, the program was not 
contemplated in the original budget.  
 
An agreement between the CONFIRE JPA and Chino Valley Fire District to provide a temporary 
Assistant to the Director position began early in fiscal year 22-23. Current revenues associated 
with this agreement amount to nearly $125 thousand as of December 31, 2022. 
 
Approximately $791 thousand was budgeted in revenues in the Capital Acquisitions account in 
relation to the revenue recognition treatment of the Chino Hills contribution for the construction 
of Fire Station 68. The recognition method was changed due governmental accounting 
requirements which will result in a budget adjustment to revenues to zero out the account as the 
full contribution from Chino Hills was recorded in fiscal year 21-22.  
 
Exclusive of the favorable budget variance in mutual aid, total revenues received this fiscal year-
to-date through December 31 appear to be largely in line with that of recent prior years, and on 
track with budget.   
 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 66 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District 
Finance Committee Staff Report Attachment 
2022-23 Mid-Year Budget Review – January 23, 2023 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
 
The chart above illustrates the trend in year-to-date total revenues over the last five years. 
 
 
Expenditures   
 
Fiscal year-to-date expenditures were 48% of overall budget through December, compared to a 
range of 42% to 52% for the prior four fiscal years-to-date through December 31.  The chart below 
depicts the five-year trend in fiscal year-to-date expenses as a percent of actuals or budget (FY23).  
 
 

 

48%

50%

52%

54%

56%

58%

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

% of YTD Revenues

42%

44%

46%

48%

50%

52%

54%

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

% of YTD Expenditures

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 67 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District 
Finance Committee Staff Report Attachment 
2022-23 Mid-Year Budget Review – January 23, 2023 
Page 3 
 

 
 

 
 
Salary and benefit expenditures for the fiscal year-to-date through December 31 are trending lower 
than in recent years past.  This is due primarily to decreased overtime costs associated with the 
lower than expected mutual aid services in the current year. 
 
The detailed portion of the Monthly Financial Report at December 31, 2022 is attached to this 
report. Those line items shaded in blue represent favorable budget trends, while those shaded in 
red represent unfavorable budget trends.  A five-year budget summary at mid-year is presented 
below:   
 
 

 
 
 
Budgetary savings may result from unexpended funds in the areas of regular salaries, special 
compensation and health and dental insurance, due primarily to a number of open positions and 
temporary vacancies resulting from worker’s compensation illness and injury.   There tends to be 
an inverse relationship between regular staffing costs and overtime costs due to the constant 
staffing nature of the District’s emergency services. 
 
It is anticipated that final budget adjustments for this fiscal year will be presented to the Board for 
approval in either March or April, and no board action is required at this time.  Based on the budget 
surplus realized last fiscal year, staff will be bringing forward recommendations for additional 
discretionary pension contributions for the Board’s consideration at that time at as well.  Any such 
approved request would necessitate a budget adjustment. 
 

Actuals YTD 
Thru 

December

% of 
Actuals 

YTD

Actuals YTD 
Thru 

December

% of 
Actuals 

YTD

Actuals YTD 
Thru 

December

% of 
Actuals 

YTD

Actuals YTD 
Thru 

December

% of 
Actuals 

YTD

Actuals YTD 
Thru 

December

% of 
BUDGET 

YTD
Fund: 100/500 General Fund FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23
Revenue
4000 - Property tax revenue  $15,580,288 50%  $17,119,368 52%  $17,928,726 51%  $19,556,908 54%  $20,677,028 54%
4100 - Contract revenue 5,672,352 57% 4,796,648 47% 5,937,587 54% 5,217,117 46% 6,258,222 53%
4200 - Other revenue 1,250,548 41% 1,044,816 46% 831,306 16% 2,961,556 138% 2,008,696 64%
Revenue Totals  $22,503,188 51%  $22,960,832 51%  $24,697,619 48%  $27,735,581 56%  $28,943,946 54%

Expenditures
6000 - Salaries and benefits  $16,301,060 46%  $17,587,001 48%  $21,072,378 52%  $22,320,916 55%  $22,675,157 51%
7000 - Services and supplies 1,943,778 33% 2,678,929 48% 2,281,544 42% 2,699,934 40% 2,638,946 35%
8000 - Capital outlay 394,966 14% 265,799 26% 336,053 9% 720,768 48% 614,488 39%
Expenditure Totals  $18,639,804 42%  $20,531,729 47%  $23,689,975 48%  $25,741,618 52%  $25,928,591 48%

Net Change in Fund Balance  $   3,863,384  $   2,429,103  $   1,007,644  $   1,993,963  $   3,015,355 

Note:  Totals exclude restricted 115 Trust activities

FY2023

Budget Summary - Mid-Year Trends
FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 68 of 167



 Monthly  Year-to-date  Annual  Variance %  Prior Year Variance 
 Actual  Actual  Budget  From   of  Year-to-date From 

 Amount  Amount  Amount  Budget Budget  Actual Amount Prior Year 

Funds   100/500
REVENUE

Property tax revenue
$   13,306,295 $   18,700,342 $   34,609,174  $ (15,908,832) 54% $    17,417,345 $     1,282,997 
           26,317       1,225,378       1,376,720        (151,342) 89%         1,250,257          (24,879)

                 -                    -            681,836        (681,836) 0%             96,634          (96,634)
           27,269          626,214          800,000        (173,786) 78%           626,765               (551)
           33,906            33,906          314,505        (280,599) 11%             36,154            (2,248)
           12,688            88,431          415,384        (326,953) 21%           110,729          (22,298)

                 -               2,757            45,000           (42,243) 6%             19,024          (16,267)
     13,406,475      20,677,028      38,242,619     (17,565,591) 54%       19,556,908       1,120,120 

Contract revenue
      1,187,338       6,258,222      11,788,511       (5,530,289) 53%         5,217,117       1,041,105 
      1,187,338       6,258,222      11,788,511       (5,530,289) 53%         5,217,117       1,041,105 

Other revenue
           70,130          622,088       1,572,597        (950,509) 40%           718,717          (96,630)

                 -              34,956            30,000             4,956 117%               1,112            33,844 
                 -                  530             3,000             (2,471) 18%               2,011            (1,481)

            1,840            36,390            90,000           (53,610) 40%             27,150              9,240 
         254,846       1,247,133          500,000          747,133 249%         2,201,002         (953,870)

                 -                    -              30,000           (30,000) 0%               5,000            (5,000)
                 -                    -                    -                    -   +++                 300               (300)
                 -                    -               1,000             (1,000) 0%                   -                    - 
                 -                    -            790,583        (790,583) 0%                   -                    - 

            1,779            67,600          125,000           (57,400) 54%               6,264            61,336 
         328,594       2,008,696       3,142,180       (1,133,484) 64%         2,961,556         (952,860)
$   14,922,407 $   28,943,946 $   53,173,310  $ (24,229,364) 54% $    27,735,581 $     1,208,366 

Property tax - current secured
Property tax - current unsecured
Property tax - current utility

Account Description

Chino Valley Fire District
Monthly Financial Report

As of December 31, 2022 

Interest revenue

Weed abatement
Other sales
Other revenue
Mutual aid recoveries
Grants
Sale of fixed assets

Other revenue Totals
REVENUE TOTALS

Property tax - prior and penalty
Property tax - home owner's exemption
Property tax - supplemental
Property tax - weed abatement

Property tax revenue Totals

Current services
Contract revenue Totals

Permit and inspection fees

Capital acquisitions
Donations

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 69 of 167



 Monthly  Year-to-date  Annual  Variance %  Prior Year Variance 
 Actual  Actual  Budget  From   of  Year-to-date From 

 Amount  Amount  Amount  Budget Budget  Actual Amount Prior Year Account Description

Chino Valley Fire District
Monthly Financial Report

As of December 31, 2022 

EXPENSE
Salaries and benefits

$     1,527,923 $     9,171,717 $   20,723,832 $   11,552,115 44% $      8,335,180 $       836,537 
           18,242            76,485            71,586             (4,899) 107%             43,240            33,245 

                 -               3,464            48,850            45,386 7%                   29              3,436 
           77,091          917,454       1,073,826          156,372 85%         1,275,919         (358,465)
         370,088       2,507,495       3,997,468       1,489,973 63%         2,955,441         (447,946)
           27,467          349,109       1,200,000          850,891 29%           662,241         (313,133)
               930             5,239            11,315             6,076 46%               5,239                  - 
           59,769          120,537          404,000          283,463 30%             66,222            54,315 
           61,788          364,323          806,791          442,468 45%           321,748            42,575 

                 -                    -            600,000          600,000 0%               6,466            (6,466)
         312,464       6,277,473       8,561,905       2,284,432 73%         5,673,351          604,123 
               266             1,622            12,398            10,776 13%               1,539                  83 
            1,585             9,697            33,468            23,771 29%               9,947               (250)
                 62             1,384            17,024            15,640 8%                   -                1,384 
         242,924       1,476,668       3,625,760       2,149,092 41%         1,341,747          134,921 
           30,031          196,211          339,068          142,857 58%           198,907            (2,696)
            2,333            15,811            38,160            22,349 41%             13,639              2,171 
           12,631          671,058       1,550,000          878,942 43%           956,676         (285,617)
            6,610            40,154            91,141            50,987 44%             37,730              2,424 
           72,185          440,022          914,044          474,022 48%           386,885            53,137 
            4,969            29,233            64,380            35,147 45%             28,390                844 
                 -                    -            147,500          147,500 +++                 381               (381)

      2,829,357      22,675,157      44,332,516      21,657,359 51%       22,320,916          354,241 

Technology Allowance

Separation payments

Salaries regular
Salaries - part time
Uniform allowance
Coverage - training and support
Coverage - emergency response and leave

Call back or standby
Coverage - worker's compensation

Deferred comp benefit

Special compensation
Annual leave buyback
PERS retirement
Survivor's benefits
Long term disability
Unemployment insurance
Health and dental insurance
Social security medicare
State disability insurance
Worker's compensation expense
Life insurance

Tuition reimbursement
Salaries and benefits Totals

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 70 of 167



 Monthly  Year-to-date  Annual  Variance %  Prior Year Variance 
 Actual  Actual  Budget  From   of  Year-to-date From 

 Amount  Amount  Amount  Budget Budget  Actual Amount Prior Year Account Description

Chino Valley Fire District
Monthly Financial Report

As of December 31, 2022 

Services and supplies
            1,357            19,394          303,287          283,893 6%             50,369          (30,975)
           23,360          102,819          274,080          171,261 38%           112,580            (9,761)
               849            28,318            74,160            45,842 38%             35,128            (6,810)
           63,589          309,341          527,774          218,433 59%           239,127            70,213 
               123                978            13,750            12,772 7%               4,328            (3,351)
               375            16,588            40,697            24,109 41%             15,347              1,241 
               332             2,774            16,140            13,366 17%               2,830                 (56)
               310             2,844            11,800             8,956 24%               1,680              1,164 
            8,986            83,703          275,717          192,014 30%             39,645            44,059 
            4,516            77,415          190,050          112,635 41%             34,303            43,112 
            1,152            16,312          275,180          258,868 6%             54,834          (38,522)
            1,394            18,021            78,125            60,104 23%             22,119            (4,097)
            9,491          102,970          383,624          280,654 27%             65,308            37,662 
           19,325          151,392          305,664          154,272 50%           134,295            17,097 

                 -            502,392          500,000             (2,392) 100%           428,396            73,996 
            3,100            15,356            56,000            40,644 27%             18,885            (3,528)
            2,890             8,023            20,000            11,977 40%               5,461              2,562 
               625                927            42,700            41,773 2%               3,050            (2,124)
            1,500            20,500            21,000                500 98%             15,000              5,500 
                 -                    -            370,000          370,000 0%                   -                    - 
                 -              29,419          350,000          320,581 8%           136,596         (107,177)
                 -            363,779          704,588          340,809 52%           316,181            47,598 

           17,769          272,135       1,193,378          921,243 23%           221,855            50,281 
               160            13,681            27,420            13,739 50%             13,451                230 
           11,463          106,740          259,827          153,087 41%           123,515          (16,776)
           11,170          102,938          355,400          252,462 29%           246,361         (143,423)
               201            19,938          127,403          107,465 16%             13,685              6,253 
            8,352          113,475          300,000          186,525 38%           106,480              6,994 
           16,177          136,798          525,075          388,277 26%           245,504         (108,706)

                 -                  (25)                  -                    25 +++                 990            (1,015)
         208,564       2,638,946       7,622,839       4,983,893 35%         2,707,304          (68,358)

Structure maintenance

Services - auditing
County services

Small tools and equipment

Clothing
Telephone
Cellular phones
Electronic equipment maintenance
Food
Memberships
Publications
Legal postings

Inventory equipment
Non-inventory equipment
Special department expenses
Training
Utilities
General liability insurance
Office supplies
Postage
Printing

Services - legal
Services - dispatch
Services - other
General household expense
Medical supplies
Vehicle maintenance
Equipment maintenance
Fuel

Structure rent/lease
Services and supplies Totals

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 71 of 167



 Monthly  Year-to-date  Annual  Variance %  Prior Year Variance 
 Actual  Actual  Budget  From   of  Year-to-date From 

 Amount  Amount  Amount  Budget Budget  Actual Amount Prior Year Account Description

Chino Valley Fire District
Monthly Financial Report

As of December 31, 2022 

Capital outlay
                 -                    -                    -                    -   +++                   -                    - 
                 -                    -            810,583          810,583 0%             19,398          (19,398)
                 -            323,466          342,070            18,604 95%             67,369          256,097 
                 -            291,022          433,998          142,976 67%           626,631         (335,609)
                 -                    -                    -                    -   +++                   -                    - 
                 -            614,488       1,586,651          972,163 39%           713,398          (98,910)

$     3,037,921 $   25,928,591 $   53,542,006 $   27,613,415 48% $    25,741,618 $       186,973 

$   14,922,407 $   28,943,946 $   53,173,310  $ (24,229,364) 54% $    27,735,581 $     1,208,366 
      3,037,921      25,928,591      53,542,006      27,613,415 48%       25,741,618          186,973 
$   11,884,486 $     3,015,355 $      (368,696) $     3,384,051 (818%) $      1,993,963 $     1,021,392 

Transfers In - Capital Replacement  $                   -    $           63,722  $           63,722  $                   -   100%

Fund   800 - Restricted Assets
REVENUE

Other revenue
         415,300          190,891           855,660         (664,769)

REVENUE TOTALS  $       415,300  $       190,891  $         855,660  $      (664,769)

EXPENSE
Services and supplies

               750             3,750               3,750                  - 
EXPENSE TOTALS  $             750  $           3,750  $            3,750 $                - 

Fund   800 - Restricted Assets Totals
$       415,300 $       190,891 $         855,660 $      (664,769)
               750             3,750               3,750                  - 
$       414,550 $       187,141 $         851,910 $      (664,769)

Grand Totals, All Funds
$   15,337,707 $   29,198,559 $   53,237,032  $ (24,038,473) $    28,591,241 $       607,319 
      3,038,671      25,932,341      53,542,006      27,609,665       25,745,368         (186,973)
$   12,299,036 $     3,266,218 $      (304,974) $     3,571,192 $      2,845,873 $       420,345 

EXPENSE TOTALS
Grand Total Net Gain (Loss)

Restricted - Sec115 Trust Interest

Restricted - Sec115 Trust Admin Expense

REVENUE TOTALS
EXPENSE TOTALS

Fund   800 - Restriced Assets Net Gain (Loss)

REVENUE TOTALS, INCL. TRANSFERS IN

Funds   100/500 - Totals
REVENUE TOTALS
EXPENSE TOTALS

Fund   100/500 - Net Gain (Loss)

Capital - vehicles
Capital - lease purchase equipment

Capital outlay Totals
EXPENSE TOTALS

Capital - equipment
Capital - structure improvements
Capital - land

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 72 of 167



  NEW BUSINESS    9.

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2023

TO: JOHN DEMONACO, BOARD PRESIDENT
ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

FROM: DAVE WILLIAMS, FIRE CHIEF

SUBJECT: AGREEMENT NO. 2023 - 01 WITH SHUSTER ADVISORY GROUP FOR
FIDUCIARY SERVICES AND RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 APPOINTING
THE HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR AS PLAN ADMINISTRATOR

PURPOSE:

Purpose is for the Board of Directors to review, approve and authorize the Fire Chief to execute
Agreement No. 2023-01 with Shuster Advisory Group to provide investment advisory and fiduciary
services for the Chino Valley Fire District’s Deferred Compensation Plans.  Additionally, approve
Resolution No. 2023-01 appointing the Human Resources Director as Plan Administrator.  The
resolution is at the Board’s discretion and does not affect the agreement with Shuster Advisory Group.

DISCUSSION:

The Fire District provides employer-sponsored deferred compensation plans under the Section 457(b)
and 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). The 457(b) plans provide tax benefits to employees
who make deposits into the Plan for their retirement. The 401(a) plan provides defined contribution
payments by the Fire District to District employees. As the plan sponsor, the Fire District has certain
fiduciary duties and responsibilities under State law (California State Constitution, Article XVI,
Section 17). These duties and responsibilities focus on ensuring the operation and investment of the
public retirement plan is the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to participants and beneficiaries.
Specifically, fiduciary responsibilities include:
 
-Investing the assets of the plan;
-Administering the plan, and 
-Engaging in a prudent process for making all decisions related to the operation of the plan, including
decisions related to the plan’s investments and related services.
 
Because the increasing complexity of the investment process and associated responsibilities and staff’s
prior experience with Shuster Advisory Group, staff sought to seek more information about the trends

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 73 of 167



affecting the employer sponsored retirement plan marketplace and laws governing fiduciary requirement
for the operation vis-à-vis the Fire District’s sponsored plans with Nationwide, the provider of the Fire
District’s deferred compensation plans. In addition, in an effort to fulfill the District’s fiduciary
responsibility to provide plans in the best interest of participating employees, staff sought to conduct a
review the existing plans and the fees paid by the participants of the Nationwide deferred compensation
plans. District staff provided Shuster information on the 401(a) and 457(b) programs. As previously
stated, District staff have prior experience working with the firm’s founder, Mark Shuster and his team.
They have been successful in negotiating lower fees and expanding investment options for over 70
cities and special districts throughout California. In September 2022, Shuster Advisory Group
conducted an initial review of existing plans at no cost to the District or participants of those plans.
This was done in order to provide staff with comparison to what the District currently has in place and
what it should seek to bring the District into compliance as well as to offer lower fees as well as
expanded investment opportunities.
 
The review included an evaluation of all contract-related data, including, but not limited to:
administrative fees associated with the plans, investment options, asset values, fixed account interest
rates, and additional fees that may be charged by the plans. Utilizing this information, Shuster Advisory
Group was able to negotiate an approximate 75% reduction in fees. Shuster’s team met with employees
represented by the Teamsters and the Fire Association. The two groups were enthusiastic with the
potential savings, which could result in higher rates of return, and were eager for the District to engage
the services of Shuster Advisory Group.
 
With the recommended approval of the attached agreement, there is no cost to the District to engage the
services of Shuster Advisory Group. The monthly fee of $2,500 paid to Shuster Advisory group will
be paid from the plan assets, which does not represent a change to the current practice since Nationwide
already collects fees from the plan assets. As such, there are no extra costs incurred to the District or
the plan participants. The proposed contract enables the District to obtain the needed fiduciary,
investment and advocacy services the District and plan participants need. The contract does not include
a minimum contract period, which is a benefit to the District. The contract may be terminated with a 60-
day notice.
 
Lastly, it is recommended the Board of Directors allow the position of the Human Resources Director
to serve as the Plan Administrator.  The primary reason is that the Human Resources Director is more
familiar with the deferred compensation benefits as provided by the Chino Valley Independent Fire
District.  The Human Resources Director will provide regular updates to the Human Resources
Committee regarding plan changes instituted by Schuster Advisory Group. The approval of the
resolution is a separate item from the agreement with Shuster Advisory Group.
 

 

FINDING:

Based on Shuster Advisory Group's performance and demonstrated experience, staff is recommending
engaging the services of Shuster Advisory Group to provide investment advisory and consulting
services for employee plans and to implement a due diligence process for the District to follow and
ensure the District is meeting its fiduciary responsibilities.

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 74 of 167



 
It is also recommended the Board of Directors allow for the position of Human Resources Director to
serve as the Plan Administrator with Human Resources Committee being advised of any changes to the
investment plans.  The approval of this resolution is a separate item from the agreement with Shuster
Advisory Group.
 
If the agreement with Shuster Advisory Group is approved, it is anticipated the new investment options
and lower fees will occur in approximately 60 days. Employees will be notified via mail and/or email
of the changes.
 

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board of Directors approve and authorize the Fire Chief to execute Agreement
No. 2023-01 with Shuster Advisory Group to provide investment advisory and fiduciary services for
the Chino Valley Fire District’s Deferred Compensation Plans. Additionally, approve Resolution No.
2023-01 appointing the Human Resources Director as Plan Administrator. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Agreement No. 2023-01 Shuster Advisory Group, LLC
Resolution No. 2023-01

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 75 of 167



CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into as of February 8, 2023 by and between the 
Chino Valley Independent Fire District, a public agency organized and operating under the laws 
of the State of California with its principal place of business at 14011 City Center Drive, Chino 
Hills, California 91709 (“District”), and Shuster Advisory Group, LLC, a California limited liability 
company with its principal place of business at 225 S. Lake Ave., Ste. 600, Pasadena, CA 91101 
(hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”).  District and Consultant are sometimes individually 
referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties” in this Agreement. 

RECITALS 

A. District is a public agency of the State of California and is in need of professional 
services for the following project: 

Consultant will provide fiduciary and non-fiduciary services for the plan administrator of the 
retirement plans of the Chino Valley Independent Fire District, both District’s 457(b) Deferred 
Compensation Plan and 401(a) Plan, as set forth in additional detail within the incorporated Scope 
of Services.  

B. Consultant is duly licensed and has the necessary qualifications to provide such 
services. 

C. The Parties desire by this Agreement to establish the terms for District to retain 
Consultant to provide the services described herein. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Services.

Consultant shall provide the District with the services described in the Scope of Services 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” To the extent there are discrepancies between this Agreement 
and the attached Scope of Services, the Scope of Services control. 

2. Compensation.

a. Subject to paragraph 2(b) below, the District shall pay for such services in
accordance with the Schedule of Charges set forth in Appendix “D” of the incorporated Scope of 
Services.  

b. In no event shall the total amount paid for services rendered by Consultant
under this Agreement exceed the sum of $2,500.00 per month, subject to the terms within 
Appendix “D” of the incorporated Scope of Services.  This amount is to cover all printing and 
related costs, and the District will not pay any additional fees for printing expenses.  Periodic 
payments shall be made within 30 days of receipt of an invoice which includes a detailed 
description of the work performed.  Payments to Consultant for work performed will be made on 
a monthly billing basis.  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 76 of 167



 

 

 
3. Additional Work. 

If changes in the work seem merited by Consultant or the District, and informal 
consultations with the other party indicate that a change is warranted, it shall be processed in the 
following manner:  a letter outlining the changes shall be forwarded to the District by Consultant 
with a statement of estimated changes in fee or time schedule.  An amendment to this Agreement 
shall be prepared by the District and executed by both Parties before performance of such 
services, or the District will not be required to pay for the changes in the scope of work.  Such 
amendment shall not render ineffective or invalidate unaffected portions of this Agreement. 

4. Maintenance of Records. 

Books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to costs 
incurred shall be maintained by Consultant and made available at all reasonable times during the 
contract period and for four (4) years from the date of final payment under the contract for 
inspection by District. 

5. Delays in Performance. 

a. Neither District nor Consultant shall be considered in default of this Agreement for 
delays in performance caused by circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the non-
performing party.  For purposes of this Agreement, such circumstances include but are not limited 
to, abnormal weather conditions; floods; earthquakes; fire; epidemics; pandemics; war; riots and 
other civil disturbances; strikes, lockouts, work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; 
sabotage or judicial restraint. 

b. Should such circumstances occur, the non-performing party shall, within a 
reasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice to the other party 
describing the circumstances preventing continued performance and the efforts being made to 
resume performance of this Agreement. 

6. Compliance with Law. 

a. Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and 
regulations of the federal, state and local government, including Cal/OSHA requirements. 

b. If required, Consultant shall assist the District, as requested, in obtaining and 
maintaining all permits required of Consultant by federal, state and local regulatory agencies. 

c. If applicable, Consultant is responsible for all costs of clean up and/ or removal of 
hazardous and toxic substances spilled as a result of his or her services or operations performed 
under this Agreement. 

7. Standard of Care 

Consultant’s services will be performed in accordance with generally accepted 
professional practices and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing under similar conditions. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 77 of 167



 

 

 

8. Assignment and Subconsultant 

Consultant shall not assign, sublet, or transfer this Agreement or any rights under or 
interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the District, which may be withheld for 
any reason.  Any attempt to so assign or so transfer without such consent shall be void and 
without legal effect and shall constitute grounds for termination.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain 
a provision making them subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement.  Nothing contained 
herein shall prevent Consultant from employing independent associates, and subconsultants as 
Consultant may deem appropriate to assist in the performance of services hereunder. 

9. Independent Contractor 

Consultant is retained as an independent contractor and is not an employee of District.  
No employee or agent of Consultant shall become an employee of District.  The work to be 
performed shall be in accordance with the work described in this Agreement, subject to such 
directions and amendments from District as herein provided. 

10. Insurance.  Consultant shall not commence work for the District until it has 
provided evidence satisfactory to the District it has secured all insurance required under this 
section.  In addition, Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any 
subcontract until it has secured all insurance required under this section. 

a. Commercial General Liability 

(i) The Consultant shall take out and maintain, during the performance 
of all work under this Agreement, in amounts not less than specified herein, Commercial General 
Liability Insurance, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to the District. 

(ii) Coverage for Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at 
least as broad as the following: 

(1) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 
coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or exact equivalent. 

(iii) Commercial General Liability Insurance must include coverage 
for the following: 

(1) Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
(2) Personal Injury/Advertising Injury 
(3) Premises/Operations Liability 
(4) Products/Completed Operations Liability 
(5) Aggregate Limits that Apply per Project 
(6) Explosion, Collapse and Underground (UCX) exclusion 

deleted 
(7) Contractual Liability with respect to this Agreement 
(8) Property Damage 
(9) Independent Contractors Coverage 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 78 of 167



 

 

 (iv) The policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting 
coverage for (1) contractual liability; (2) cross liability exclusion for claims or suits by one insured 
against another; (3) products/completed operations liability; or (4) contain any other exclusion 
contrary to the Agreement. 

 (v) The policy shall give District, its officials, officers, employees, 
agents and District designated volunteers additional insured status using ISO endorsement forms 
CG 20 10 10 01 and 20 37 10 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage. 

 (vi) The general liability program may utilize either deductibles or 
provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention, subject to written approval by the District, 
and provided that such deductibles shall not apply to the District as an additional insured. 

b. Automobile Liability 

(i) At all times during the performance of the work under this 
Agreement, the Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injury and 
property damage including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, in a form and with 
insurance companies acceptable to the District. 

(ii) Coverage for automobile liability insurance shall be at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering automobile liability 
(Coverage Symbol 1, any auto). 

(iii)  The policy shall give District, its officials, officers, employees, 
agents and District designated volunteers additional insured status. 

(iv) Subject to written approval by the District, the automobile liability 
program may utilize deductibles, provided that such deductibles shall not apply to the District as 
an additional insured, but not a self-insured retention. 

c. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability 

(i) Consultant certifies that he/she is aware of the provisions of Section 
3700 of the California Labor Code which requires every employer to be insured against liability 
for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of 
that code, and he/she will comply with such provisions before commencing work under this 
Agreement. 
 

(ii) To the extent Consultant has employees at any time during the term 
of this Agreement, at all times during the performance of the work under this Agreement, the 
Consultant shall maintain full compensation insurance for all persons employed directly by 
him/her to carry out the work contemplated under this Agreement, all in accordance with the 
“Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act,” Division IV of the Labor Code of the State of 
California and any acts amendatory thereof, and Employer’s Liability Coverage in amounts 
indicated herein.  Consultant shall require all subconsultants to obtain and maintain, for the period 
required by this Agreement, workers’ compensation coverage of the same type and limits as 
specified in this section. 
 

d. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 79 of 167



 

 

At all times during the performance of the work under this Agreement the Consultant shall 
maintain professional liability or Errors and Omissions insurance appropriate to its profession, in 
a form and with insurance companies acceptable to the District and in an amount indicated herein.  
This insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability applicable to this Agreement and 
shall be written on a policy form specifically designed to protect against acts, errors or omissions 
of the Consultant.  “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the policy must specifically 
include work performed under this Agreement. The policy must “pay on behalf of” the insured and 
must include a provision establishing the insurer's duty to defend. 

e. Minimum Policy Limits Required 

(i) The following insurance limits are required for the Agreement: 

Combined Single Limit 

Commercial General Liability  $1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate  
  for bodily injury, personal injury, and property  
  damage 

 
Automobile Liability   $1,000,000 combined single limit 

Employer’s Liability   $1,000,000 per accident or disease 

Professional Liability   $1,000,000 per claim and aggregate (errors and 
omissions) 

 
 (ii) Defense costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 

 (iii) Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this 
section are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a waiver of 
any coverage normally provided by any insurance.  Any available coverage shall be provided to 
the parties required to be named as Additional Insured pursuant to this Agreement. 

f. Evidence Required 

Prior to execution of the Agreement, the Consultant shall file with the District 
evidence of insurance from an insurer or insurers certifying to the coverage of all insurance 
required herein.  Such evidence shall include original copies of the ISO CG 00 01 (or insurer’s 
equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative and Certificate of Insurance (Acord Form 25-
S or equivalent), together with required endorsements.  All evidence of insurance shall be signed 
by a properly authorized officer, agent, or qualified representative of the insurer and shall certify 
the names of the insured, any additional insureds, where appropriate, the type and amount of 
the insurance, the location and operations to which the insurance applies, and the expiration 
date of such insurance.   

g. Policy Provisions Required 

(i) Consultant shall provide the District at least thirty (30) days prior 
written notice of cancellation of any policy required by this Agreement, except that the Consultant 
shall provide at least ten (10) days prior written notice of cancellation of any such policy due to 
non-payment of premium.  If any of the required coverage is cancelled or expires during the term 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 80 of 167



 

 

of this Agreement, the Consultant shall deliver renewal certificate(s) including the General 
Liability Additional Insured Endorsement to the District at least ten (10) days prior to the effective 
date of cancellation or expiration. 

(ii) The Commercial General Liability Policy and Automobile Policy 
shall each contain a provision stating that Consultant’s policy is primary insurance and that any 
insurance, self-insurance or other coverage maintained by the District or any named insureds 
shall not be called upon to contribute to any loss. 

(iii) The retroactive date (if any) of each policy is to be no later than the 
effective date of this Agreement.  Consultant shall maintain such coverage continuously for a 
period of at least three years after the completion of the work under this Agreement.  Consultant 
shall purchase a one (1) year extended reporting period A) if the retroactive date is advanced 
past the effective date of this Agreement; B) if the policy is cancelled or not renewed; or C) if the 
policy is replaced by another claims-made policy with a retroactive date subsequent to the 
effective date of this Agreement. 

(iv) All required insurance coverages, except for the professional 
liability coverage, shall contain or be endorsed to provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of the 
District, its officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers or shall specifically allow 
Consultant or others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to 
waive their right of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery 
against District, and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from 
each of its subconsultants. 

(v) The limits set forth herein shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claims are made or suits are brought, except with respect to the limits of liability.  
Further the limits set forth herein shall not be construed to relieve the Consultant from liability in 
excess of such coverage, nor shall it limit the Consultant’s indemnification obligations to the 
District and shall not preclude the District from taking such other actions available to the District 
under other provisions of the Agreement or law. 

h. Qualifying Insurers 

(i) All policies required shall be issued by acceptable insurance 
companies, as determined by the District, which satisfy the following minimum requirements: 

(1) Each such policy shall be from a company or companies 
with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII and admitted to transact in the 
business of insurance in the State of California, or otherwise allowed to place insurance 
through surplus line brokers under applicable provisions of the California Insurance Code 
or any federal law. 

i. Additional Insurance Provisions 

(i) The foregoing requirements as to the types and limits of insurance 
coverage to be maintained by Consultant, and any approval of said insurance by the District, is 
not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise 
assumed by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, including but not limited to, the 
provisions concerning indemnification. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 81 of 167



 

 

(ii) If at any time during the life of the Agreement, any policy of 
insurance required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is 
canceled and not replaced, District has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems 
necessary and any premium paid by District will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant or District 
will withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative, 
District may cancel this Agreement. 

(iii) The District may require the Consultant to provide complete copies 
of all insurance policies in effect for the duration of the Project. 

(iv) Neither the District nor any of its officials, officers, employees, 
agents or volunteers shall be personally responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of 
this Agreement. 

j. Subconsultant Insurance Requirements.  Consultant shall not allow any 
subcontractors or subconsultants to commence work on any subcontract until they have provided 
evidence satisfactory to the District that they have secured all insurance required under this 
section.  Policies of commercial general liability insurance provided by such subcontractors or 
subconsultants shall be endorsed to name the District as an additional insured using ISO form 
CG 20 38 04 13 or an endorsement providing the exact same coverage.  If requested by 
Consultant, District may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular 
subcontractors or subconsultants.   

 11. Indemnification.   

a. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend (with counsel 
of District’s choosing), indemnify and hold the District, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, 
and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, 
expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property or persons, 
including wrongful death,  in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to any acts, errors 
or omissions, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, subcontractors, 
consultants or agents in connection with the performance of the Consultant’s services, the Project 
or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all damages, expert witness fees 
and attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses.  Consultant's obligation to indemnify 
shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by Consultant, the District, its 
officials, officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

 
b. If Consultant’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and/or hold harmless arises 

out of Consultant’s performance of “design professional” services (as that term is defined under 
Civil Code section 2782.8), then, and only to the extent required by Civil Code section 2782.8, 
which is fully incorporated herein, Consultant’s indemnification obligation shall be limited to claims 
that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the 
Consultant, and, upon Consultant obtaining a final adjudication by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, Consultant’s liability for such claim, including the cost to defend, shall not exceed the 
Consultant’s proportionate percentage of fault. 

 
 12. California Labor Code Requirements. 

  a. Responsibility. Consultant is aware of the requirements of California Labor 
Code Sections 1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq., and California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section 
16000, et seq., which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 82 of 167



 

 

requirements on certain “public works” and “maintenance” projects (“Prevailing Wage Laws”).  
Consultant acknowledges that Consultant alone shall assume any and all responsibility relating 
to, and be solely responsible for, determining whether or not Prevailing Wage Laws must be 
compiled with for Consultant services. If the services are being performed as part of an applicable 
“public works” or “maintenance” project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total 
compensation is $1,000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage 
Laws.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the District, its officials, officers, employees 
and agents free and harmless from any claims, liabilities, costs, penalties or interest arising out 
of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.  It shall be mandatory 
upon the Consultant and all subconsultants to comply with all California Labor Code provisions, 
which include but are not limited to prevailing wages (Labor Code Sections 1771, 1774 and 1775), 
employment of apprentices (Labor Code Section 1777.5), certified payroll records (Labor Code 
Sections 1771.4 and 1776), hours of labor (Labor Code Sections 1813 and 1815) and debarment 
of contractors and subcontractors (Labor Code Section 1777.1).  The requirement to submit 
certified payroll records directly to the Labor Commissioner under Labor Code section 1771.4 
shall not apply to work performed on a public works project that is exempt pursuant to the small 
project exemption specified in Labor Code Section 1771.4. 

  b. If the services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” 
or “maintenance” project, then pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1, the 
Consultant and all subconsultants performing such services must be registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations.  Consultant shall maintain registration for the duration of the 
Project and require the same of any subconsultants, as applicable.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the contractor registration requirements mandated by Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 
1771.1 shall not apply to work performed on a public works project that is exempt pursuant to the 
small project exemption specified in Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1. 

  c. This Agreement may also be subject to compliance monitoring and 
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.  It shall be Consultant’s sole responsibility 
to comply with all applicable registration and labor compliance requirements.  Any stop orders 
issued by the Department of Industrial Relations against Consultant or any subcontractor that 
affect Consultant’s performance of services, including any delay, shall be Consultant’s sole 
responsibility.  Any delay arising out of or resulting from such stop orders shall be considered 
Consultant caused delay and shall not be compensable by the District.  Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the District, its officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless 
from any claim or liability arising out of stop orders issued by the Department of Industrial 
Relations against Consultant or any subcontractor. 

d.  Waivers and Releases.  Consultant, on behalf of itself, its successors, and 
assigns, waives and releases District from any right of action that may be available to any of them 
pursuant to State Prevailing Wage Laws or applicable Federal law.  Relative to the waivers and 
releases contained in this Section 13, Consultant acknowledges the protections of Civil Code 
section 1542, which reads as follows: 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS THAT THE 
CREDITOR OR RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO 
EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE 
AND THAT, IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER, WOULD HAVE MATERIALLY 
AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR OR RELEASED 
PARTY. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 83 of 167



 

 

By initialing below, Consultant knowingly and voluntarily waives the provisions of Section 
1542 solely in connection with the waivers and releases of this Section 13: 

______________ 
Initials of Authorized  

Consultant Representative 
 
 
 

 13. Verification of Employment Eligibility. 
 By executing this Agreement, Consultant verifies that it fully complies with all requirements 
and restrictions of state and federal law respecting the employment of undocumented aliens, 
including, but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as may be amended 
from time to time, and shall require all subconsultants and sub-subconsultants to comply with the 
same.   
 
 14. RESERVED.   

15. Laws and Venue. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  
If any action is brought to interpret or enforce any term of this Agreement, the action shall be 
brought in a state or federal court situated in the County of San Bernardino, State of California.   

16 Termination or Abandonment 

 Parties are subject to the Termination procedure set forth within the Scope of Services, 
Section 9, incorporated herein, that each Party may terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) 
days prior written notice.    

17 Documents.  Except as otherwise provided in “Termination or Abandonment,” 
above, all original field notes, written reports, Drawings and Specifications and other documents, 
produced or developed for the Project shall, upon payment in full for the services described in this 
Agreement, be furnished to and become the property of the District. 

18. Organization 

Consultant shall assign JoAnn Parrino as Project Manager.  The Project Manager shall 
not be removed from the Project or reassigned without the prior written consent of the District. 

19. Limitation of Agreement. 

 This Agreement is limited to and includes only the work included in the Project described 
above. 
 
 20. Notice 
 

Any and all notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall 
be sufficient in all respects if (i) delivered personally, (ii) mailed by registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested and postage prepaid, or (iii) sent via a nationally recognized overnight 
courier service  , addressed to: 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 84 of 167



 

 

DISTRICT: 
Chino Valley Independent Fire District 
14011 City Center Drive                                             
Chino Hills, California 91709 
Attn: Anthony Arroyo 

CONSULTANT: 
Shuster Advisory Group, LLC  
225 S. Lake Ave., Ste. 600,  
Pasadena, CA 91101 
Attn:  

 
and shall be effective upon receipt thereof. 

21. Third Party Rights 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone other 
than the District and the Consultant. 

22. Equal Opportunity Employment. 

Consultant represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and that it shall not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, 
national origin, ancestry, sex, age or other interests protected by the State or Federal 
Constitutions.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to 
initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or 
termination. 

23. Entire Agreement 

This Agreement, with its exhibits, represents the entire understanding of District and 
Consultant as to those matters contained herein, and supersedes and cancels any prior or 
contemporaneous oral or written understanding, promises or representations with respect to 
those matters covered hereunder.  Each Party acknowledges that no representations, 
inducements, promises or agreements have been made by any person which are not incorporated 
herein, and that any other agreements shall be void.  This Agreement may not be modified or 
altered except in writing signed by both Parties hereto.  This is an integrated Agreement. 

24. Severability 

The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall not 
render the remaining provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal. 

25. Successors and Assigns 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors in 
interest, executors, administrators and assigns of each Party to this Agreement.  However, 
Consultant shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all of its rights, 
burdens, duties or obligations without the prior written consent of District.  Any attempted 
assignment without such consent shall be invalid and void. 

26. Non-Waiver 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 85 of 167



 

 

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either Party, 
unless such waiver is specifically specified in writing. 

27. Time of Essence 

Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this Agreement. 

28. District’s Right to Employ Other Consultants 

District reserves its right to employ other consultants, including engineers, in connection 
with this Project or other projects. 

 

29. Prohibited Interests 

Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor retained any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting 
from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, District shall 
have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no 
director, official, officer or employee of District, during the term of his or her service with District, 
shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material 
benefit arising therefrom. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 86 of 167



 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT 

AND SHUSTER ADVISORY GROUP, LLC 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
written above. 

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT  SHUSTER ADVISORY GROUP, LLC 
FIRE DISTRICT 
 
 
By:                                 By:       

 
Title:   _____________  Its:       

 
     Printed Name:      

ATTEST: 

 
By:        
 Angela Robles, District Clerk of the Board 
  

 

  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 87 of 167



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Scope of Services 
 

Inserted and Incorporated Herein 
 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 88 of 167



Page 1 of 8 

RETIREMENT PLAN CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  
 
This agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into between Shuster Advisory Group, LLC (“CONSULTANT”), a 
California limited liability company, and the plan administrator of the retirement plans of the Chino Valley 
Independent Fire District (“PLAN ADMINISTRATOR”) as further identified on Appendix A (“Plan” or 
“Plans,” collectively). 
 
The PLAN ADMINISTRATOR, as the responsible plan fiduciary for the Plans as further identified in Appendix 
A, desires to engage CONSULTANT to provide the services described in this Agreement according to the terms of 
this Agreement.   
 
The parties acknowledge and agree that the Plans are “governmental plans”, as defined in section 414(d) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. As such, the parties agree that the Plans are not subject to the requirements of ERISA, but 
are subject to the fiduciary rules set forth in the California Constitution and in the California Government Code 
(“California Rules”).  
 
1. Fiduciary Authority.  PLAN ADMINISTRATOR, as the responsible plan fiduciary, has the authority to 

designate investment alternatives under the Plan and the related trust, and to enter into an Agreement with third 
parties to assist in these and related duties.   

2. Term.  The term of this Agreement will commence [__________], 2023. 

3. Services. CONSULTANT agrees to provide the following services to PLAN ADMINISTRATOR: 

(A) Fiduciary Services: CONSULTANT will perform the Fiduciary Services described in Appendix B. 

(B) Non-Fiduciary Services: CONSULTANT will perform the Non-Fiduciary Services described in Appendix 
C. 

(C) PLAN ADMINISTRATOR acknowledges that CONSULTANT has no responsibility to provide any 
services related to the following types of assets: employer securities; real estate (except for real estate funds 
and publicly traded REITs); stock brokerage accounts or mutual fund windows; in-plan retirement income 
annuity products; participant loans; non-publicly traded partnership interests; other non-publicly traded 
securities (other than collective trusts and similar vehicles); or other hard-to-value securities or assets.  Such 
assets (except for real estate funds, publicly traded REITs, and collective trusts and similar vehicles) shall be 
referred to collectively as “Excluded Assets.”  The Excluded Assets shall be disregarded in determining the 
Fees payable to CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement, and the Fees shall be calculated only on the 
remaining assets (the “Included Assets”).    

4. Fees. 

(A) The compensation, direct and indirect, of CONSULTANT for the performance of the Services is described 
in Appendix D. 

5. Fiduciary Status: Limitations on Functions.  PLAN ADMINISTRATOR acknowledges that: 

(A) In performing the Fiduciary Services, CONSULTANT is acting as a fiduciary of the Plan and as a registered 
investment advisor under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.   

(B) In performing the Non-Fiduciary Services, CONSULTANT is not acting as a fiduciary of the Plan. 

(C) In performing both Non-Fiduciary Services and Fiduciary Services, CONSULTANT does not act as, nor 
has CONSULTANT agreed to assume the duties of, a trustee or the PLAN ADMINISTRATOR, and 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 89 of 167



Page 2 of 8 

CONSULTANT has no discretion or responsibility to interpret the Plan documents, to determine eligibility 
or participation under the Plan, or to take any other action with respect to the management, administration 
or any other aspect of the Plan. 

(D) CONSULTANT does not provide legal or tax advice. 

(E) Investments are subject to various market, political, currency, economic, and business risks, and may not 
always be profitable.  As a result, CONSULTANT does not and cannot guarantee financial results. 

(F) CONSULTANT may, by reason of performing services for other clients, from time to time acquire 
confidential information.  PLAN ADMINISTRATOR acknowledges and agrees that CONSULTANT is 
unable to divulge to the PLAN ADMINISTRATOR or any other party, or to act upon, any such confidential 
information with respect to its performance of this Agreement. 

(G) CONSULTANT is entitled to reasonably rely upon all information provided to CONSULTANT (whether 
financial or otherwise) from reputable third parties or by PLAN ADMINISTRATOR, PLAN 
ADMINISTRATOR’s representatives or third-party service providers to PLAN ADMINISTRATOR or 
the Plan, without independent verification.  PLAN ADMINISTRATOR agrees to promptly notify 
CONSULTANT in writing of any material change in the financial and other information provided to 
CONSULTANT and to promptly provide any such additional information as may be reasonably requested 
by CONSULTANT. 

(H) CONSULTANT will not be responsible for voting (or recommending how to vote) proxies of any publicly 
traded securities (including mutual fund shares) held by the Plan (or its trust). Responsibility for voting 
proxies of investments held by the Plan or its trust remain with PLAN ADMINISTRATOR (or, if 
applicable, the Plan participants).  

(I) PLAN ADMINISTRATOR understands that CONSULTANT: (i) may perform other services for other 
clients, (ii) may charge a different fee for other clients, and (iii) may give advice and take action that is 
different for each client even when retirement plans are similar.   

6. Representations of PLAN ADMINISTRATOR.  PLAN ADMINISTRATOR represents and warrants as 
follows: 

(A) It is the responsible plan fiduciary for the control and/or management of the assets of the Plan, and for the 
selection and monitoring of service providers for the Plan.  CONSULTANT is entitled to rely upon this 
statement until notified in writing to the contrary. 

(B) The person signing the Agreement on behalf of PLAN ADMINISTRATOR has all necessary authority to 
do so. 

(C) The execution of this Agreement and the performance thereof is within the scope of the administrative 
authority authorized by the Plans.  The PLAN ADMINISTRATOR represents that the execution of the 
Agreement has been duly authorized by appropriate action and agrees to provide such supporting 
documentation as may be reasonably required by CONSULTANT. 
 

(D) The Plan and related Trust permit payment of fees out of Plan assets.  PLAN ADMINISTRATOR has 
determined that the fees charged by CONSULTANT are reasonable and are the obligation of the Plan; 
however, if PLAN ADMINISTRATOR desires, it may pay the fees directly, rather than with Plan assets. 

7. Representation of CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT represents as follows: 

(A) CONSULTANT is registered as an investment adviser (“RIA”) under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 90 of 167



Page 3 of 8 

(B) The person signing this agreement on behalf CONSULTANT has the power and authority to enter into and 
perform this Agreement. 

(C) CONSULTANT agrees to take reasonable steps to protect Private Participant Information and 
Plan Investment Data in its possession;  

 

CONSULTANT is not responsible for the assessment of systems and procedures of third parties 
for the protection of plan and participant Data;  
 

CONSULTANT is not responsible for the actions by or the failure to act by PLAN 
ADMINISTRATOR, by other service providers, or by Plan participants to protect Data; 
 

CONSULTANT shall have no liability in the event of a Data breach or a violation of 
participant privacy rights (under the California Consumer Privacy Act or otherwise) unless said 
breach is the direct result of negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of an employee of 
CONSULTANT. 

8. Standard of Care. 

(A) CONSULTANT will perform the Fiduciary Services described in Appendix B to the Plan in accordance 
with the standards of care of the prudent man rule set forth in the Investment Adviser Act of 1940, the 
California Rules, and those provisions of ERISA specifically referenced herein.  

(B) CONSULTANT will perform the Non-Fiduciary Services described in Appendix C using reasonable care 
and reasonable business judgment and shall not be liable for any liabilities and claims arising thereunder, 
unless directly arising from CONSULTANT’s intentional misconduct or gross negligence, or its negligence 
or material breach of this Agreement. 

9. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to the other 
party.  Such termination will not, however, affect the liabilities or obligations of the parties arising from 
transactions initiated prior to such termination, and such liabilities and obligations (together with the provisions 
of section 8, 17, and 18) shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement.  Upon termination, 
CONSULTANT will have no further obligation under this Agreement to act or advise PLAN 
ADMINISTRATOR with respect to services under this Agreement.  

10. Receipt of Disclosure and Consent to Electronic Delivery. PLAN ADMINISTRATOR acknowledges receipt 
and undertakes to review and consider the disclosures made by CONSULTANT (including in this Agreement, 
the Form ADV Part 2 and CONSULTANT’s Privacy Policy), in particular the portions related to services, 
compensation, and potential conflicts of interest, as well as the remainder of the disclosures concerning, among 
other matters, background information such as educational and business history, business practices such as the 
types of advisory services provided, the methods of securities analysis used, and the like.  

Further, PLAN ADMINISTRATOR consents to electronic delivery (via email or other generally accepted 
method) of current and future distributions of CONSULTANT’s Form ADV Part 2 and Privacy Policy.  Consent 
to electronic delivery may be canceled at any time by sending a written request to CONSULTANT. 

11. Notices. Any and all notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficient 
in all respects if (i) delivered personally, (ii) mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested and 
postage prepaid, or (iii) sent via a nationally recognized overnight courier service to the address in Appendix A 
and CONSULTANT’s address 225 S. Lake Ave., Ste. 600, Pasadena, CA 91101, or such other address as any 
party shall have designed by notice in writing to the other party. 

12. Assignability. This Agreement is not assignable by either Party hereto without the prior written consent of the 
other Party. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 91 of 167



Page 4 of 8 

13. Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective 
heirs, successors, survivors, administrators and assigns. 

14. Entire Understanding and Modification. This Agreement constitutes and contains the entire understanding 
between the parties and supersedes all prior oral or written statements dealing with the subject matter herein. This 
Agreement can be amended or modified by the written consent of the Parties. 

15. Severability. If any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall, for any reason, be illegal or invalid, 
such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement and this Agreement shall be 
enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had not been contained herein. 

16. Headings. All headings used herein are for ease of reference only and in no way shall be construed as interpreting, 
decreasing or enlarging the provisions of this Agreement. 

17. Applicable Law; Forum. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement in all respects, including 
but not limited to the construction and enforcement thereof, unless otherwise preempted or superseded by federal 
law.   

18. Arbitration Agreement. To the extent permitted by law, all controversies between PLAN ADMINISTRATOR 
and CONSULTANT, which may arise out of or relate to any of the services provided by CONSULTANT under 
this Agreement, or the construction, performance or breach of this or any other Agreement between 
CONSULTANT and PLAN ADMINISTRATOR, whether entered into prior to, on or subsequent to the date 
hereof, shall be settled by binding arbitration in Chino Hills, San Bernardino County, California, under the 
Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association.  Judgment upon any award rendered by 
the arbitrator(s) shall be final, and may be entered into any court having jurisdiction. 

19. Amendment Process. The Agreement may be modified, by written agreement of both PLAN 
ADMINISTRATOR and CONSULTANT. 

20. Waiver of Limitation.  Nothing in this Agreement shall in any way constitute a waiver or limitation of any rights 
which PLAN ADMINISTRATOR or Plan or any other party may have under federal or state securities laws. 

  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 92 of 167



Page 5 of 8 

APPENDIX A – CLIENT/PLAN SPONSOR - PLAN INFORMATION 
 

 
 

PLAN ADMINISTRATOR 
The Human Resources Director of Chino Valley Independent Fire District 
Plans, as the Plan Administrator of such Plans  
Plan Name 1 
Chino Valley Independent Fire District 
457 Plan & Trust 

Type of Plan 
☐401(k)  ☒457(b)  ☐401(a)  ☐403(b) 
☐Part-time Seasonal (OBRA)  ☐Retiree Health Savings 
☐Defined Benefit Plan  ☐Other:   

Plan Name 2 
Chino Valley Independent Fire District 
401(a) Plan 

Type of Plan 
☐401(k)  ☐457(b)  ☒401(a)  ☐403(b) 
☐Part-time Seasonal (OBRA)  ☐Retiree Health Savings 
☐Defined Benefit Plan  ☐Other:   

Plan Name 3 
 

Type of Plan 
☐401(k)  ☐457(b)  ☐401(a)  ☐403(b) 
☐Part-time Seasonal (OBRA)  ☐Retiree Health Savings 
☐Defined Benefit Plan  ☐Other:   

Plan Name 4 
 

Type of Plan 
☐401(k)  ☐457(b)  ☐401(a)  ☐403(b) 
☐Part-time Seasonal (OBRA)  ☐Retiree Health Savings 
☐Defined Benefit Plan  ☐Other:   

Plan Name 5 
 

Type of Plan 
☐401(k)  ☐457(b)  ☐401(a)  ☐403(b) 
☐Part-time Seasonal (OBRA)  ☐Retiree Health Savings 
☐Defined Benefit Plan  ☐Other:   

Mailing Address 
14011 City Center Drive 

City 
Chino Hills 

State 
CA 

Zip Code 
91709-5442 

Legal Address (☒Same as Mailing Address) 
 

City 
 

State 
 

Zip Code 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 93 of 167



Page 6 of 8 

APPENDIX B – FIDUCIARY SERVICES 
 
 

 

PLAN ADMINISTRATOR desires CONSULTANT to provide, and CONSULTANT agrees to provide 
discretionary investment fiduciary services similar to those outlined in section 3(38) of ERISA and as described in the 
California Rules as to the selection, monitoring and replacement of investment options within the Plans as well as the 
selection of default investment options. As such, once CONSULTANT’S role as the discretionary investment 
fiduciary has been properly communicated to, and accepted by, the Plans’ recordkeepers, CONSULTANT will have 
the fiduciary responsibility for the selecting, monitoring, removing, and replacing of the Plans’ investment options, as 
appropriate. CONSULTANT will make timely communication to the PLAN ADMINISTRATOR of any such 
changes and make sure that all affected participants are notified by the recordkeeper of such changes on a timely basis. 

As part of its engagement, CONSULTANT will perform the following fiduciary services: 

1. Development of an Investment Policy Statement (IPS). The IPS establishes the investment policies and 
objectives for the Plan(s), and shall set forth the asset classes and investment categories to be offered under 
the Plan(s), as well as the criteria and standards for selecting and monitoring the investments that will be used 
by Consultant. The CONSULTANT and PLAN ADMINISTRATOR shall have the ultimate responsibility 
and authority to establish such policies and objectives and to adopt the investment policy statement. 
 

2. Consistent with the Investment Policy Statement, CONSULTANT will have the sole responsibility for the 
selection of the investment options within the Plans), including the Plans’ default investments. 
 

3. CONSULTANT will periodically review the investments within the Plan(s) and shall be responsible for 
making additions/deletions thereto.  

 
4. As agreed upon with the PLAN ADMINISTRATOR, CONSULTANT will provide periodic investment 

advisory reports that document consistency of investment selection, fund management and performance to 
the guidelines set forth in the IPS, and to explain its decisions with respect to the maintenance of the Plans’ 
fund lineup for the reporting period. Reports may include: Market Overview, In-Depth Portfolio Summary, 
Plan Asset Allocation Analysis and Fund Performance Comparison to the Index.  

 
5. Meet with PLAN ADMINISTRATOR on a periodic basis to discuss reports and recommendations. 

 
6. Annually review the IPS with the PLAN ADMINISTRATOR to ensure it continues to meet the DISTRICT’s 

needs. 
 
7. Selection of a default investment for participants who fail to make an investment election. 

 
8. Coordinate the Deferred Compensation Committee meetings, record the meeting minutes and provide 

minutes to the attending members. 
 

9. Assist the Administrator with Compliance with California Government Code section 53213.5. 
 

LIMITATIONS ON FIDUCIARY SERVICES 

CONSULTANT shall not be responsible or liable for the recommendations of or services rendered by anyone 
other than CONSULTANT.  The ability to perform the above services is contingent upon the rules, policies, 
processes, and responsiveness to our requests for information of PLAN ADMINISTRATOR, Plan Sponsor, 
Record Keeper(s), and/or Third-Party Administrator(s); provided, that CONSULTANT shall as soon as reasonably 
possible inform the PLAN ADMINISTRATOR if it is unable to fulfill its duties under this agreement due to 
problems with such third party documents or operations.  

  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 94 of 167



Page 7 of 8 

APPENDIX C – NON-FIDUCIARY SERVICES 
 
 
CONSULTANT will perform the following Non-Fiduciary services if requested by the Plan Administrator and 

after disclosing the potential fees and/or costs of such services: 

1. Provide Plan design consulting and Plan document review 
 

2. Provide vendor management/issue resolution 
 

3. Provide consulting assistance on fiduciary best practices  
 

4. Assist in the transition of previous record-keeper(s) and/or Plan provider(s) 
 

5. Provide custom communications when needed 
 

6. Assist in communications with recordkeeper(s) and/or Plan provider(s) 
 

7. Distribute Plan level newsletters  
 

8. Provide RFP services and Plan fee negotiations  
 

9. Incumbent vendor and fee review 
 

10. Contract review support 
 

11. Employee education  
 

12. Provide assistance with mandatory and optional legislative changes 
 
 

LIMITATIONS ON NON-FIDUCIARY SERVICES 
 

CONSULTANT shall not be responsible or liable for the recommendations of or services rendered by anyone 
other than CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT and PLAN ADMINISTRATOR/Plan Sponsor will work together 
to determine mutually agreed upon for services requiring both parties coordinate and/or attend.  The ability to 
perform the above services is contingent upon the rules, policies, processes, and responsiveness to our requests for 
information of PLAN ADMINISTRATOR, Plan Sponsor, Record Keeper(s), and/or Third-Party Administrator(s). 

  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 95 of 167



 

Page 8 of 8 
 

APPENDIX D FEE SCHEDULE: SCHEDULE OF CHARGES/PAYMENTS 
 
 

1. All fees are billed in arrears.   
 
 

2. The initial fee will be the amount, prorated for the number of days included in the initial billing period from the 
effective payment start date. 

 

3. If this Agreement is terminated prior to the end of a billing period, CONSULTANT shall be entitled to a fee, 
prorated for the number of days in the billing period prior to the effective date of termination. 

 

4. All fees will be due and payable within 30 days and are payable to “Shuster Advisory Group, LLC” 
 

5. The annual fee for services shall be as follows: 
 
Beginning with the Effective Date of this Agreement and continuing until the earlier of the date the plans are 
converted to a new record-keeper and assets from the prior record-keeper are transferred, the date the plans are 
converted to a new record-keeper and the first payroll deferral is processed by the new record-keeper, or the date 
it is decided to remain with the incumbent record-keeper and new pricing is implemented, if applicable, (hereafter 
known as the “Conversion Date”) the fee for service shall by $2,500.00 per month.  Fees will accrue and be paid 
from Plan assets to CONSULTANT by the record keeper upon the Conversion Date. 
 
After the “Conversion Date”, the fee for service shall be $2,500.00 per month.  Fees will be deducted from Plan 
assets and will be paid to CONSULTANT by the record-keeper.   
 
At CONSULTANT’s discretion the billing period described above may be adjusted to quarterly.    

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 96 of 167



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CHINO VALLEY 
INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT APPROVING THE APPOINTMENT OF THE 
HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR AS THE PLAN ADMINISTRATOR OF THE 

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 
 

WHEREAS, the Chino Valley Independent Fire District (“District”) sponsors and 
maintains the following retirement benefit plans (collectively, "Plans") for the benefit of its eligible 
employees: 

 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan 
 401(a) Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Plans currently provide that by default the District (through the District’s 
governing body) is the administrator and responsible for the administration, assets and investments 
of the Plans; and 

WHEREAS, based on applicable case law, the Board is the administrator and bears the 
fiduciary liability and responsibilities for the administration, assets, and investments of the Plans; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board may appoint a new administrator so that the Board will not be  
responsible and liable for the administration and investment of the Plans; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends the appointment of the Human Resources Director 
(“Director”) as the administrator of the Plans, with oversight by the Human Resources Sub-
Committee of the Board of Directors, since the Director has familiarity with the terms of the Plans 
and its participants, and can effectively monitor and react in real time to economic factors that 
impact those Plans; and 

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the District and the Plans’ 
participants to appoint the Human Resources Director as administrator of the Plans. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby appoints the District’s 
Human Resources Director, and any District staff he may designate to assist him in that role, as 
the administrator of the Plans, with responsibility for the administration and interpretation, 
management of the assets and investments, and vendor retention of the Plans. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board authorizes and directs the Fire Chief and 
the Human Resources to take all such actions deemed necessary or appropriate to implement this 
resolution. 

  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 97 of 167



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
Page 2 
 

 

REVIEWED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Board Meeting held on the 8th 
day of February 2023, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS:  
NOES: BOARD MEMBERS:   
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:   
ABSTAIN:     BOARD MEMBERS:  
 

 

       
JOHN DEMONACO, PRESIDENT 

 
ATTEST: 
 
        
ANGELA ROBLES, CLERK OF THE BOARD 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 98 of 167



  NEW BUSINESS    10.

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2023

TO: JOHN DEMONACO, BOARD PRESIDENT
ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

FROM: DAVE WILLIAMS, FIRE CHIEF

SUBJECT: FIRE DISTRICT POLICY AND PROCEDURES FOR BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

PURPOSE:

Purpose is for the Board of Directors to review recommended changes to the Fire District Policy and
Procedures for Board of Directors and provide direction to staff.

DISCUSSION:

At the December 14, 2022, regular meeting President DeMonaco and Director Ramos-Evinger were
appointed to the Board Policy Ad Hoc Committee. Following the meeting, the Board Members
submitted recommended changes through the Clerk of the Board and submissions were incorporated in
redlined format. Attached to the staff report is the redlined Policy and Procedures for Board of
Directors with recommended changes, and as reviewed by the Ad Hoc Committee for Board discussion
and direction to staff.
 
It should be noted that Legal Counsel will conduct a review of the proposed changes following the
Board meeting as well as review teleconference and online meeting provisions in response to any
changes in state law. It is anticipated that the final document will be brought back to the Board of
Directors on March 8, 2023, for consideration and approval.
 
In conclusion, the Fire District holds several accreditations that require the Board to update their
policies within a year of submitting for reaccreditation. Furthermore, review of the document provides
an opportunity for the Board to make recommendations for modifications and for District Legal
Counsel to review and ensure all statutory references are current.

 

RECOMMENDATION:

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 99 of 167



It is recommended that the Board of Directors review the proposed changes to the Policy and
Procedures for Board of Directors as presented in redlined format and provide direction to staff.  
 

ATTACHMENTS:
Description
Board of Director Policy and Procedures Redlined

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 100 of 167



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
POLICY #  POLICY TITLE          PAGE # 
 

SERIES 1000 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
  Mission, Vision and Values        2 
  1010  Code of Ethics           3 
  1020  Board Policy           5 
  1025  Staff Support and Assistance        7 
  1030  Basis of Authority          10 
  1040  Attendance at Meetings         11 
  1050  Remuneration and Reimbursement       12 
  1060  Board President        22 
  1070  Members of the Board of Directors       23 
  1080  Committees of the Board of Directors, Community Liaison   24 
  Assignments, Adhoc Committees and Boards of Joint Powers  

   Authorities 
 1085  Ceremonial Certificates and Presentations    28 

  1090  Membership in Associations      29 
  1100  Training, Education and Conferences     31 
  1110  Board Member Safety       33 
  1120  Board Member District Clothing Use     34 
  1130  Community Support Fund 

 
SERIES 2000 - BOARD MEETINGS 

 
   2010 Board Meetings        35 
  2015  Swearing-in of Newly Appointed or Elected Board Members  40 
 
   2020 Board Meeting Agenda       41 
   2030 Board Meeting Conduct       44 
   2040 Board Actions and Decisions      45 
   2050 Review of Administrative Decisions     47 
   2060 Minutes of Board Meetings       48 
   2070 Rules of Order for Board and Committee Meetings   50 
   2080 Procedure for Adopting a Resolution     57 
   2090 Procedure for Adopting an Ordinance     58 
 
  

 
CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
 FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
Resolution No. 2022-01 2023-XX Revised and Adopted January 12, 2022      

____________,2023 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 101 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 2 of 63 
 
 

  

 
MISSION, VISION AND VALUES 

 
OUR MISSION 

The mission of the Chino Valley Fire District is to provide exceptional service and safeguard the 
community. 

VISION 

As an organization, we... 

...seek excellence in everything we do; with innovative practices, training, and equipment. 

…remain transparent; open, honest, and accountable to each other and those we serve. 

…appreciate our members; we attract, retain, and develop future leaders. 

…value the public trust above all else; we are good stewards of our financial resources. 

…endeavor to learn and grow; continuously seeking improvement and embracing change. 

VALUES 

• FAITHFULNESS 

We are fully committed, invested and engaged in the communities we serve. 

• INTEGRITY 

We lead by example, according to the highest ethical and professional standards. 

• RESPECT 

We treat each other, and those we serve with compassion, dignity, and value. 

• EXCELLENCE 

We are relentless in our pursuit of the highest possible standard of quality. 

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 102 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 3 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Code of Ethics 
POLICY NUMBER:  1010 

 
 

1010.0 The Board of Directors of the Chino Valley Independent Fire District is 
committed to providing excellence in legislative leadership which results in 
the provision of the highest quality of services to its constituents. In order to 
assist in the government of the behavior between and among members of 
the Board of Directors, the following rules shall be observed.  

 
1010.1 The dignity, style, values and opinions of each Director shall be respected. 
 
1010.2 Responsiveness and attentive listening in communication are encouraged. 
 
1010.3 The needs of the District's constituents are the priority of the Board of 

Directors. 
 
1010.4 The primary responsibility of the Board of Directors is the formulation and 

evaluation of policy for, and financial oversight of, the District. Routine 
matters concerning the operational aspects of the District shall be the 
responsibility of the Fire Chief.  

 
1010.5 Differing viewpoints are healthy in the decision-making process. Individuals 

have the right to disagree with ideas and opinions, but without being 
disagreeable.  Once the Board of Directors takes action, Directors should 
commit to supporting said action.   

 
1010.6 Board Members should make clear, to other parties with whom the Board 

Member is dealing, those viewpoints that are the Board Member’s personal 
viewpoints as opposed to those viewpoints held in their official, Board of 
Directors capacity.   

 
1010.7 Board Members shall avoid conducting District business or discussions 

while conducting personal or employment business with any third parties. 
 

1010.8 Board Members shall not use District resources for personal or political 
purposes.  “District resources” include any property, personnel or asset of 
the District including, but not limited to, land, buildings, facilities, funds, 
equipment, supplies, copy machines, office equipment, telephones, 
computers, vehicles, travel and District compensated time.  Examples of 
prohibited activities include:  using District offices to prepare campaign 
mailers, asking District staff to appear in campaign materials in uniform, or 
using District offices for non-District related work.  

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 103 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 4 of 63 
 
 

  

Board Members or employees who wear a uniform that has become 
associated with a specific position at the District, may not appear at any 
political function or in a campaign photo in that uniform even when off duty.  
This includes civilian clothing with District name or logo.  

 

Board Members shall not solicit individual employees for campaign 
support, such as: placing signs on their personal property or wearing 
campaign pins on clothing. Board Members soliciting campaign support 
should work directly with the employee associations.  

 

Board Members, employees or candidates for elected office may not use 
or operate District vehicles or equipment for personal political activities. 
Logos, patches, or any item that identifies the District must be blurred in 
photos as to not be identified with the District. 

 
  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 104 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 5 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Board Policy 
POLICY NUMBER:  1020 
 
1020.0 In seeking clarification on information on agenda items, Board Members 

shall work through the Fire Chief and/or Clerk of the Board.   

1020.1 Complaints received from residents and property owners regarding District 
operational issues are to be referred directly to the Fire Chief or designee, 
if the Fire Chief is not available.  In the event the Fire Chief or designee 
cannot be contacted, the Board Member shall use the same process as any 
member of the public would use for a complaint.  The Board Member shall 
thereafter notify the Fire Chief or designee of the complaint and who was 
contacted. 

1020.2 Safety concerns or hazards are to be reported to the Fire Chief or his or her 
designee.  Community emergency situations requiring an emergency 
response should be dealt with immediately by dialing 911. 
 

1020.3 Develop a working relationship with the Fire Chief.  Concerns with District 
projects or issues should be addressed directly with the Fire Chief or 
through the Board President.   

1020.4 Enforce the chain of command when approached by District personnel 
concerning specific District policy or operational issues, and direct inquiries 
to the Fire Chief.  Make the Fire Chief aware of personnel concerns.   

1020.5 The work of the District is a team effort. All Board Members should work 
together in the collaborative process, assisting each other in conducting the 
affairs of the District and bringing policy issues to the attention of the Board 
as a whole, rather than to individual Board Members selectively. 

1020.6 Be courteous when responding to constituent requests and concerns, 
responding to individuals in a positive manner and routing their questions 
through appropriate channels to the Fire Chief or his/her designee.  Board 
Members shall inform constituent that the Fire Chief or his/her designee will 
respond directly to the constituents if appropriate. 

 
1020.8 Board Members are responsible for understanding and adhering to the Fire 

District Policy and Procedures and applicable State and federal laws, 
including the Brown Act.  This includes adhering to the following best 
practices when Board Members utilize social media: 

 
1. A Board Member may communicate on social media sites to 

answer questions, provide information to the public or to solicit 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 105 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 6 of 63 
 
 

  

information from the public regarding a matter within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. 
 

2. However, a Board Member is prohibited from using a social 
media site to discuss District business with a majority of other 
Board Members. 
 

3. A Board Member is prohibited from responding directly to any 
communication posted or shared by another Board Member 
regarding District business on a social media site. 

 
When Board Members use social media in their personal capacities, they 
acknowledge that posts related to District business may be deemed public 
records under the California Public Records Act.  When a Board Member 
publishes a social media post, or engages in an exchange about District 
business via their personal social media account, they may transform that 
otherwise personal social media account into an account subject to federal 
and state law; including but not limited to the California Public Records Act, 
record retention requirements, and First Amendment principles, among 
others. This conduct may also limit the ability of Board Members to legally 
“block” third parties from viewing or posting on that purportedly personal 
social media site.  Board Members may avoid transforming their personal 
social media accounts into accounts subject to this Policy, and federal and 
state open government laws, by, among other things, not engaging in 
discussions of District business on that social media account. 

 
1020.9 Any request or proposed changes or amendments to any section in these 

policies and procedures shall go to the full Board for review, discussion and 
possible adoption.  Any requested or proposed changes or amendments 
would need to go through the agenda process set forth in this policy and 
procedures. 

 
  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 106 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 7 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Staff Support and Assistance 
POLICY NUMBER: 1025 

1025.0 The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines and standards regarding 
the staff support and assistance routinely provided to the Board of Directors.  
This policy does not apply to relations with or communications between the 
Board and Board appointees; i.e. the Fire Chief, District Legal 
Counsel/Attorney, or auditor, except as specified. 

 Any inquiry of the Board into the administration, policy or procedures will be 
done through the Fire Chief.  A Board Member shall not give orders to any 
subordinates of the Fire Chief. 

1025.1 The Board of Directors through the approval of the annual budget, allocates 
staff and other resources to support its legislative and intergovernmental 
activities. The Fire Chief is responsible for appointing, disciplining, and 
terminating such employees. Such employees shall provide support to the 
Board in accordance with this policy, and with Fire Chief approval. District 
Staff and resources shall not be used for personal business. 

1025.2 In order to effectively discharge their responsibilities as elected officials, the 
President and Board Members are entitled to receive clerical and 
administrative support services from assigned staff so long as it pertains to 
District business. Staff support is to be approved and assigned by the Fire 
Chief. 

 Preparation of correspondence relating to official District business: 
Preparation of correspondence by District staff on behalf of Board Members 
shall be limited to official District business only.   

 
1. Staff will assist in the scheduling of District related business 

meetings, but not meetings related to political campaigns or 
other personal business. 

 
2. The Clerk of the Board shall ensure the preparation and 

maintenance of an event calendar for Board Members, to 
track upcoming District related events and meetings. 
Calendars shall be distributed to Board Members and 
Executive Staff on a monthly basis and as changes occur. 

 
3. All Board Members’ mail shall be placed in the appropriate 

Board Member’s incoming mailbox or may be scanned and 
sent via email when appropriate. 

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 107 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 8 of 63 
 
 

  

4. Routine administrative and clerical support will be facilitated 
on an on-going basis by the Clerk of the Board.  Non-routine 
administrative and clerical support, requests for research, 
policy work, or studies shall be directed to the Fire Chief who 
shall designate staff in operating departments. 

 
5. Board Member questions specific to an agenda item for 

clarification or requests for additional information or support 
should be directed to the Fire Chief in a timely manner.   

 
1025.3 Reasonable staff assistance shall be provided to Board Members serving 

on intergovernmental bodies when the District has recognized participation 
in that body. Use of staff shall be consistent with the following guidelines: 

 
1. Staff assignments shall be made by the Fire Chief. 

 
2. If the intergovernmental body has its own professional staff, 

such staff should be utilized to the greatest extent possible, 
rather than District staff. 
 

3. Assigned District staff need not attend the intergovernmental 
meeting unless requested by the Board Member and directed 
by the Fire Chief.  The primary responsibilities of assigned 
staff are to review issues, gather information and attend as 
requested, and to advise a specific Board Member and/or Fire 
Chief who is presenting issues before the full Board or 
intergovernmental entity. 

 
1025.4 At times, it may be appropriate to provide staff support to a Board Member 

who is attending a District related meeting or other function. Such requests 
for staff support shall be made to the Fire Chief.  Except for routine follow-
up on comments, assignments arising from these meetings must be 
approved by the Fire Chief. 

 
1025.5 Staff assistance for speech/comment preparation for District business is 

available to Board Members.  Such assistance shall be requested through 
the Fire Chief. 

 
1025.6 Documentation intended for distribution to Board Members from staff, shall 

be forwarded to the Fire Chief for review prior to distribution by the Clerk of 
the Board. 

 
 The original and five copies, bearing the last name of each Board Member, 

of all District documentation shall be provided to the Clerk of the Board for 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 108 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 9 of 63 
 
 

  

distribution to Board Members.  A final copy of approved documentation 
shall be given to the Fire Chief. 

 
1025.7 A Board Member making a Public Records Act request shall not fall under 

this policy and will be treated the same as any member of the public who 
makes a Public Records Act request.  Additionally, Board Member public 
record requests shall not be considered Board business and the Board 
Member shall be responsible for any costs that arise from such requests. 

 
1025.8 A Board Member request for support or assistance must clearly state and 

define the reason.  Consideration should be given to staff time and 
responsibilities. 

 
 Board Members will not receive staff support or assistance for the following: 
 

a. Assistance to perform official duties, except as noted in the 
Fire District Policy and Procedures. 

b. Training or assistance within a Board Member’s personal 
responsibility such as basic training for use of computers, 
iPad, telephones, email etc. 

c. Assistance with completing or filing forms required as an 
elected official. 

d. Assistance with completing Fire District required forms 
beyond basic instruction for completing. 

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 109 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 10 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Basis of Authority  
POLICY NUMBER:  1030 
 
 
1030.0 The Board of Directors is the unit of authority within the District.  Apart from 

his/her normal function as a part of this unit, Directors have no individual 
authority.  As individuals, Directors may not commit the District to any policy, 
act or expenditure.  

 
The District operates according to the Board-Manager (Chief) form of 
government, which vests policy-making authority in an elected Board of 
Directors, which, in turn, hires an appointed executive (the Chief). 
Beginning with the November 2022 election and adoption of 
Resolution Number 2022-02, the Chino Valley Fire District transitioned 
into five geographically divided voting areas and established a by-
division area election system. The Board is composed of five (5) 
members: elected by-divisionat large, on a non-partisan basis, serving 
overlapping four-year terms. The Board President is elected by the Board 
Members annually. The Board President is the presiding officer at Board 
meetings and acts as the official head of the District for legislative and 
ceremonial purposes. The Fire Chief and Legal Counsel are appointed by 
the Board and serve at the pleasure of the Board. 
 
The Board is the District's legislative and policy-making body.  Acting as a 
whole, the Board is responsible for passing ordinances, resolutions and 
other orders necessary for governing the District, as well as setting the 
direction of District policy. The Fire Chief is responsible for administering 
and executing the general policies set by the Board, in addition to the day-
to-day operation of all District functions. The Fire Chief, with the help of the 
staff and Legal Counsel, provides the Board with the information needed to 
fulfill its policy-making role. 
 
The Board-Manager (Chief) form of government separates legislative and 
executive responsibilities in a manner similar to state and federal 
governments.  This system provides "checks and balances" of both policy 
and administrative branches of government by limiting the power of each. 
As the issues involved in local government have grown more complex, 
professional managers provide the cohesion necessary in the day-to-day 
operations. 

 
1030.1 Directors do not represent any fractional segment of the community 

comprising the District, but are, rather, a part of the body, which represents 
and acts for such community as a whole. 

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 110 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 11 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Attendance at Meetings 
POLICY NUMBER:  1040 
 
 
1040.0 Members of the Board of Directors shall attend all regular and special 

meetings of the Board.  
 
1040.1 Any Board Member who misses Board meetings unexcused for the period 

of three consecutive months (except when prevented by sickness, excused 
or when absent from the state), shall be deemed to have abandoned his/her 
office. 

 
  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 111 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 12 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Remuneration and Reimbursement 
POLICY NUMBER:  1050 
 
 
1050.0 Members of the Board of Directors shall receive compensation as follows: 

At the Regular Board meeting in January of every even year or as soon 
thereafter as practical, the Board of Directors shall review and consider, as 
a standing agenda item, Board Member compensation to determine if any 
adjustments are appropriate.   
 
Any adjustments to compensation shall be effective July 1 and shall comply 
with this policy as set forth below: 
Increase in compensation for each Member of the District's Board of 
Directors shall be authorized by an ordinance adopted pursuant to Health 
& Safety Code section 13857 and Chapter 2 of Division 10 of the California 
Water Code (Wat. Code, section 20200 et seq.) or its successor statute(s).   

Board Members may be compensated up to 10-days total during any 
calendar month, for each day's attendance at meetings of the board, or for 
each day's service otherwise rendered as a Board Member.  Those 
activities that are compensable, including various meetings, are set forth 
herein, pursuant to these adopted Policies.   

Compensable Board Member activities, including the meetings described 
herein, are necessary for the effective operation of the District.  Specifically, 
this degree of Board Member engagement is necessary for the following 
non-exhaustive District matters, including but not limited to, the significant 
amount of real property at risk of fire hazard within the District’s jurisdiction, 
the District’s significant call volume for emergency medical services, and 
the large fleet of equipment and employees necessary to carry out the 
District’s fire safety measures, for which the Board provides policy direction.   

Annually, the Board will consider re-affirming the need for the various 
compensable meetings, and other services rendered by Board Members, 
set forth within this Section that are necessary for the successful operation 
of the District.   

When necessary and approved by the Board, a day consisting solely of 
travel to attend a conference, seminar or other function on behalf of the 
District, will be interpreted as a day of service. A travel day may consist 
of the day before and the day after the conference, seminar or other 
function of the District but limited to a total of 2 days of service per 
each occurrence. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 112 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 13 of 63 
 
 

  

Only one per diem per day will be paid regardless of how many meetings 
are attended, with a cap on 10 total days of service or meetings per month 
that are compensable. 

A Board Invoice shall be completed monthly by each Board Member and 
submitted to the Clerk of the Board by the payroll calendar due date for 
Board Invoices.  Board Invoices shall be signed by individual Board 
Members confirming compliance with Section 1050.0.  The President and 
Vice President shall review Board invoices quarterly to ensure compliance 
with this policy.   

Board Members must provide brief reports (verbally or in writing) on 
meetings, conferences, seminars, training, education, and other events 
listed below and attended at the expense of the Fire District at the next 
regular Board Meeting. 

Compensated Meetings, conferences, seminars, training and education 
shall include: 

A. Regular and Special Meetings of the Board of Directors. 

B. Regular and Special Meetings of any standing committee, ad hoc 
committee, liaison assignment and alternate assignment (when the 
assigned liaison is not able to attend), as appointed by the President 
or the Board.  

C. Meetings or official public events with local state, or federal 
legislators or their representative(s) for District business, or 
consultants/contractors retained by the District for official District 
business, with prior approval by the Board, or meetings as 
representatives of the Fire District Legislative Committee.  

D. Meetings with District Leadership Development consultant for 
consulting directly related to District business. 

E. Quarterly meetings with partner cities, community, special district or 
fire district association liaisons.   

F. Conferences and educational workshops open to the public or public 
agencies and individual professional development sessions, which 
concern fire, emergency services or special districts. Webinars as 
stated in Section 1100.6 are also included in this section. The 
following agencies, associations and/or providers are approved by 
this section: 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 113 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 14 of 63 
 
 

  

ASBCSD - Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts 

BB&K - Best, Best and Krieger 

CALAFCO - California Local Agency Formation Commission 

CFCA - California Fire Chiefs Associations 

CFFJAC - California Fire Fighters Joint Apprenticeship Committee 

CSDA - California Special Districts Association 

CCFSC – Carbon Canyon Fire Safe Council 

FDAC - Fire Districts Association of California 

FEMA - Federal Emergency Management Association 

 EMI - Emergency Management Institute (Branch of FEMA) 

 NFA - National Fire Academy (Branch of FEMA) 

FW - Firehouse World 

IAFC - International Association of Fire Chiefs  

LAFCO - Local Agency Formation Commission 

LCW - Liebert, Cassidy and Whitmore 

OES - Office of Emergency Services 

SCAG - Southern California Association of Governments 

SDLF - Special District Leadership Foundation 

SDRMA - Special Districts Risk Management Association 

Conferences and educational workshops open to the public or public 
agencies and individual professional development sessions, which 
concern fire, emergency services or special districts not listed will 
require approval by the Board prior to attendance. 

G. Legally mandated training courses.  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 114 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 15 of 63 
 
 

  

H. President and Vice President monthly Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda review meetings with the Fire Chief, per Section 2020.1.   

I. Any other meeting, event, or activity related to District business or 
District interest where a Board Member is representing the District 
and approved in advance by the Board. 

J. With approval and assignment by the President or Board, any 
meetings to review documents as required by the Policy and 
Procedures of the Board of Directors. 

K. Individual Board Member meetings with the Fire Chief or his 
designee, limited to one meeting per month per Board Member. One 
additional meeting can be scheduled on an as needed basis as 
approved by the Board President.  The Board President and Vice 
President may have up to 4 compensable meetings per month 
as outlined in Board Policy 1060.7. 

L. Attendance at meetings for District-related agencies or associations, 
such as FDAC or CSDA, where a Board Member has been 
appointed by the Board or elected by such agency/association 
following Board approval/nomination. 

M. Attendance at District sponsored or hosted events as outlined below 
in this Policy or as approved by the Board. 

1. District or Fire Foundation sponsored events, employee 
recognition events, retirements and promotional ceremonies.  

2. District Fire Prevention Week Open House. 

3. State of the Fire District. 

4. Fire District facilities grand openings, dedications and 
ceremonial events. 

5. Salute to Public Safety. 

6. Filming for District sponsored productions. 

N. Attendance at service club meetings where a Director is making a 
presentation related to District business (not political in nature) and 
not merely as a member of the service club. 

O. Meetings with Fire District legal counsel on District related business, 
per Board Policy.  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 115 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 16 of 63 
 
 

  

P. Community, local service group, partner agency, and 
intergovernmental sponsored events within the District related to 
District business or District interest in which the President or his 
designee makes a presentation on behalf of the Fire Board or 
officially representing the Fire District. 

Q. Annual State of the City, County and School District events within 
the boundaries of the Fire District. 

R. Fred L. Burns Committee Meetings for the Board Member assigned 
to Committee. 

S. Community Parades in which a Board Member is representing the 
Fire District in an official capacity to include Chino and Chino Hills 
Day at the Fair. 

T. Ad Hoc Committee meetings or individual assignments 
pertaining to Ad Hoc committee.  

Directors will not receive compensation or expense reimbursement for any of the 
following: 

a. Social or ceremonial events not pre-approved by the Board and as outline 
by this policy. 

b. Non-profit organization events not pre-approved by the Board. 

c. District sponsored employee luncheons.  

d. Festivals, funerals, picnics, weddings or holiday events. 

e. Meetings of partisan or political organizations. 

f. Basic skills training such as basic computer training or writing courses. 

g. Re-taking training or certifications except to the extent such training/certifications 
are legally required to be re-taken (i.e., AB 1234 ethics training, Prevention of 
Sexual Harassment training, etc.) 

1050.1 Benefits Policy. 
 

Under state law (Health & Safety Code § 13968), members of the Board of 
Directors may receive the same benefits as employees, although no 
greater. For Board Members first elected or appointed after January 1, 
1995, the allowance amount shall be limited to the maximum amount for 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 116 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 17 of 63 
 
 

  

non-safety members as required by a change in state law. This allowance 
may be used to purchase “health and welfare benefits,” as defined by 
Government Code Section 53200(d), as authorized by the District and as 
allowed by state and/or federal law.  
 
The balance of any allowance shall not be paid in cash.   Board Members 
electing health, or optical coverage must make these selections within 60-
days of taking office; for dental coverage within 30-days of taking office; and 
for other permissible benefit options within 90-days of taking office.  Any 
changes to these selections will be subject to the same open enrollment 
periods, waiting periods, and qualifying event limitations applicable to 
employees.  There will be no retroactive benefit provision beyond the 
maximum 90-day selection period. 
Any Board Member that fails to allocate the portion of allowance to Health 
Coverage shall forfeit the remaining allowance. 
 
Board of Directors will not receive a pension based on their service on the 
Board as stated in State Law. 
 
Board of Directors will not receive District paid health care benefits after 
their service on the Board has concluded as stated in State Law. 
 
A list of Board Member benefits will be maintained by Human Resources 
and attached to this document by reference. 
 

1050.2 Reimbursement Policy – Travel and Expenses. 
 

Pursuant to applicable State and Federal law, including AB 1234, District 
Board Members will be reimbursed, or the District may directly pay, for 
expenses incurred to attend Board approved professional or vocational 
meetings, actual and necessary travel, and incidental expenses while on 
official Board authorized business.  Such expenses include, but are not 
limited to, mileage, meals, actual costs and expenses of travel, lodging 
(while on District business) and educational seminars or conferences 
necessary to serve as a Board Member.  
 
District Board Members will be reimbursed in accordance with the 
provisions of the District’s Travel and Reimbursable Expense Policy with 
the following exceptions/additions:     

1)  Itemized receipts verifying appropriate claimed expenditures 
will be required, without exception;  

  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 117 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 18 of 63 
 
 

  

2)  Per diem for meals and meal allowances will not apply, and 
only reasonable and necessary meal expenses accompanied by a receipt 
will be reimbursed;  

3)  A full day of business for the purpose of lodging shall also 
include: 

  i)  one additional day before the first day of the event and 
one additional day after the event if the Board Member spends in excess 
of four (4) hours in the performance of his/her official duties for such event 
(including, travelling, pre-conference gatherings, checking in to hotel and/or 
the event, etc.); one additional day before and one additional day after 
the event the first day of the event if the event location is more than 50 
miles from the District; and  

    ii)  one additional day following the last day of the event if 
the Board Member spends in excess of four (4) hours in the performance of 
his/her official duties for such event, or one additional day after the last day 
of the event if the event location is more than 50 miles from the District.  

4)  Requests for reimbursement for expenses associated with 
family members, spouses, etc. will not be considered by the Board;   

5)  Conference lodging arrangements will utilize published group 
discount rates whenever available (when published group rates are not 
available, expenses must be administered in accordance with IRS 
guidelines); and;  

6)   Airfare shall be of the coach level travel.  All air travel of 1,000 
miles or less may be at the refundable coach travel level.  All air travel 
over 1,000 miles shall be non-refundable ticketing. 

7) Mileage reimbursement for Board travel shall be based on 
actual miles driven and total mileage reimbursement shall not exceed the 
applicable coach airfare amount as specified in 1050.2 (6) above.  

8) Mileage reimbursement for Board travel to functions, 
meetings and/or other local events lasting one day or less may file for 
mileage monthly by summiting a mileage log identifying event, time 
and round trip mileage. 

9) All other mileage reimbursement for events lasting two days 
or longer must be submitted on the District travel form.  Mileage 
reimbursement may include round trip travel and any additional 
mileage acquired during the trip.   

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 118 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 19 of 63 
 
 

  

In addition to the specific requirements of this Policy and the District’s Travel 
and Reimbursable Expense Policy, reimbursement to Board Members shall 
be governed by the over-arching principle that such reimbursements are 
made from the taxpayers’ dollars.   As such, Board Members shall refrain 
from any activity that seeks to “maximize” his/her reimbursement, including, 
but not limited to, obtaining extravagant or unnecessary meals.  
Notwithstanding any technical compliance with this Policy or the Travel and 
Reimbursable Expense Policy, the Board reserves the right to withhold or 
recoup any reimbursement that the Board determines to be not consistent 
with this over-arching principle. 

In addition, Board Members must provide a brief written or verbal report at 
the next Regular Board meeting describing any seminars, workshops 
conferences or meetings for which reimbursements were made or for which 
the District paid.  Such reports will be deemed made if supplied in the 
agenda packets distributed to the Board and requesting parties. 

In order to be reimbursed, the Board Member shall present itemized 
receipts (or a record of mileage) to the Clerk of the Board on an expense 
report, provided by the District, on a monthly basis, and at no time more 
than 30 days after incurring the expense.   

District Board Members will submit a District Travel and Expense 
Reimbursement Forms, no more than 30 days after incurring an expense, 
for all expenses incurred and paid for by the District even if there is no 
reimbursement due the District Board Member.  This includes all pre-paid 
events by the Fire District and purchasing card expenses. Board Members 
need not submit a Travel and Reimbursement Statement for any events for 
which a stipend is requested or events where the District purchases a table 
for both staff and Board Members.  

The Board President and/ Vice President shall also review Travel and 
Expense Reimbursement Forms quarterly to ensure compliance with Board 
Policies. It is recognized that periodically Board Members are requested to 
represent the Fire District at community assigned or approved meetings 
other than those listed in Section 1050.0.  In these instances, the Board 
President may authorize Board Members attendance; however, expenses 
may only be reimbursed after ratification at the next regular Board meeting.   

Any and all expenses that do not fall within the adopted reimbursement 
policy or IRS reimbursable rates are required to be approved by the Board 
of Directors in a public meeting prior to the expense being incurred.  
Expenses that do not adhere to the adopted reimbursement policy or the 
IRS reimbursable rates, and that do not receive approval from the Board of 
Directors in a public meeting, shall not be eligible for reimbursement.  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 119 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 20 of 63 
 
 

  

Individual Board Members will sign their Board Travel and Reimbursement 
Expense Forms to confirm compliance with Board Policy.   

Any Board Member may file for mileage reimbursement for attending Board 
approved meetings as referenced in Section 1050.0 located out of the 
boundaries of the District, including mileage to and from the airport from the 
District or home, whichever is less. Board Members may file a monthly 
expense report to the District for reimbursement.  The mileage 
reimbursement shall comply with the IRS rules for mileage. In accordance 
with the District’s Travel and Reimbursable Expense Policy (E)(2)(d), 
documentation reflecting mileage with the most efficient route must be 
included as reference.  The Travel and expense Reimbursement Form must 
be filed by the fifth day of the following month.   

When Board members travel, it is recommended that travel arrangements 
be made as far out from the travel date as reasonable to maximize the 
opportunity to obtain the best fare. 

 Board Members shall not be reimbursed for travel agents or third-party 
companies for travel reservations, since such services are unnecessary 
costs to the Fire District.   

 
1050.3 Reimbursement for Technology and Related Expenses 

Board Members may receive reimbursement for substantiated technology 
expenses or use of District owned devices in accordance with the District’s 
Technology Use Policy. A Technology Allowance Election form must be 
submitted to commence the reimbursement process.  Reimbursement may 
be retroactive to the 1st of the month in which the required substantiating 
documentation was submitted. From time to time, the Fire District will 
request substantiating documentation that must be submitted within 30 
days of a written request to continue monthly reimbursement.  

 

Board Members are discouraged from using personally owed devices for 
purposes such as making and receiving telephone calls, text messages or 
other electronic correspondence during public meetings for information 
concerning District business. 

 

1050.4 Board Issued Equipment.  

Board Members may be issued the following District equipment: 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 120 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 21 of 63 
 
 

  

A. Brush Jacket identified with Chino Valley Fire District lettering and 
name identification complying with District's specifications. This 
equipment is to be used for identification purposes only. 

B. White fire helmet with Director designation  

C. Wallet badge and wallet 

D. Identification card 

E. District credit or Purchasing Card  

F. Emergency Priority Phone Access Card 

G.      Administration Access Key or FOB 

Board Members are responsible for the care and security of District issued 
equipment, including replacing the equipment and/or reimbursing the 
District for the cost of any lost or damaged equipment.  Upon termination 
and/or request of the President of the Board, a Board Member must return 
District issued equipment within seven (7) calendar days of the request.  If 
the equipment is not returned within the seven-day period, if appropriate, 
the Fire Board is authorized to initiate appropriate action for recovery.   

Administration Board Office Access Keys will be programmed to operate 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
Administration Building Office Access Keys will be programmed to operate 
during normal business hours Monday through Friday between 7:00 a.m. to 
6:00 p.m. while the building alarm is off.  

Fire District Electronic Equipment Use Policy, Social Media Use Policy and 
Purchasing Card Use Policy will apply to Board Members. 

The District provided credit or purchasing card shall not be used for any 
personal expense, regardless of whether the Board Member ultimately 
reimburses the District for such expense. 

The President and/or Vice President shall review purchasing card 
statement quarterly to ensure compliance with Board Policies. 

Board Members, in good standing as determined by the Board of Directors 
in its discretion, retiring after eight consecutive years of service as a Board 
Member, may be issued a “Retired Director” badge and a “Retired Director” 
helmet shield plaque. The Board may, in its discretion, approve issuing 
these items for less than 8 years of service, with Board approval. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 121 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 22 of 63 
 
 

  

Board Members having served a 4 year term and in good standing as 
determined by the Board of Directors in its discretion, may be allowed 
to keep the District issued and personalized Brush Jacket and white 
fire helmet. 

 

1050.5 Electronic Communications Accounts Use 
 

Board Members shall comply with the Fire District’s Electronic 
Communications Accounts Use Policy, which establishes guidelines for 
Board Members for use of electronic communications accounts for District 
Business.  
 

1050.6 Board Members may use Fire District issued purchasing cards for qualifying 
expenses as outlined in the Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors or 
as approved by the Board. Board Members are to reconcile their monthly 
purchasing card statement and submit itemized receipts and approved 
statements to the Clerk of the Board for processing prior to submitting to 
accounts payable.  Board Members shall submit all itemized purchasing 
card receipts to the Clerk of the Board within 15 days following the incurring 
of each expense. 

 

  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 122 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 23 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Board President 
POLICY NUMBER:  1060 
 
 
1060.0 The President of the Board of Directors shall serve as chair at all Board 

meetings. He/she shall have the same rights as the other members of the 
Board in voting, introducing motions, resolutions and ordinances, and any 
discussion or questions that follow said actions.  The election of the Board 
President and Vice President are outlined in section 2010.5. 

 
1060.1 In the absence of the President, the Vice President of the Board of Directors 

shall serve as chair over all meetings of the Board. If the President and Vice 
President of the Board are both absent, the remaining members present 
shall select one of themselves to act as chair of the meeting. 

 
1060.2 Board Policy grants limited authority to the President to appoint Board 

Members to standing committees and liaison assignments, as set forth in 
Policy 1080. The Board President is also responsible, specified in Policy 
2020.1, for coordinating individual Board Member requests for agenda 
items, including agenda items that may require staff work for the Fire Chief, 
District personnel or legal counsel.  

 
1060.3 The President will be the primary Board contact with District Legal Counsel 

unless the Board directs otherwise or unless a matter involves the 
President, then the contact may be through the Vice President.  

1060.43 It is the President’s assigned responsibility to correspond with persons or 
organizations when it is appropriate to represent adopted District policy.  
Correspondence expressing a District position on legislative, political or 
policy issues shall require Board action.  On occasion, support or opposition 
letters on legislative issues of direct concern to the Fire District may require 
timely submission.  In certain circumstances, such as letters requested by 
CSDA, FDAC, CalChiefs or partner agencies on issues directly related to 
Fire District concern or where such a letter would be consistent with a 
previously taken policy position of the Board, the President of the Board 
shall have the authority to prepare correspondence expressing a Fire 
District position on legislative issues requiring timely submission and report 
to the Board at the next Board Meeting. Such correspondence shall receive 
high priority for timely preparation and distribution.  

1060.4   It is the President’s assigned responsibility to initiate, coordinate 
and schedule the annual Performance Evaluation of the Fire Chief.   
The President shall obtain all required Performance Evaluation forms 
and other necessary printed material to be distributed to the Board.   
The President shall call for a closed session of the Board for the 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 123 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 24 of 63 
 
 

  

purpose of distributing the paperwork and discuss the process for 
the Fire Chief Performance Evaluation. 

 
The President shall decide on the format and/or procedures of the 
evaluation.  The President shall have the authority to have additional 
evaluations throughout his/her presidency if he/she deems 
appropriate. 

 
The evaluations shall be closed session meetings and adhere to the 
Brown Act.   
 

1060.5   It is the President’s assigned responsibility to initiate, coordinate 
and schedule an annual Board workshop for team building and 
setting District goals. 

 
The President shall decide on the format of the workshop length and 
content.  The President shall have the authority to have additional 
workshops throughout his/her presidency. 

 
The workshops shall be open meetings unless portions of the 
workshop demands closed session under the Brown Act.   

 
1060.6    The President shall be authorized up to 2 days compensation for 

each evaluation and workshop preparation.  The Vice President shall 
be entitled to the same compensation if assisting the President in 
said preparations.  The President may hire the consultant and/or 
facilitator of his/her choice for the evaluations and workshop.   

 
1060.7   The President shall be authorized up to 4 days compensation per 

month for meetings with the Fire Chief and/or District Personnel to 
conduct District business.  The President shall not meet with District 
Personnel under this secton without first discussing the reason for 
the meeting.  The Vice President may be included and subject to the 
same compensation as set above if the President deems necessary. 

 
1060.8 The President shall work in conjunction with the Fire Chief and the 

Assistant to the Fire Chief on the annual State of the Fire District. 
 
1060.9 The President has the authority to approve additional Board Member 

compensated events such as Ad Hoc, Conferences, Seminars, 
Education, Training, Travel or other events not listed in Board Policy 
1050.0. Such action shall be placed on the consent calendar of the 
next available Board meeting. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 124 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 25 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Members of the Board of Directors 
POLICY NUMBER:  1070 
 
 
1070.0 Directors shall thoroughly prepare themselves to discuss agenda items at 

meetings of the Board of Directors. Information may be provided to 
Directors before meetings provided all Board Members receive the same 
information and do not attempt to discuss or develop a collective 
concurrence as to action to be taken prior to such meeting.  Board Members 
shall comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code 
54950 et seq. 

 
1070.1 Written information that is exchanged before meetings shall be distributed 

through the Clerk of the Board and all Directors will receive all information 
being distributed. 

 
1070.2 Directors shall at all times conduct themselves with courtesy to each other, 

to staff and to members of the audience present at Board meetings. 
 
1070.3 Directors shall defer to the President for conduct of meetings of the Board, 

but shall be free to question and discuss items on the agenda in an orderly 
manner. All comments should be brief and confined to the matter being 
discussed by the Board.  Board Members should not interrupt the Board 
President or other Board Members, while speaking. 

 
1070.4 Directors may request that brief comments pertinent to an agenda item be 

included in the minutes; however, such requests may only be made at the 
meeting at which that particular item is discussed. 

 
  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 125 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 26 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE: Committees of the Board of Directors, Community 
Liaison Assignments, AdHoc Committees and Boards of 
Joint Power Authorities 

 
POLICY NUMBER:  1080 
 
1080.0 The Board President shall appoint such ad hoc committees as may be 

deemed necessary or advisable by himself/herself and the Board.  Ad hoc 
committee appointments by the Board President should be announced by 
the Board of Directors at the next Board Meeting following appointment. The 
President should appoint a Chair, and the duties of the ad hoc committees 
shall be outlined at the time of appointment. The committee shall be 
considered dissolved when its final report has been made and reported to 
the Clerk of the Board for recording purposes. 

 
1080.1 The Board President shall appoint and publicly announce appointments to 

Board standing committees, liaison assignments and Boards of JPAs for 
the ensuing year no later than the Board’s first Regular Meeting in 
December with an effective date of January 1.  A list of appointments should 
be made available at the Board Meeting prior to being announced.  The role 
of the liaison is to attend meetings and represent the Board, gather 
information and concerns, develop contacts and relationships with local 
agencies within the Fire District, and report back to the Board in an effort to 
best serve the community.  

 
 Board Members are not to represent Board or Fire District positions without 

the prior approval of the Board.  Board Members are not to express personal 
opinions or make personal comments when doing so could be construed as 
representing an official position of the Board (i.e., when representing the 
Fire District in any capacity or while wearing Fire District attire). 

 
Board Members assigned as representatives or liaisons to other agencies 
must attend the meeting in person unless the meeting is occurring out of 
the District.  In the event the meeting is out of the District, the meeting can 
be attended online by a Board Member only if the meeting is viewed live, 
and remote attendance is permitted pursuant to an executive order issued 
by the California Governor, or the agency’s meetings are only provided 
online.  Reviewing video of meetings after they have occurred is not 
permitted.  The Board Member must attend the meeting until reasonably 
certain that there is no need to attend the entire meeting, meaning that 
there is nothing on the agenda that affects the District.    
 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 126 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 27 of 63 
 
 

  

1080.2 The role of the Board's standing committees is to review policy issues 
pertaining to the committee’s area of responsibility. Committee 
recommendations shall be referred to the full Board of Directors.  

 
Committee Meetings shall be held as needed to fulfill their roles and 
responsibilities.  The Board of Directors shall periodically review the 
functional application of such committees and evaluate the need to add, 
merge, or eliminate committees. 

 
1080.3 The following shall be committees of the Board: 
 

A. Planning Committee 
The Planning Committee shall be tasked with reviewing policies 
relating to plans for the development of the Fire District and the 
delivery of emergency services. 
 

B. Human Resources Committee 
The Human Resources Committee shall be tasked with reviewing 
policies affecting the welfare of District personnel, as well as changes 
to classification structure and staffing levels. 
 

 C. Finance Committee 
 

The Finance Committee shall be tasked with reviewing policies 
related to financial management of the District, including review of 
proposed budgets, major expenditures, long-range financial plans 
and other significant financial matters of the District.  

 
  D. Legislative Committee 
 

 The Legislative Committee shall be tasked with reviewing proposed 
and enacted legislation of interest to the District, including attending 
outside meetings of legislative interest to the Fire District, as 
individual representatives of the Fire District, and report any 
recommendations or matters of concern to the Board of Directors. 
The Legislative Committee has the authority to sign letters of 
support or opposed to any legislation. Such action shall be 
placed on the consent calendar of the next available Board 
meeting.   

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 127 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 28 of 63 
 
 

  

1080.4 Community Liaisons  
 
Community Liaisons may be appointed by the President to represent the 
District as needed in accordance with Section 1080.1.  Standing liaison 
assignments include: 
 

1. County of San Bernardino Meetings (one Board Member and 
one alternate) 

2. City Mayor/Manager Quarterly Meetings (Board President 
and Vice President) 

3. City of Chino (Two Board Members, one primary, one 
secondary) 

4. City of Chino Hills (Two Board Members, one primary, one 
secondary) 

5. Chino Valley Unified School District Board Meetings (one 
Board Member and one alternate) 

6. Fire Safe Council Meetings (one Board Member and one 
alternate) 

7.  Citizen Advisory Committee Chino Institute for Men (one 
Board Member and one alternate) 

8. Citizen Advisory Committee Chino Institute for Women (one 
Board Member and one alternate) 

9. San Bernardino County Airport Commission (one Board 
Member and one alternate) 

10. Fire Foundation (one Board Member and one alternate) 
11. IEUA (One Board Member and one alternate) 

 
A Board Member attending a community liaison assignment may give the District report, 
limited to public relations, to the governing body or group to which he/she is assigned.  In 
the event that the primary liaison is unavailable to attend, then the secondary Board 
Member may give the District report.  The primary and secondary Board Member may 
receive compensation for attendance as assigned.  The alternate Board Member will 
receive compensation only when attending on behalf of the primary.  
 
1080.5 Other Meetings 
 

The Board President, Vice President and Fire Chief may meet as necessary 
with the Fire District’s stakeholders (City of Chino, City of Chino Hills, San 
Bernardino County, and other legislators) to discuss matters of District 
concern.   Board Members may attend such meeting as assigned by the 
Board President. 

 
 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 128 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 29 of 63 
 
 

  

1080.6 Boards of Joint Power Authorities 
 

Board Members may be appointed by the Board President to represent the 
Fire District in accordance with Section 1080.0 and 1080.1 on Boards of 
Joint Power Authorities with full voting authority on behalf of the Fire Board.  
The President shall appoint a primary and alternate member, when called 
for by the JPA governing documents.  The appointed Board Members are 
expected to report to the full Fire District Board of Directors after attendance 
at every JPA Board Meeting, including any significant votes or discussions. 

 
1080.7   Board Members assigned to Liaisons to the Cities of Chino and Chino 

Hills, San Bernardino County Board of Supervisors, Chino Valley 
Unified School District, Inland Empire Utilities District and CONFIRE 
shall have the additional responsibility to meet with their respective 
assignments acting on behalf of the Board to discuss facilities, DIF’s 
and other matters that directly affect the District. 

 
  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 129 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 30 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  CEREMONIAL CERTIFICATES AND PRESENTATIONS 
POLICY NUMBER:  1085 
 
 
1085.0 As a first responder governmental agency, the Fire District may be 

represented at community events by local area elected representatives 
such as a legislators, County Supervisor or City Council members as area 
representatives.  However, at times, it may be appropriate for the Board 
Members or Fire Chief to present certificates directly representing the Fire 
District when the relevance is specific to the Fire District. 

 
The President of the Board shall sign and present all Fire District ceremonial 
certificates presented at community events within the Fire District.  The 
President may designate a Board Member to sign and/or present on his/her 
behalf if unavailable.  At times, it may be appropriate for the Fire Chief to 
present the certificate on behalf of the President.  The President will ensure 
that all certificates are in compliance with this policy as set forth below. 
 
Fire District ceremonial certificates will be reserved for written or formal 
requests from governmental partner agencies within the District.  A request 
for a certificate shall be relevant to the Fire District and representative of the 
Fire District’s support for the recipient of the certificate as outlined in this 
policy.  
 
Ceremonial certificates when formally requested by the recipient may be 
presented as follows: 
 
A. Civic celebrations within the Fire District; events in support of partner 

cities and legislators and non-profit organization with a direct relevance 
to the service provided by the Fire District and directly promoting the Fire 
District. 

B. Retirements for government officials within the Fire District and Fire 
Service Chief Officers. 

C. Heroism specifically related to the Fire District. 
D. Eagle Scout or similar significant Chino Valley community 

accomplishments or achievements as requested. 
E. Non-profit corporations specific to promoting and supporting the Fire 

District. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 130 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 31 of 63 
 
 

  

Requests for certificates of generic nature and/or not specific to the Fire District’s 
role or support, or requests that are commercial or political in nature shall not be 
qualified for presentation without Board pre-approval at a Board Meeting.   
Certificates for governmental events or activities outside of the Fire District 
boundaries may be presented if a formal request is submitted by the requestor and 
the local event or activity demonstrates Fire District relevance and support of the 
receiving organization.  Such presentations must obtain prior approval by the 
Board President and shall be announced at the next Regular Board Meeting during 
Board Comments. 

 
  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 131 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 32 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Membership in Associations 
POLICY NUMBER:  1090 
 
 
1090.0 The Board of Directors recognizes that individual Directors memberships 

and participation in certain associations, service clubs, and fraternal 
organizations may have inherent value to the District and therefore 
encourages such participation.   Directors in good standing as determined 
by the Board of Directors may receive reimbursement of the direct and 
reasonable cost of said membership. Board Members are limited to no more 
than two such memberships paid for by the Fire District. Authorization for 
membership and participation shall be reviewed annually by the Board in 
January. 

 
 Individual Board memberships in other professional organizations must be 

approved by the Board annually. 
 
  
 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 132 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 33 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Training, Education and Conferences 
POLICY NUMBER:  1100 
 
 
1100.0 Members of the Board of Directors are encouraged to attend educational 

conferences and professional meetings when the purpose of such activities 
is to improve Board Member performance and/or District operation. With 
prior approval from the Board of Directors or Board Policy and Procedures 
appropriate budgeted expenditures associated with these conferences and 
meetings can be reimbursed as outlined in Section 1050.2. 

  
1100.1 It is the intent of the Board to encourage Board development and excellence 

of performance by reimbursing expenses incurred for tuition, travel, lodging 
and meals as a result of training, mandated and educational courses, 
approved and required webinars or conference call meetings, participation 
with professional organizations, and attendance at local, state and national 
conferences as approved by the Board or the Board Policy and Procedures.  
It is the policy of the Board of Directors that Directors receive Board 
approval prior to attending these events, if not in the Board Policy and 
Procedure Manual, or incurring any expenses on behalf of the District. In 
the absence of time, the Board President may approve attendance for which 
the Board Member may be eligible for remuneration and/or reimbursement 
pursuant to Sections 1050.0 and 1050.2. Such remuneration and 
reimbursement will subsequently be presented to the entire Board for 
ratification.    

 
1100.2 When Board Members are authorized by the Board to attend conferences 

and/or seminars, Board Members are responsible for confirming in writing 
(which may include an email), with the Clerk of the Board their intent to 
attend authorized conferences/seminars and this confirmation shall take 
place with sufficient time allowed to comply with registration deadlines and 
cancellation policies for the conference/seminar.  The Clerk of the Board or 
designee is responsible for coordinating the necessary travel and lodging 
arrangements for Board Members.   The Board Members may make some 
or all of his/her arrangements, however, the Board Member must coordinate 
his/her arrangements with the Clerk of the Board or his/her designee to 
specify what components of the travel will be handled by the Board Member.  
Board Members shall notify Clerk of the Board of any changes to original 
requests and/or reservations or registrations in writing (which may include 
email) to avoid any unnecessary cancellation or change fees. Board 
Members shall not be reimbursed for travel agents or third-party companies 
for travel reservations, since such services are unnecessary costs to the 
Fire District.  

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 133 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 34 of 63 
 
 

  

1100.3 Expenses to the District for Board of Directors' training, education and 
conferences will be governed by Section 1050.2 of this policy document and 
the District’s Travel and Reimbursable Expense Policy and should be kept 
to a minimum by:  

 
A. Utilizing published group discount lodging rates whenever available.  
B. Directors traveling together whenever feasible and economically 

beneficial. 
C. Requesting reservations sufficiently in advance, when possible, to 

obtain discounted rates. 
 

1100.4 A Director shall not attend a conference, training event or liaison committee 
assignment for which there is an expense to the District if it occurs after the 
Director announced his or her pending resignation or unsuccessful 
reelection.  

1100.5 Board Members are expected to complete the Special District Leadership 
Foundation (SDLF) Special District Leadership Academy, within 18 12 
months of becoming a Board Member, which has been identified as the core 
special district governance training in California and covers the essentials 
of good governance.  It is also highly recommended that the FEMA 
sponsored Introduction to the Incident Command System (IS100) Course 
be completed within 18 months of becoming a Board Member. Board 
Members are also encouraged to complete any courses required by Fire 
District Board Members to maintain the California Special Districts (CSDA) 
District of Distinction Certification and the Fire District Transparency 
Certification.   

1100.6 Members of the Board of Directors are encouraged to attend webinars that 
are Board related training and education.   Any webinar taken by a Board 
Member that results in a stipend must provide a copy of webinar completion.  
Any non-certificated course is not eligible for a stipend.  Webinars are 
limited to two (2) per month.  The two (2) per month limit is in addition to 
any other required or mandated training as outlined in these policies.  These 
webinars are limited to any Board level training offered by the California 
Special Districts Association (CSDA), Fire Districts Association of California 
(FDAC), Liebert, Cassidy and Whitmore (LCW) and Best, Best and Krieger 
(BB&K), Stipend pay is included in Section 1050.0.  

  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 134 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 35 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Board Member Safety 
POLICY NUMBER:  1110 
 
 
1110.00 Board Members Safety 
 

The scene of a major emergency is often a chaotic and dangerous 
environment.  If a Board Member determines that it is necessary for them 
to personally visit the scene it is requested that they make contact with the 
Fire Chief in advance of traveling to the incident.  If the Fire Chief is 
unavailable the Board Member should contact the Back-Up Duty Chief or 
the Incident Commander prior to traveling to the scene.  Making contact in 
advance of arriving at the scene will allow staff an opportunity to provide for 
the safety of the Board Member upon their arrival at the incident.    
 
In these situations, Board Members should also be aware that our 
Command Staff will be focused on providing for the safety of the public and 
our personnel; with that in mind there may not be a staff member 
immediately available to brief them or escort them around the scene.      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 135 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 36 of 63 
 
 

  

 
POLICY TITLE:  Board Member Fire District Clothing Use 
POLICY NUMBER:  1120 
 
 
1120.00 Board Members District Clothing Use 
 

Board Member approved clothing will be ordered through the Clerk of the 
Board.  Clothing allowance will be approved by the Board through the 
annual budget process.  Board Members may wear approved clothing only 
to events where Board Members are representing the Fire District and shall 
not be used for personal gain.  
 
Upon leaving office, Board Members shall cease wearing clothing 
representing the Fire District and shall either return the clothing to the Fire 
District for appropriate disposal or dispose of all Fire District clothing in a 
manner in which the clothing cannot identified as Fire District clothing and 
used to represent the Fire District. 
 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 136 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 37 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Board Meetings 
POLICY NUMBER:  2010 
 
 
2010.0 Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the second 

Wednesday of each month, with the open session beginning at 6:00 p.m. 
(closed sessions may begin at any posted time prior to or after the open 
session) at the Chino Valley Independent Fire District Headquarters Office 
located at 14011 City Center Drive, Chino Hills, California.  The Board of 
Directors hereby reaffirms its commitment to complying with the Ralph M. 
Brown Act (California Government Code §54950 through §54963). 

 
2010.1  Special Meetings (non-emergency) of the Board of Directors may be called 

by the Board President or by a majority of the Board. 
 
    

 A. All Directors, the Fire Chief and desired staff shall be notified of the 
Special Board meeting and the purpose or purposes for which it is 
called.  Said notification shall be in writing, delivered personally, by 
mail, facsimile, electronically or otherwise at least twenty-four (24) 
hours prior to the meeting.  Written notice may be dispensed for any 
Director, who at or prior to the time the meeting convenes, files with 
the Clerk of the Board a written waiver of notice, or for any Director 
who is actually present at the meeting when it convenes. 

 B. Newspapers of general circulation in the District, radio stations, 
television stations, organizations, and property owners who have 
requested notice of special meetings in accordance with the Ralph 
M. Brown Act shall be notified in writing, delivered personally, by mail, 
facsimile, electronically or otherwise, and shall be received at least 
24 hours before the time of the meeting as specified in the notice. 

 C. An agenda shall be prepared as specified for Regular Board 
meetings in Policy #2020 and shall be delivered with the notice of the 
Special Meeting to those specified above. 

 D. Only those items of business listed in the call for the Special Meeting 
shall be considered by the Board at any Special Meeting. 

E.       The Board shall not call a special meeting to discuss or act on the 
salary, salary schedule, or compensation paid in the form of fringe 
benefits for the any of the following positions, including anyone acting 
in any such capacity, at the District: the Fire Chief, any Deputy Chief, 
the Finance Manager, and the Human Resources Manager.  Any 
such discussion or action shall occur at a regular meeting of the 
Board.  However, this subdivision does not apply to the Board calling 
a special meeting to discuss the District's budget. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 137 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 38 of 63 
 
 

  

2010.2 Special Meetings (emergency) 
 
  A. Regular Emergency 

An emergency means a work stoppage, crippling activity, or other 
activity that severely impairs public health, safety, or both, as 
determined by a majority of the Board of Directors.  In the case of an 
emergency situation involving matters upon which prompt action is 
necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption of public 
facilities, the Board of Directors may hold an emergency meeting 
without complying with either the 24-hour notice requirement or the 
24-hour posting requirement for special meetings, or both.  However, 
each person, local newspaper of general circulation and radio or 
television station that has requested notice of special meetings 
pursuant to the Brown Act and Policy #2010.1 shall be notified by the 
President of the Board of Directors, or his or her designee, one hour 
prior to the emergency meeting. 

 
B. Dire Emergency 

A dire emergency means a crippling disaster, mass destruction, 
terrorist act, or threatened terrorist activity that poses peril so 
immediate and significant that requiring the Board of Directors to 
provide one-hour notice before holding an emergency meeting may 
endanger the public health, safety, or both, as determined by a 
majority of the Board of Directors. In the case of a dire emergency, 
at or near the time that the President of the Board of Directors or his 
or her designee notifies the members of the Board of Directors of the 
emergency meeting, notice of the dire emergency special meeting 
shall be given by telephone and all telephone numbers provided in 
the most recent request of a person, newspaper or station for 
notification of special meetings shall be exhausted.  In the event that 
telephone services are not functioning, the notice requirements of 
this policy section 2010.2 shall be deemed waived, and the Board of 
Directors, or any designee of the Board of Directors, shall notify 
those newspapers, radio stations, or television stations of the fact of 
the holding of the emergency meeting, the purpose of the meeting, 
and any action taken at the meeting as soon after the meeting as 
possible.  

 
2010.3  During a meeting held pursuant to policy #2010.2, the Board of Directors 

may meet in closed session pursuant to the Brown Act (Gov. Code, § 
54957, subd. (a).) (i.e. with the Attorney General, district attorney, agency 
counsel, sheriff, or chief of police, or their respective deputies, or a security 
consultant or a security operations manager, on matters posing a threat to 
the security of public buildings, a threat to the security of essential public 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 138 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 39 of 63 
 
 

  

services, including water, drinking water, wastewater treatment, natural gas 
service, and electric service, or a threat to the public’s right of access to 
public services or public facilities) if agreed to by a two-thirds vote of the 
members of the Board of Directors that are present, or, if less than two-
thirds of the members are present, by a unanimous vote of the Board of 
Directors present.  

    
All special meeting requirements, as prescribed in the Brown Act (Gov. 
Code, § 54956 and these policies shall be applicable to a meeting called 
pursuant to policy #2010.2, with the exception of the 24-hour notice 
requirement. 
 
The minutes of a meeting called pursuant to this Policy #2020.2, a list of 
persons whom the President of the Board of Directors, or designee of the 
Board of Directors, notified or attempted to notify, a copy of the roll call vote, 
and any actions taken at the meeting shall be posted for a minimum of 10 
days in a public place as soon after any emergency or dire emergency 
meeting as possible. 

 
2010.4 Adjourned Meetings.   
 
   The Board of Directors may adjourn any Board meeting at any place in the 

agenda to any time and place specified in the order of adjournment, except 
that if no Directors are present at any regular or adjourned regular meeting, 
the Clerk of the Board may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time 
and place, and he/she shall cause a written notice of adjournment to be 
given to those specified in section 2010.1.B. above.  If less than a quorum 
is present, those present may so adjourn from time to time. A copy of the 
order or notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously posted on or near the 
door of the place where the meeting was held within 24 hours after the time 
of the adjournment. 

 
    
2010.5  Election of Board Officers; Organizational Meetings.   
 

Subject to the other provisions of this Section and to state law, the Board of 
Directors shall elect a President and Vice President at its first regular 
meeting in November.   The election of the President and Vice President is 
made by the Board and shall become effective on December 1 of that year.  
The Board may, in its discretion, choose to forego such election of its 
President and Vice President at the first such November meeting in years 
where there is a general district election or unopposed election, triggering 
a separate election of the Board’s President and Vice President at a 
different meeting of the Board, as set forth immediately below.   

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 139 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 40 of 63 
 
 

  

In accordance with Health and Safety Code section 13853, within 60 days 
after each general district election or unopposed election to the Board, the 
Board shall meet and elect its President and Vice President.  New Board 
Members who have won such election but have not yet assumed their 
position on the Board may be elected to be the Board President or Vice 
President, but such election shall not become effective until the later of 
when new Member assumes office or the first day of the calendar month 
following the Board Member’s election as President or Vice President.   
Such election, pursuant to this paragraph, of any Board Member other than 
a newly elected Board Member shall become effective on the first day of the 
calendar month following such election to be President or Vice President. 

 
The procedure for the Board’s election of its President and Vice President 
is as follows:   

 
A. Nominations may be made from the Board.  When a nomination is 

made, no second is required. 
B. No one can nominate more than one person for a given office until 

every member who desires has an opportunity to nominate a person. 
C. The current President will call for the nominations by saying, 

"Nominations are now in order for the office of President, etc." 
D. Member should say, "I nominate Director?"  Current President should 

say, "Director? is nominated.  Are there any further nominations for 
the office of President etc.?"  (Pause) “If not, nominations are 
closed." 

E. For office for which no candidate has a majority, the current 
President announces "No Election".  

F. Voting Procedure is a Voice Vote. 
 

 
2010.6  The President of the meetings described herein shall determine the order 

in which agenda items shall be considered for discussion and/or action by 
the Board. 

 
2010.7 The President and the Fire Chief shall insure that appropriate information is 

available for the audience at meetings of the Board of Directors, and that 
physical facilities for said meetings are functional and appropriate in 
compliance with the Brown Act’s requirements for agendas and accessibility 
for attendees. 

 
2010.8 Teleconferencing.  Teleconferencing connects Board Members by 

electronic means, through either audio or video or both. The Board of 
Directors may teleconference as authorized by the Brown Act, (Gov. Code, 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 140 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 41 of 63 
 
 

  

§ 54953.) for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the Board of Directors.   

 
A. All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call. 
B. Agendas shall be posted at all teleconference locations and all 

teleconferencing locations shall be identified in the agenda. 
C. All teleconferencing locations must be accessible to the public and 

provide the public an opportunity to address the Board. 
D. During the teleconference, at least a quorum of the Board shall 

participate from locations within the boundaries of the District. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 141 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 42 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:     Swearing-in of Newly Appointed or Elected Board Members 
POLICY NUMBER:     2015 
 
 
2015.0 Swearing-in of Newly Appointed or Elected Board Members 
 

The Clerk of the Board will perform the official oath of office for newly appointed 
or Elected (including re-elected) Board Members as soon as practical following 
official notice from the Registrar of Voter Office confirming the final ballot count.  A 
ceremonial swearing-in will take place at the next Board Meeting by a Judge, or 
the Clerk of the Board, or individual designated by the official being sworn in. 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 142 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 43 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Board Meeting Agenda 
POLICY NUMBER:  2020 
 
 
2020.1 The Fire Chief, in cooperation with the Board President, shall prepare an 

agenda for each regular and special meeting of the Board of Directors.  
 
   The President, Vice President and the Fire Chief shall discuss proposed 

agenda prior to the posting of any agenda.  It is the President’s responsibility 
for final approval of the agenda.   

 
   For any regular meetings or special meetings, where there is no legal 

conflict, any Board Member may request that an item directly related to 
District Business be placed on the agenda by channeling his/her request 
through the Board President or Fire Chief.  If channeled through the Fire 
Chief, the Fire Chief will promptly notify the Board President of the request.  
Such requests shall be made no later than 5:00 p.m. fifteen (15) days prior 
to the regular Fire Board meeting or Special Fire Board meeting.   All 
requests from Board Members for agenda items must be submitted on a 
District form and shall clearly define the District specific purpose, presenter, 
and justification for placing the item on the agenda. The President shall 
decide whether an item requested by an individual Board Member shall be 
placed on a future agenda.  Any request not approved by the President shall 
be placed on a future agenda on the consent calendar informing the full 
Board of the President’s determination. If the item is pulled for discussion, 
the merits of the proposed agenda item shall not be discussed, but instead, 
only the determination of placing the proposed agenda item on a future 
agenda. If a majority of the Board desires an item to be placed on a future 
agenda, such item shall be placed on a future agenda. 

 
   A Board Member may place an item related to District Business on the next 

agenda at any Regular Board Meeting with President (or Board) approval, 
as outlined above. 

 
   Issues not related directly to Fire District concern or of a controversial or 

sensitive nature, should always first be placed on the Board agenda for 
discussion by the Board of Directors.  

 
   Any member of the public may request that a matter directly related to 

District business be placed on the agenda of a regularly scheduled meeting 
of the Board of Directors, subject to the following conditions: 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 143 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 44 of 63 
 
 

  

A. The request must be in writing and be submitted to the Board 
President or Clerk of the Board, with supporting documents and 
information, if any, by 5 p.m. on the Wednesday fifteen (15) days 
prior to the Board meeting. 

B. The Board President, upon consultation with appropriate parties, will 
determine whether the public request is or is not a "matter directly 
related to District business" and whether the matter warrants 
placement on a future agenda.  Any request not approved by the 
President shall be placed on a future agenda under consent calendar 
informing the full Board of the President’s determination. The items 
may be pulled for discussion and f a majority of the Board desires an 
item to be placed on a future agenda, such item shall be placed on 
a future agenda 

 
2020.2 Consent Calendar.  Items of a routine nature and non-controversial nature 

shall be placed on the consent agenda.  All items may be approved by one 
blanket motion upon unanimous consent.  Any Board Member may request 
that any item be withdrawn from the consent agenda for separate 
consideration.  However, any Board Member may abstain from voting on 
any consent agenda item without requesting its removal from the consent 
agenda, and the Clerk of the Board shall be instructed to record such 
abstentions in the minutes. 

 
No matter, which is legally a proper subject for consideration by the Board 
in closed session, will be included in the consent calendar. 
 

2020.3 Public Comments.  Any person may address the Board at any regular 
meeting on any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter 
of the Board of Directors during the Public Comments portion of the 
meeting. Any person may address the Board at any special meeting on any 
item that has been described in the notice for the special meeting.  Each 
person desiring to speak shall be limited to five (5)three (3) minutes, unless 
extended by the President.  Such five (5)three (3) minute time period shall 
be extended to ten (10)six (6) minutes for any member of the public who 
utilizes a translator, to ensure that non-English speakers receive the same 
opportunity to directly address the Board, unless the Board utilizes 
simultaneous translation equipment in a manner that allows the Board to 
hear the translated public testimony simultaneously. 
 
In the event such an extension is given to one person a similar extension 
shall be provided to all others wishing to speak.  Any public comments on 
items listed on the agenda should be addressed at the time the agenda item 
is up for consideration.  For any matter that, in the opinion of a majority of 
the Directors present and qualified to act, a large number of requests to 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 144 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 45 of 63 
 
 

  

speak have been presented, the President may require those persons with 
similar interests to appoint one spokesperson in order to preserve the timely 
and orderly conduct of the meeting or limit each speakers time. 

 
This policy does not prevent the Board from taking testimony at regular and 
special meetings of the Board on matters that are not on the agenda and 
that a member of the public may wish to bring before the Board.  However, 
the Board shall not discuss or take action on such matters at that meeting. 
 

2020.4 At least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the time of all regular meetings, an 
agenda, which includes but is not limited to all matters on which there may 
be discussion and/or action by the Board, shall be posted conspicuously for 
public review within the District office. 

 
2020.5 Except for emergency or dire emergency situations, the agenda for a 

special meeting shall be posted at least twenty-four (24) hours before the 
meeting in the same location.  In emergency or dire emergency situations, 
the notice requirements of Policy #2010.2 shall be followed. 

 
2020.6 A Closed Session at a regular Board Meeting may be scheduled to 

commence several hours prior to the Regular Board Meeting. 
 
  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 145 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 46 of 63 
 
 

  

 
POLICY TITLE:  Board Meeting Conduct 
POLICY NUMBER:  2030 
 
2030.0 Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be conducted by the President in a 

manner consistent with the policies of the District.  The latest edition of 
Robert's Rules of Order Revised shall also be used as a general guideline 
for meeting protocol unless provided for otherwise in these Policies.  District 
policies shall prevail whenever they are in conflict with Robert's Rules of 
Order Revised.  Each Board Member will have (5) five minutes to speak 
during Board Comments portion of the agenda and five (5) minutes during 
the Board Comments section of each specific agenda item, unless an 
extension is granted by the Board President in the President’s sole 
discretion.  Any such time extension should be granted to all Board 
Members equally.  Board Members shall not be permitted to split their 
allotted speaking time.   

 
Board members are not permitted to leave the dais at any time during the 
meeting.  If a Board Member wishes to leave the dais, He/she must ask 
permission from the Board President for a short recess.  The Board 
President shall grant a short recess for a minimum of five (5) minutes.  

 
2030.1 All Board meetings shall commence at the no earlier than the time stated 

on the agenda and shall be guided by same. 
 
2030.2 The conduct of meetings shall, to the fullest possible extent, enable 

Directors to:  
 

A. Consider problems to be solved, weigh evidence related thereto, and 
make wise decisions intended to solve the problems; and, receive, 
consider and take any needed action with respect to reports of 
accomplishment of District operations. 

B. Permit any individual or group to address the Board concerning any 
item on the agenda of a special meeting, or to address the Board at 
a regular meeting on any subject of interest to the public that lies 
within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors. 

 
1. Willful disruption of any of the meetings of the Board of 

Directors shall not be permitted.  If the Board finds that there 
is in fact willful disruption of any meeting of the Board so as to 
render the orderly conduct of such meeting unfeasible and 
order cannot be restored by the removal of individuals who 
are willfully interrupting the meeting, the Board may order the 
room cleared and subsequently conduct the Board's 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 146 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 47 of 63 
 
 

  

business.  In such an event, only matters appearing on the 
agenda may be considered in such a session.   

 
 After clearing the room, the Board may permit those persons 

who, in its opinion, were not responsible for the willful 
disruption to re-enter the meeting room.  Duly accredited 
representatives of the news media, whom the Board finds not 
to have participated in the disruption, shall be admitted to stay 
for the remainder of the meeting. 

 
  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 147 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 48 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Board Actions and Decisions 
POLICY NUMBER:  2040 
 
 
2040.0 Actions by the Board of Directors include but are not limited to the following: 

adopting or rejecting any item on the agenda.   
 

 A. Adoption or rejection of regulations or policies; 
 B. Adoption or rejection of a resolution; 
 C. Adoption or rejection of an ordinance; 
 D. Adoption or rejection of the annual budget; 
 E. Approval or rejection of any contract, expenditure or proposal as 

required within the District’s purchasing/acquisition policy or for 
those contracts, expenditures or proposals which exceed the 
$25,000$100,000 authority extended to the Fire Chief; 

F. Approval or rejection of any proposal that changes the number 
and/or classification of authorized personnel unless such authority 
has been provided otherwise pursuant to any applicable MOU, 
Personnel Rules, or other employment agreement.  

G. Approval or disapproval of non-routine matters, which require or may 
require the District or its employees to take on-going action and/or 
provide substantially different or additional services; 

 H. Approval or rejection of warrants for payment; 
 I. Approval or rejection of the monthly financial report including 

collections received and deposited and sales of District property. 
 

2040.1 Except where otherwise specifically required by law, action can only be 
taken by the recorded vote of the majority of the total members of Board of 
Directors.  Three (3) Directors represent a quorum for the conduct of 
business.  Actions taken at a meeting where only a quorum is present, 
therefore, require all three (3) votes to be effective (unless a 4/5 vote or 
other is required by policy or other law). 

 
2040.2 A member abstaining in a vote is considered absent for that vote; otherwise, 

the member is not considered absent. 
 
Example. If 3 of 5 Directors are present at a meeting, a quorum exists and business 

can be conducted.  However, if 1 Director abstains on a particular action 
and the other 2 cast "aye" votes, no action is taken because a "majority of 
the Board" did not vote in favor of the action. 

 
Example. If an action is proposed requiring a two-thirds vote and 2 Directors abstain, 

the proposed action cannot be approved because 4 of the 5 Directors would 
have to vote in favor of the action. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 148 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 49 of 63 
 
 

  

2040.3    Remedies for Violations of Law or Policy. 

 1. Referral to Outside Agency.  In the event the Board becomes 
aware of a violation of any federal, state or local law by a Board 
Member, the Board may, in addition to any other remedies available, 
refer such matter to the appropriate federal, state or local authorities 
for civil and/or criminal investigation (where applicable).  

 2. Censure. In addition to the remedies provided above, in the event 
that any federal, state or local law, or any District or Board Policy is 
violated, whether maliciously, willfully, intentionally or negligently, the 
Board may, in addition to any other remedies available, censure the 
violating Board Member, revoke Board Member privileges such as 
stipends, travel reimbursements, training reimbursements, health 
and welfare benefits, and committee or liaison appointments, refer 
the matter to the appropriate authorities for civil and/or criminal 
investigation (where applicable), seek judicial relief, or any 
combination of such remedies.  Prior to censuring a Board Member, 
the District shall provide written notice to the Board Member 
proposed to be censured, informing that Board Member of the basis 
for such proposed censure.  At the Board meeting at which the 
proposed censure is considered, the Board Member who is subject 
to censure shall be provided an opportunity to address the proposed 
censure. 

 

2040.4 The naming or renaming of all District facilities shall be determined by a 
majority vote of the Board. 

 

2040.5 Prior to taking final action, the Board of Directors shall verbally report a 
summary of a recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary 
schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of a District 
executive during the open meeting in which the final action is to be taken.  

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 149 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 50 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE: Review of Administrative Decisions 
POLICY NUMBER:  2050 
 
 
2050.0 The provisions of §1094.6 of the Code of Civil Procedure of the State of 

California shall be applicable to judicial review of all administrative decisions 
of the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of §1094.5 of said code. 
The provisions of §1094.6 shall prevail over any conflicting provision and 
any otherwise applicable law, rule, policy or regulation of the District, 
affecting the subject matter of an appeal. 

 
 A. This policy affects those administrative decisions rendered by the 

Board of Directors governing acts of the District, in the conduct of the 
District's operations and those affecting personnel operating policies. 

 B. The purpose of this policy is to insure efficient administration of the 
District, and the expeditious review of decisions rendered by the 
Board of Directors. 

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 150 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 51 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Minutes of Board Meetings 
POLICY NUMBER:  2060 
 
2060.0 The Clerk of the Board of the Board of Directors or Acting Clerk of the Board 

shall keep minutes of all regular and special meetings and standing 
committees of the Board. 

 
A. Copies of Regular and Special Board minutes shall be made for 

distribution to Directors with the agenda at a regular Board meeting 
or Special Meeting. 

B. The official typed minutes of the regular and special meetings and 
standing committees of the Board shall be kept in fire-resistant 
locked cabinets or fire resistant locked safe or a trusted electronic 
system. 

 
2060.1 A video and/or audio recording may shall be made of each open meeting 

of the Board of Directors. The video shall be posted on the Districts 
website within 48 hours after the meeting is concluded. 

 
A. The official records of the meetings are the approved typed minutes. 

Videos of the meetings shall serve as a backup to the typed 
minutes and used if a dispute or more clarification of the typed 
minutes are necessary. 

B. If a recording is to be made during closed session, the President will 
announce the fact that a recording is being made at the beginning of 
the closed session meeting, and the recording device shall be placed 
in plain view of all present, so far as is possible. 

C. Recordings made during closed sessions of the Board are deemed 
confidential and not a public record. 

D. The video and audio recordings, discs or other electronic 
data/information storage devices shall be kept in a trusted electronic 
system for at least thirty days (30) after each meeting of the Board 
of Directors or as specified in the Fire District’s retention schedule 
and until the minutes are approved, whichever comes first.   

 
2060.2 Motions, resolutions or ordinances shall be recorded as having passed or 

failed and individual votes will be recorded unless the action was 
unanimous.  The Board President or Clerk shall publicly report any action 
taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each member present for 
the action.  This report may be made by the President, or the Clerk of the 
Board, or their designee.  For actions that are taken unanimously, the public 
report may simply reference the fact that the action was taken unanimously. 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 151 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 52 of 63 
 
 

  

All resolutions and ordinances adopted by the Board shall be presented in 
complete context and numbered consecutively starting new at the 
beginning of each calendar year.  Original resolutions and ordinances shall 
be kept in fire-resistant locked cabinets or in a fire-resistant locked safe. 

 
2060.3 The minutes of Board meetings shall reflect the following: 
 

1. Date, place and type of each meeting; 
2. Directors present and absent by name; 
3. Call to order; 
4. Arrival of tardy Directors by name; 
5. Pre-adjournment departure of Directors by name, or if absence takes 

place when any agenda items are acted upon; 
6. Adjournment of the meeting; 
7. Approval or amended approval of the minutes of preceding regular 

and special meetings; 
8. Complete information describing each item presented for the Board's 

deliberation and or action; 
9. All actions taken by the Board, including action taken pursuant to 

Section 2040 and including a summary of the discussion on such 
action and the roll call record of the vote on a motion if not 
unanimous; 

10. A record of all bid procedures, including calls for bids authorized, bids 
received and other action taken; 

11. A record of all important correspondence; 
12. A record of the Fire Chief's report to the Board; 
13. Visitors and delegations appearing before the Board. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 152 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 53 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Rules of Order for Board and Committee Meetings 
POLICY NUMBER:  2070 
 
 
2070.0 Maintenance of Order.  
    
   The President is responsible for the maintenance of order and decorum at 

all times.  No person is allowed to speak who has not first been recognized 
by the President and all questions and remarks shall be addressed to the 
President. 

 
2070.1 Points of Order. 
 

The President shall determine all Points of Order subject to the right of any 
member to appeal to the entire Board.  If any appeal is taken, the question 
shall be, "Shall the decision of the President be sustained?" in which event 
a majority vote shall govern and conclusively determine such question of 
order. 

 
2070.2 Decorum and Order - Board Members. 
 

Any Board Member desiring to speak shall address the President and, upon 
recognition by the President, shall confine himself/herself to the matter 
under debate.   
 
A. A Board Member desiring to question the staff shall address his/her 

question to the Fire Chief who shall either answer the inquiry 
himself/herself or to designate some member of his/her staff for that 
purpose. 

B. A Board Member or member of the public, once recognized, shall not 
be interrupted while speaking, unless called to order by the 
President, unless a Point of Order is raised by another Board 
Member, or unless the speaker chooses to yield to questions from 
another Board Member. Board Members will have a total of (5) five 
minutes to speak on each agenda item, unless an extension is 
granted by the Board President, in the president’s sole discretion.  
Any time extension shall be granted to all Board Members equally.  
Board Members shall not be permitted to split their allotted speaking 
time.   

C. Any Board Member called to order while he/she is speaking shall 
cease speaking immediately until the question of order is 
determined.  If ruled to be in order, he/she shall be permitted to 
proceed.  If ruled to be not in order or out of compliance with this 
policy, he/she shall remain silent or shall alter his/her remarks so as 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 153 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 54 of 63 
 
 

  

to comply with rules of the Board. In the event a Board Member 
refuses to alter his/her remarks so as to comply with the Rules of the 
Board, the President shall be authorized to call a recess of the 
meeting. 

D. Board Members shall at all times conduct themselves with the utmost 
courtesy to each other, to staff and to members of the audience 
present at Board meetings and shall refrain at all times from rude or 
derogatory remarks, reflections as to integrity, abusive comments 
and statements as to motives and personalities. 

E. The Board President is the legislative officer who is responsible for 
seeing that decorum and order is maintained during the order of 
business. 

F. Any Board Member may move to require the President to enforce 
rules and the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board shall require 
him/her to so act. 

 
  

2070.3 Decorum and Order - Employees. 
 

Members of the administrative staff and employees of the District shall 
observe the same rules of procedure and decorum applicable to Board 
Members. 

 
2070.4 Conflict of Interest. 
 

All Board Members are subject to all provisions of California law relative to 
conflicts of interest and to conflict of interest codes adopted by the Board. 
Any Board Member prevented from voting because of a conflict of interest 
shall refrain from debate and voting.  Such Board Member shall identify the 
interest in detail sufficient to be understood by the public, except that 
disclosure of the exact street address of a residence is not required, recuse 
himself or herself from discussing and voting on the matter, and (unless the 
matter has been placed on a portion of the agenda reserved for uncontested 
matters) shall leave the Board Chambers until after the discussion, vote, 
and any other disposition of the matter is concluded.  However, the Board 
Member may speak on the issue during the time that the general public 
speaks on the issue.  In addition to legal conflicts of interest, Board 
members should be cognizant of the perception of conflicts of interest.  For 
example, when a Board member is involved in activities outside of his/her 
official District duties (i.e., attending a public meeting of another agency in 
his/her private capacity, interacting with other agencies/parties as part of 
his/her private job duties), that Board member should make it clear to the 
parties involved that the Board member is acting in his/her private capacity, 
and not as a District Board member.   

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 154 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 55 of 63 
 
 

  

 
2070.5 Limitation of Debate. 
 

No Board Member should speak more than once upon any one subject until 
every other Board Member choosing to speak thereon has spoken.  No 
member shall speak for a longer time than five minutes each time he/she 
has the floor, without the approval of a majority vote of the Board. 

 
2070.6 Dissents, Protests, and Comments. 
 

Any Member shall have the right to express dissent from or protest to or 
comment upon any action of the Board and have the reason entered in the 
minutes.  If such dissent, protest or comment, is desired to be entered in 
the minutes, this should be made clear by language such as, "I would like 
the minutes to show that I am opposed to this action for the following 
“reasons.” 

 
2070.7 Rulings of President Final Unless Overruled. 
 

In presiding over meetings, the President, Vice President or temporary 
President shall decide all questions or interpretation of these rules, points 
of order or other questions of procedure requiring rulings.  Any such 
decision or ruling shall be final unless overridden or suspended by a 
majority vote of the Board Members present and voting, and shall be binding 
and legally effective (even though clearly erroneous) for purposes of the 
matter under consideration. 

 
2070.8 Actions Not Invalidated. 
 

Failure to strictly comply with these Rules of Procedure shall not invalidate 
any action taken by the District Board. 

 
2070.9 Actions. 
 

The Board may act only by ordinance, resolution or motion.  For Example, 
Board actions setting rules for long-term application are taken by ordinance, 
whereas more routine business and administrative matters (usually more 
temporary in nature) are accomplished by "resolutions." 

 
The "motion" (assuming it was one which passed) is a Board action which 
is recorded simply by an item entry in the minutes of the meeting at which 
it was accomplished, and no separate document is made to memorialize it. 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 155 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 56 of 63 
 
 

  

2070.10 Processing of Motions. 
 

When a motion is made and seconded, it shall be stated by the President 
before debate.  A motion so stated shall not be withdrawn by the mover 
without the consent of the person seconding it. 

 
2070.11 Motions out of Order: 
 

The President may at any time, by majority consent of the Board, permit a 
member to introduce an ordinance, resolution, or motion out of the regular 
agenda order. 

 
2070.12 Division of Question: 
 

If the question contains two or more dividable propositions, the President 
may, and upon request of a Member shall, divide the same. 

 
2070.13 Precedence of Motions: 
 

When a motion is before the Board, no motion shall be entertained except 
the following, which shall have precedence in the following order: 

 
a. Adjourn 
b. Fix hour of adjournment 
c. Table 
d. Limit or terminate discussion 
e. Substitute 
f. Reconsider 
g. Amend 
h. Postpone 

 
2070.14 Motion to Adjourn: (Not debatable) 
 

 A motion to adjourn shall be in order at any time, except as follows: 
 

a. When repeated without intervening business or discussion. 
b. When made as an interruption of a Member  
c. When discussion has been ended, and vote on motion is pending, 

and 
d. When a vote is being taken. 

 
A motion to adjourn "to another time" shall be debatable only as to the time 
to which the meeting is adjourned. 

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 156 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 57 of 63 
 
 

  

2070.15 Motion to Fix Hour of Adjournment.  (Not debatable) 
 

Such a motion shall be to set a definite time at which to adjourn is not 
debatable and shall not be amended except by unanimous vote. 

 
2070.16 Motion to Table. (Not debatable) 
 

A motion to table shall be used to temporarily by-pass the subject.  A motion 
to table shall not be debatable and shall preclude all amendments or debate 
of the subject under consideration.  If the motion shall prevail, the matter 
may be "taken from the table" at any time prior to the end of the next regular 
meeting. 

 
2070.17 Motion to Limit or Terminate Discussion.  (Not debatable) 
 

Such a motion shall be used to limit or close debate on, or further 
amendment to, the main motion and shall not be debatable.  If the motion 
fails, debate shall be reopened; if the motion passes, a vote shall be taken 
on the main motion. 

 
2070.18 Motion to Amend.  (Debatable) 
 

A motion to amend shall be debatable only as to the amendment.  A motion 
to amend an amendment shall be in order, but a motion to amend an 
amendment to an amendment shall not be in order.  An amendment 
modifying the intention of a motion shall be in order, but an amendment 
relating to a different matter shall not be in order.  A substitute motion on 
the same subject shall be acceptable, and voted on before a vote on the 
amendment.  Amendments shall be voted first, then the main motion as 
amended. 

 
2070.19 Motion to Continue.  (Debatable) 
 

Motions to continue to a definite time shall be amendable and debatable as 
to propriety of postponement and time set. 

 
2070.20 Reconsideration.  (Debatable) 
 

Any Board Member who voted with the majority may move a 
reconsideration of any action at the same or next meeting.  After a motion 
for reconsideration has once been acted upon, no other motion for 
reconsideration thereof shall be made without unanimous consent of the 
Board. 

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 157 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 58 of 63 
 
 

  

2070.21 Voting Procedure. 
 

In acting upon every motion, the vote shall be taken by voice or roll call or 
any other method by which the vote of each Board Member present can be 
clearly ascertained.  The vote on each motion shall then be entered in full 
upon the record.  The order of voting shall be alphabetical with the President 
voting last.  The Clerk of the Board shall call the names of all members 
seated when a roll call vote is ordered or required.  Members shall respond 
'aye,' 'no' or 'abstain.'  Any Board Member not audibly and clearly 
responding 'no' or 'abstain' or otherwise registering an objection shall have 
his vote recorded as 'aye.' 

 
2070.22 Tie Votes. 
 

 Tie votes shall be considered a no vote or denial. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 158 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 59 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Procedure for Adopting a Resolution 
POLICY NUMBER:  2080 
 
 
2080.0 Resolutions Prepared in Advance. 
 

Where a resolution has been prepared in advance, the procedure shall be: 
Motion, second, discussion, vote pursuant to the methods set out for 
motions, and result declared.  It shall not be necessary to read a resolution 
in full or by title except to identify it.  When a resolution has not been 
prepared in advance, the general counsel or staff shall prepare a resolution 
for presentation at the next meeting. 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 159 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 60 of 63 
 
 

  

POLICY TITLE:  Procedure for Adopting an Ordinance 
POLICY NUMBER:  2090 
 
 
2090.0 Ordinances of the District are generally adopted pursuant to Government 

Code section 25120 et seq., which governs the adoption of ordinances by 
counties.  Place the ordinance on agenda for regular meeting by title and 
brief description of content (an exception is an urgency ordinance which 
may be adopted at a regular or special meeting). 

 
   I. Discussion. 
 
   A. Form.  The enacting clause of an ordinance must be, “The 

Board of Directors of the Chino Valley Independent Fire 
District ordains as follows.” Every ordinance must be signed 
by the President of the Board of Directors and attested by the 
Clerk of the Board. 

 
 II. First Reading/Introduce the Ordinance. 

 
A. Read title and then make a motion to waive further reading of 

entire ordinance and read by title only.  The motion to waive 
further reading must be carried by a majority vote. 

 B. Reading of title by the Clerk of the Board. 
 C. Motion to introduce 

 
Moved by: 
Seconded: 
Carried by: 

 
III. Adoption/Second Reading. 

 
Ordinances cannot be passed within five days of their introduction, 
nor at other than a regular meeting or at an adjourned regular 
meeting.  However, an urgency ordinance may be passed 
immediately upon introduction and either at a regular or special 
meeting.  This limitation does not apply to ordinances that by statute 
can be passed only after notice and a public hearing.  

 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 160 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 61 of 63 
 
 

  

A. Clerk of the Board to read title.  
 B.  Make motion to waive reading of entire ordinance.  (see 

above) Motion to adopt Ordinance No. ___ to be read by title 
and number only. 

 
Moved by: 
Seconded: 
Carried by: 

 
 C. Clerk of the Board to read by title and number only. 
 D. State:  Following the thirty-day waiting period, Ordinance No. 

___ will become effective. 
E.  On the passage of all ordinances the votes of the several 

members of the Board shall be entered on the minutes, and 
all ordinances shall be entered at length in the ordinance 
book. 

F. When ordinances (other than urgency ordinances) are altered 
after introduction/first reading, they can be passed only at a 
regular or at an adjourned regular meeting held at least five 
days after alteration.  Corrections of typographical or clerical 
errors are not alterations within the meaning of this 
requirement.  This requirement does not apply to ordinances 
that by statute can be passed only after notice and a public 
hearing.  

 
IV. Publication. 

 
Publication of ordinances may occur in any of the following three 
manners: 
 
A. Full Publication.  The ordinance must be published within 

fifteen (15) calendar days of adoption.  The ordinance is 
published once in full in the newspaper of general circulation 
within the District.  If there is no newspaper published in the 
District, the ordinance shall be posted in a prominent location 
at the Board of Directors’ chambers within the 15-day period 
and remain posted thereafter for at least one week.  Except 
for maps, any exhibit attached to and incorporated by 
reference in an ordinance need not be published in its entirety 
if the publication lists all those exhibits by title or description 
and includes a notation that a complete copy of each exhibit 
is on file with the Clerk of the Board and is available for public 
inspection and copying in that office in accordance with the 
California Public Records Act.  A certificate of the Clerk of the 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 161 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 62 of 63 
 
 

  

Board or order entered in the minutes of the Board that the 
ordinance has been duly published or posted is prima facie 
proof of the publication or posting.  

B. For summary publication:  Publish both before and after 
adoption.  The summary of the proposed ordinance must be 
prepared by the Fire Chief or his or her designee, published, 
and a certified copy of the full text of the proposed ordinance 
must be either posted in the District’s office or on the District’s 
website at least five (5) days before the meeting where the 
ordinance will be adopted. The summary is published again 
within fifteen (15) days after adoption and a certified copy of 
the full text of the ordinance must be either posted in the 
District’s office or on the District’s website with both the 
summary and the certified copy containing the names of those 
Board Members voting and their votes or abstentions. 

C. If the Fire Chief or his/her designee determines that it is not 
feasible to prepare a fair and adequate summary of the 
ordinance, and if the Board so orders, a display advertisement 
of at least one-quarter of a page in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the District must be published at least five days 
prior to the Board meeting at which the proposed ordinance is 
to be adopted.  Within 15 days after adoption of the ordinance, 
a display advertisement of at least one quarter of a page must 
also be published.  The advertisement must indicate the 
general nature of, and provide information about, the 
ordinance, including information sufficient to enable the public 
to obtain copies of the complete text of the ordinance, and the 
names of those Board members voting for and against the 
ordinance. 

D. If the Fire Chief fails to publish an ordinance within 15 days 
after the date of adoption, the ordinance shall not take effect 
until 30 days after the date of publication.  

E. Effective Date. 
All ordinances shall become effective 30 days from the date 
of final passage, except the following ordinances, which shall 
take effect immediately. 
(a) Those calling or otherwise relating to an election. 
(b) Those specifically required by this code or by any other 

law to take immediate effect.  
(c) Those fixing the amount of money to be raised by 

taxation, or the rate of taxes to be levied.  
(d) Those for the immediate preservation of the public 

peace, health, or safety, which shall contain a 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 162 of 167



Chino Valley Independent Fire District  
Policy and Procedures for Board of Directors  
Resolution No. 2023-XX Revised and Adopted _________, 2023 
Page 63 of 63 
 
 

  

declaration of the facts constituting the urgency and 
shall be passed by a four-fifths vote of the Board.  

(e) Those specifically relating to the adoption or 
implementation of a memorandum of understanding 
with an employee organization. 

(f) Those relating to salaries and other compensation of 
officers, other than elected officers, and employees. 

 
 Certain ordinances and resolutions require special notice and/or hearing 
requirements. Some of these include: 

 
 Ordinances increasing Board Member compensation pursuant to Health 

and Safety Code section 13857/ Wat. Code, § 20200 et seq. 
 Ordinances adopting a fire prevention code by reference pursuant to 

Government Code section 50022; 
 Resolutions concerning the abatement of hazardous weeds and rubbish 

pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 14875; and  
 Ordinances adopting or amending fees to cover the cost of any service 

which the district provides pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
13916. 

 
Resolutions generally do not require first and second readings and can be 
adopted to be effective immediately. 

 
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 163 of 167



  NEW BUSINESS    11.

CHINO VALLEY INDEPENDENT FIRE DISTRICT
STAFF REPORT

DATE: FEBRUARY 8, 2023

TO: JOHN DEMONACO, BOARD PRESIDENT
ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

FROM: DAVE WILLIAMS, FIRE CHIEF

SUBJECT: UPDATE REGARDING TELECONFERENCING UNDER AB 361 AND AB
2449

PURPOSE:

Purpose is for the Board of Directors to receive an update regarding teleconferencing options under the
recent amendments to the Ralph M. Brown Act, and provide direction as to whether and how the Board
wishes those teleconferencing options to be used.  

BACKGROUND:

Brown Act Teleconferencing
The Brown Act first allowed local public agency meetings to be conducted via teleconference in
1988.  At the time, San Diego County was considering the use of teleconferencing for meetings and
hearings of the board of supervisors due to concerns about the long distances that some of their
constituents were having to travel to participate in board meetings. They were especially concerned that
these distances were so great that they prohibited some people from attending meetings at
all.  Assembly Bill (“AB”) 3191 (Frazee), Chapter 399, Statutes of 1988, responded to these concerns
by authorizing the legislative body of a local agency to use teleconferencing. Since that time, a number
of bills have made modifications to that original authorization.
 
Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Brown Act’s teleconferencing rules included the following:
 

1. The agenda must be posted at all teleconferenced locations.
2. Each teleconference location must be accessible to the public.
3. At least a quorum of the legislative body members must participate from within the boundaries of

the jurisdiction, except as otherwise allowed by the Brown Act.
4. All votes taken must be by roll call.
5. Teleconferenced meeting must be conducted in a manner that protects the statutory and

constitutional rights of the parties or the public appearing before the legislative body.

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 164 of 167



6. Notice of the meeting must be given, and agendas must be posted as otherwise required by the
Brown Act.   I.e., physical internet posting for regular meetings, plus personal delivery for special
meetings.

7. Each teleconferenced location must be identified in the notice and agenda.
8. Members of the public must be provided an opportunity to address the legislative body directly at

each teleconferenced location.
 
For obvious reasons, the first three (3) of these requirements proved unworkable during a health
pandemic caused by a transmissible virus.  As a result, the Brown Act’s teleconferencing requirements
were relaxed, first by the Governor’s Executive Order, and later by the Legislature’s adoption of AB
361.
 
COVID Pandemic Teleconferencing (AB 361)
In 2021, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the California Legislature adopted AB 361 to ease
certain requirements for holding teleconferenced meetings under the Brown Act during
emergencies.  Specifically, AB 361 removed the first three (3) requirements listed above (posting
agenda at all locations, making all locations accessible to the public, and requiring a quorum of the
body to be within the jurisdiction).  All of the other requirements, plus a few more, remained.
 
Although AB 361 remains a law through January 1, 2024, Governor Newsom has announced that the
declared statewide COVID-19 State of Emergency will end on February 28, 2023.  If the COVID-19
State of Emergency ends on February 28, 2023, local agencies may only be able to continue using AB
361 for teleconference meetings if both:
 

1. state or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social  distancing;
and

2. the legislative body has continued to make the required 30-day renewal findings and continues to
do so.

DISCUSSION:

Post-Pandemic Teleconferencing
As local agencies saw the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic waning, some local agencies sought the
Legislature’s assistance in extending the use of the more flexible teleconferencing provisions.  What
resulted was AB 2449, discussed below.
 
AB 2449 provides a new teleconferencing option that can be used when a member of the legislative
body has to attend a meeting remotely due to an emergency or other reasons supported by “just cause.”
 Under these new rules, a legislative body may hold a hybrid (partial teleconference, partial in-person)
meeting without having to comply with the standard Brown Act teleconference rules under certain
circumstances.  These circumstances are:
 

Just Cause.  One or more members of the legislative body (but less than a quorum) have
notified the body at the earliest opportunity of their need to participate remotely for just
cause.  Just cause is restricted to:
1.      childcare or caregiving need for a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling,

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 165 of 167



spouse, or domestic partner that requires remote participation;
2.      contagious illness that prevents in-person attendance;
3.      physical or mental disability need; or
4.      travel while on official business of the agency or another state or local agency. 

 
The legislative body member must notify the legislative body at the earliest opportunity possible,
including at the start of a regular meeting, of their need to participate remotely for just cause,
including a general description of the circumstances relating to their need to appear remotely at
the meeting.
 

Emergency Circumstance. One or more members of the legislative body (but less than a
quorum) experience an emergency circumstance, which is defined as a physical or family
medical emergency that prevents in-person attendance, and request[1] to participate
remotely. As part of their request, the member must provide a general description of the
circumstances relating to their need to appear remotely; however, they are not required to
disclose a medical diagnosis, disability or other confidential medical information. The
legislative body must then take action on each member’s request. The member must make
their request to participate remotely as soon as possible, and must make a separate request
for each meeting in which they seek to participate remotely. If the request does not allow
sufficient time to be placed on the posted agenda for the meeting for which the request is
made, the legislative body may take action on it at the beginning of the meeting.

 
There are limitations on the number of times a member may use AB 2449 to participate remotely. 
Specifically, a member may not participate remotely for “just cause” for more than two meetings in a
calendar year and, in general, may not use AB 2449 to participate remotely for more than three
consecutive months or 20 percent of the regular meetings for the District within a calendar year (or
more than two meetings if the legislative body regularly meets fewer than 10 times per calendar year). 
 This means that District staff would need to keep track of which meetings were attended remotely by
which Boardmembers throughout the year.
 
In addition to the limitation listed above, in order for the District to use teleconferencing under AB
2449, the meeting format and agendas must comply with the following:

A quorum of the legislative body must meet in-person at a single, physical location within the
District’s boundaries
The District must use either a two-way audio-visual system or a two-way phone service with live
webcasting.
The agenda must identify a call-in or internet-based access option for the public, along with the in-
person meeting location.
If a disruption to the online meeting occurs, the legislative body may take no further action on
agenda items until public access is restored.
The public must be able to provide comments in real-time. Public comments may not be required
to be submitted in advance.
All votes must be taken by roll call.
 

In addition, legislative body members participating remotely under AB 2449 must comply with the
following requirements during the meeting:

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 166 of 167



Before any action is taken, the member(s) must disclose whether any other individuals 18 years of
age or older are present in the room at the remote location with the member, and the general nature
of the member’s relationship with any such individuals.
The member(s) must participate through both audio and visual technology.

 
AB 2449 presents a host of administrative issues for local public agencies, and each local public
agency will want to decide whether, and to what extent, it wishes to take advantage of AB 2449’s
provisions.  According to the legislative history of AB 2449, the bill “does not require
teleconferencing”. (Assembly Floor Analysis, A.B. 2449,  (Aug. 24, 2022).)
 
Once the COVID-19 State of Emergency is ended by the Governor, some local agencies currently
conducting meetings under the provisions of AB 361 may return to holding fully in-person public
meetings.  Others may begin holding meetings using the newly adopted AB 2449 (discussed below). 
Still others may return to in-person meetings, but opting to use the traditional Brown Act teleconference
rules that existed before COVID (and which continue to exist as part of the Brown Act).
 
In lieu of AB 2449 teleconferencing, the District may rely on the traditional (1988-era) teleconferencing
rules that applied pre-COVID.  Those rules remain an available option: teleconference locations must
be identified in the agenda, copies of the agenda must be posted at all teleconference locations, and
teleconference locations must be open to the public, and at least a quorum of the members of the
legislative body who are participating remotely must do so from locations within the District’s
jurisdiction.
 
Alternatively, the Board could authorize the use of AB 2449 teleconferencing by some of the District’s
legislative bodies, such as committees, but not others (i.e., the Board).
 
Finally, the teleconferencing rules discussed above apply only to situations where one or more
Boardmembers are teleconferencing in to a meeting.   The Board could, if it wishes, authorize
teleconferencing by other parties, such as District staff, consultants, the public, or those with items on
the agenda (i.e., vendors, etc.), without having to comply with the requirements discussed above.

[1] Note the distinction between “just cause” use of teleconferencing, which does not appear to require
legislative body approval for each use, whereas “emergency” use of teleconferencing does require
legislative body approval for each distinct use by a Boardmember.

 

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive an update regarding teleconferencing options
under the recent amendments to the Ralph M. Brown Act, and provide direction as to whether and how
the Board wishes those teleconferencing options to be used.
 

Regular Board Meeting - February 8, 2023 - Page 167 of 167

file:///C:/Users/acisneros/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/MFXM1EU2/CVIFD -- Staff Report re AB 2449-c1.docx#_ftnref1

	Meeting Agenda
	Proclamation – American Heart Month
	Minutes - January 11, 2023 - Regular Meeting
	Month of December 2022
	Monthly Financial Report - January 2023
	Monthly Treasurer's Report - December 2022
	Warrants for January 2023 #56748 through #56911
	None.
	FINDINGS TO CONDUCT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS VIRTUALLY UNDER ASSEMBLY BILL 361
	2022-23 MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW AND ANALYSIS
	AGREEMENT NO. 2023 - 01 WITH SHUSTER ADVISORY GROUP FOR FIDUCIARY SERVICES AND RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 APPOINTING THE HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR AS PLAN ADMINISTRATOR
	FIRE DISTRICT POLICY AND PROCEDURES FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	UPDATE REGARDING TELECONFERENCING UNDER AB 361 AND AB 2449



